PLEASANT VALLEY RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE - ROOM #6
1605 E. BURNLEY ST., CAMARILLO, CALIFORNIA

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Wednesday, March 23, 2022
4:00 pm

Please Note: In keeping in alignment with current orders from the Ventura County Health Officer,
face coverings are not required but are welcomed and encouraged in indoor public settings and
businesses. PVRPD thanks you for your cooperation and understanding.

This meeting will take place both in person and remotely in accordance with Government Code
section 54953(e) et seq. (AB 361). Members of the public can participate in the meeting by
choosing one of the following options:

1. Attend in person or

2. Joinvia Zoom -
Meeting Link: https://usO6web.zoom.us/j/84587870801
Webinar ID: 845 8787 0801
Phone Number: 1-669-900-6833

a. Cell Phone/Computer with Microphone: Click on the Zoom link included above. Enter
your name so we may call on you when it is your turn to speak. The Chair will ask if
anyone wishes to speak on the item. At that time, raise your hand by clicking the “Raise
Hand” button. Follow the instructions below regarding speaking.

b. Phone — If you wish to make a comment by phone during the public comment section of
the meeting or on a specific agenda item, please call in to the listed phone number above
and when prompted, enter the Webinar ID. You will then be admitted to the meeting and
your line will be muted. The Chair will ask if anyone wishes to speak on the item. At that
time, raise your hand by dialing *9. Then, follow the speaking instructions below.

Speaking Instructions
When it is your turn to speak, the Chair will call your name or the last four digits of the phone
number you are calling from. You will have three minutes to address the Committee. Please
ensure all background noise is muted (TV, radio, etc.) You will be prompted to unmute your
microphone/phone. Unmute your device and begin by stating your name. After three minutes has
elapsed your microphone will be muted and the next speaker will be invited to speak.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. PUBLIC/COMMITTEE COMMENTS

4. EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS RESOLUTION

5. EMPLOYEE MANUAL - PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84587870801

Personnel Committee
Page 2 of 2

6. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

7. CLOSED SESSION - PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE
EVALUATION
The District’s Personnel Committee will hold a closed session with the
District’s General Manager, pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 to
conduct an employee performance evaluation.

8. ADJOURNMENT

Note: Written materials related to these agenda items are available for public inspection in the Office of the
Clerk of the Board located at 1605 E. Burnley Street, Camarillo during regular business hours beginning the
day preceding the Committee meeting.

Announcement: Should you need special assistance (i.e. a disability-related modification or
accommodations) to participate in the Committee meeting or other District activities (including receipt of an
agenda in an appropriate alternative format), as outlined in the Americans With Disabilities Act, or require
further information, please contact the General Manager at 482-1996, extension 114. Please notify us 48
hours in advance to provide sufficient time to make a disability-related modification or reasonable
accommodation.



PLEASANT VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT / AGENDA REPORT

TO: PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

FROM: MARY OTTEN, GENERAL MANAGER
By: Kathryn Drewry, Human Resources Specialist

DATE: March 23, 2022

SUBJECT: EMPLOYEE MANUAL PERSONNEL POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES

BACKGROUND

The intent of this report is to provide the Personnel committee with updated information regarding
the Employee Manual/Personnel Policies and Procedures and to discuss potential changes as well
as provide staff direction as to next steps.

In 2016 The District adopted an updated Employee Manual that included policies and procedures
and articles that overlapped with the Memorandum of Understanding with SEIU. In 2019 District
staff presented the Board with proposed changes to the Employee manual with the intent of
creating separate documents to include an Unrepresensented Employee Manaul, MOU, as well as
a Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual as they pertain to personnel. The Board approved the
Unrepresented Employee Manual March 6, 2019 and staff have been working to finalize the
Personnel Policies and Procedures.

ANALYSIS

Since the last update the District has negotiated two memoranda of understandings with SEIU
Local 721, with the most recent MOU concluded in January 2022 it was recommended by legal
counsel to combine the two documents. As part of this process it was acknowledged that the 2016
Employee Manual was still in affect. The District will now need to rescind the 2016 Employee
Manaul as well as the Unpresented Empolyee Manual and adopt the updated Employee
Manual/Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual to combine these documents into one which
will cover all employees.

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no fiscal impact at this time.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff requests that the Personnel Committee review and consider the updated Employee
Manual/Personnel Policies and Procedures and provide direction.




STRATEGIC PLAN COMPLIANCE
Meets 2021 Strategic Plan Goal 1.5 G.: Evaluate and Provide Necessary Tools

ATTACHMENTS
1) Employee Manual/Personnel Policies and Procedures




pSPEl VA,

< {
D e 3

www.pvrpd.org * 805-482-1996

EMPLOYEE MANUAL — PERSONNEL POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES

Administrative Office
(Community Center/Senior Center)
1605 E. Burnley St., Camarillo 93010

Parks Department Office
(Located at Freedom Park)
480 Skyway Dr., Camarillo 93010
(805) 482-5396



Table of Contents

Article 1 — GENERAL INFORMATION........cuuuiunnnnnnnnnnnsmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnnss 1
YN VT4 o Yo =T o Lo l [ o =T o | AP U UU R PPUPRRIRNE 1

= T Yolo ] o[- R T U T TP T TP PU PP 1
(O = { o o TN 2 U=1 ] < PP 2
TN VLV I s Yo o 1Y o =T o USSR 3
ARTICLE 2 — EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION .....ccuuuiiiiiiiitiniiiiiiiireeeeeisisenrrssssssssssssresassssssssssssesssssssssssssessssssssssssssenns 3
A, EXEMPE EMPIOYEES «..eeeiiiiieee ettt ettt e e ettt e e e e e e ettt eeeeeeeeesatbeseeaeseaasnbaaaaaaeeeaaasssesaaaaaesaasstaneesassannsnrens 3

= T o o B b=t o] o ol = 4 Y o] (o] V7T U PURRRRt 3
C. Introductory Period — New Hires & Promotional AppointmeNntsS.........ceecciiieiicieeeiiiee e e e 3
TR T =P 4
ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE ..........uuttiiiiitiiiinteiiisnteiiiuneiiisseessssssesssssssesssssseessssssssssssssessssssessssssssssssssssssssasesssns 4
S S = Tt~ ) o [ PP 4
B,  ManN@agemeENt LEAVE ... 6
[ [0 = 1Y T T TSP TSP PO TPTUPPTOPRROPPRIOt 6
Full Time Employees Sick Leave Accrual 7

Part-Time Year-Round Employees 7

Temporary or Seasonal and/or Part Time Restricted Employees 7

Charge for Sick Leave 8

Proof of Illness 8

Notice of Sickness 8

Cash Value upon Termination 8

Value upon Retirement 8

D.  Compensatory TiME Off ...t e e e e et e e e s e e e et e e e e ataeeeansaeeeanseeeeanssseeesnseeeeasseeeannns 8
E.  Bereavement LEAVE ....cc.ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiti e s 9
B PEISONAI LEAVE ..ottt s st s he e Rt Rt et et a e b e bt e r e e resane e nae 9
(I =14 0 1=1 = L= Tt A = VTR D o o - | o 1PN 10



ARTICLE 4 - BENEFITS ...uueiiiiiiieeiiiiteiiiisieeiiisseeiiisstessssssnessisseessssssesssssssessssssesssssssessssssesssssssesssssssesssssssessssasesssssnsens
A. California Public Employee Retirement System (CalPERS) ......ccoccuiieiiiieee ettt e e
2 S 0 d o [T o = g oY o] (o) V7Y =N oo [o I 1T o= ] U UUPTN
(O =[] [T =1 U SUUU
D.  Recording EXPENSES INCUITEM .......uuiiiiiie ittt e e e ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e ettt aeeeeeeeeasasaeeeaaeseanssaeseaesseaanssseneaaesannes
E.  Educational ASSISTANCE PrOZIami.....ccccuiiicciiiieiiiieeeeiieeeeeite e e e tee e e e tae e e saee e e esateeeesataeeeanssaeessseeeesssseseaneseesnnseneans
ARTICLE 5 - MANAGEMENT ....ccccciitiiiitttiiistneiiisteiiisssnesiisseesssssesssssstesssssesssssssessssssesssssssesssssssesssssssessssssesssssnses
A, Performance EVAlUGtioNS........c.ooiiiiiieiee ettt e e sr et
2 T 1o o] (o1 =Yl e foT o 1T oY AU SRR
C.  Cell Phone AlloWance / SIPENT POLICY ..cuviieueiecieieeiieeciee et ettt et eeaeeeetveeeaeeeetveesaseesareeeaseensseesaseesaseessseennnes
D.  AULO AlOWANCE ..ttt ettt ettt et ettt e b e e b e e b et e bt e s b et e bt e e b et e bt e e b et e bt e e be e e bee e bae e bee s baeenneeeane
ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT ... cccttttuutiiiiiirmeemnsssssisimmrmmssssssissimmmmsssssssssmmmsssssssisstmmsassssssisssteesssssssssssssenns
N B T 1Yol o] [TaF= 1 YA Yot o o ISR
F. OPEeN-DOO0K POIICY / GFIEVANCE PrOCESS ....veeivvieeireeitieecieeestteeeteesteeeeteeestaeesseeestaeessessbaeesessbaeesessseessessnsessnseean
1. Appeal to Supervisor
2. Appeal to Manager (as applicable)
3. Appeal to Administrative Services Manager or Designee
4. Appeal to General Manager
G. Conflict of Interest; Gifts; Gratuities; Political Activity POIICY......ccuuviiiiiiiiiee e
ARTICLE 7 - seiu represented employee DISCIPLINE ...........cccccecrrrsnnnnnnmmmsnsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss
ARTICLE 8 - WAGES ......cieeeeueiiiiiiiiiteeiiiisirreeasssisstrresasssssissstresasssssssssstresssssssssssseesassssssssssteesssssssssssssesssssssssssssenns
[ TR o 1Y 4 V=T o o} AV = V= PR
I UNCIAIMEA/LOSE PAYCRECKS .....vveiiiieciie ettt ettt ettt e s te e st e e s te e s be e sbaesabeesabaesabeesabaesareesaseesaseesnseesnrenan
J. Overtime for NON-EXemMPt EMPIOYEES .......ueii ettt ee et e e sttt e e et e e e eta e e e sateeeesntseeeennaeeesnreaeans
Ko CAllIN 10 WOTK ettt ettt st s bt e s bt e n e et e e e s b e e s b e e r e e neesnesmeesmeenree st enneeas
L. Shift DIffErEntial Pay ... ..oueiieiii ettt et e e e e e et a e e e e e e eeebasaeeeaaeseaassbeaeaeseeannnsbaneaaeaannns
M. OUL OF Class ASSIZNMENTS....ccciiiiiiiiiiieeeeeecitiee e e e e eeeieteeeeeeeeesbteeeeeeeeesaabasaeeaaeeeaasssaeseaaesaaasssaansaassenasssaneaaesanes

17

17

18

18



ARTICLE 9 - SEPARATION FROM SERVICE /TERMINATION .......ccovtiirtrinrnartnssrnssinsssnessssssssssssssssssssssasssssssasssssssssssasns 23
Y Y=Y oF- 1 =Y Lo T W Xill 0] o] Fo V70 0 =T o PSSR 23
B.  RedUCLIONS iN WOIKFOICE ...ceiiiiiiiiiiiieee ettt et ettt e s e e bt e s b e e sbee s beeesneesane 24

ARTICLE 1 — GENERAL INFORMATION ......citiieuiiiiiiiiitinniiiiiiireesessisissrrssssssssissssressssssssisssmessssssssssssssssssssssssssssenns 25
N ol o] o 1 I ST SRR TS TP 25
5 474 o o T8 YNV R 26
C.  Equal EMPloyment OPPOrtUNity ....c..eeeccieeeeeieeeeeieeescieeeesteeeeieeeeestteeeesseaeeessseeessseeeesnssessssssssesnnseeessnsenessnnes 27

ARTICLE 2 — EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION ......ccottiiiiunniiisneeiiisteisisnnesssssnessssssnesssssseessssssesssssssesssssssessssssesssssnsens 27
A, EMPIOYMENT CAtEBOIIES ooieiiiiiiieiee ettt e ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e e s baaaeeaeeeeeatabaeeaaeeeaasssaeseaesseasssaassaassennsnsens 27
B.  FUII TIME EMPIOYEES .....ettiieeeee ettt ettt e e e e ee e e e e e e e et a e e e e e eeesabaaaeeeeeeeeassasaesaaaesaasssaaneaassenanssbaneaaenannns 28
C.  Part-Time Year-Round Employees (1,000+ ROUIS/YEAI) ......ccuieeueeirieeieeeeeeeee et cee e eereeetre e ereesaveeeareenanes 28
[ R - T o Y0 s 1ol = o] o] [0 1 =TT U UUUPN 28
I =] 1 0] oA XY o] (o V7Y RN 28
F. [N\ ToY o B o =T 0] o1 Al '] o] (o V7Y <SSPt 29
G. Nepotism (EMployment Of REIATIVES) ......ceiiciiii ettt s e e et e e e s tae e e sante e e snreeeesnsaeeeannes 29

1. Definitions 29
2. Prohibition Against Nepotism and Fraternization 30
3. Enforcement of Policy 30
4. Procedure: Applicants 31
5. Current Employees 31
6. Violation of Policy 31

ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE .......cccocetiiiittiiiiuteiiisnneiiisneesisseessssseessssssesssssssesssssseessssssesssssssesssssssessssssesssssssens 31
A, JUrY DULY @Nd WITNESS LBAVE .....vviiiceiieeccieee ettt ettt e ettt e e e te e e st e e e e bt eeeeataeesansseeesnsseeeanntaeeeansaneesnnseneans 32
2 T N1 (=N O i i (o] gAY o ) 4 [ Y-S U UUURN 33
C.  Volunteer Civil SErVICE PersONNEL....cc.ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiete ettt ettt e be e e sab e e sbe e e saneenees 33
D.  WOrKers’ COMPENSAtION ...cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiei e ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e st e e e e e e eeesabaaaeeaaaeeaassssaeeeaaesaaassssaseaassaaansssaneaaesanes 33
B, SCROOI ACTIVITIES ..ttt s e bt bt et e e s b e s b e r e e r e e anesaeesreenreenneenre e 35



F. EMPIOYEE LItEracy ASSISTANCE .. .ciiiciiieiiiieeeciiie e ettt e et e e sttt e e e ette e e s sateeeestaeeeesseeesanseeeesssseeeestesesanseeeeasseeennnes 35
G.  Family Care and MEdICal LEAVE ........ceiiiiiieeiiiecceee ettt e et e e et e e e s tae e e e ate e e ssbeeessntaeeeanseaeesnraeesanseeenannns 35
1. Definitions 35
2. Reasons for Leave 36
3. Employees Eligible for Leave 36
4. Amount of Leave 37
5. Minimum Duration of Leave 37
6. Benefits While on Leave 37
7. Substitution of Paid Accrued Leaves 38
8. Employer’s Right to Require Employee to Use Paid Accrued Leaves Concurrently with Family
Leave 38
9. Employee Notice of Leave 38
10. Medical Certification 39
11. Intermittent Leave or Reduced Schedule Leave 39
12. Reinstatement on Return from Leave 40
[ T Y 1 1 =Y oY =Y 1Y T USSP 40
I LY T T A =Y Y1 Y =T 1RSSRt 41
J. MIlItary CAr@ZIVEI LEBAVE ....eeeieiiieeeceeeeeetee ettt et e ettt e e st e e et ee e e s eateeeesataeeeesnteeesnsaeeeansaeeeansteeesnsaeaeansreeennnes 41
K. QUAlIfYING EXIGENCY LEAVE...citiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt ettt st sae e bt e s bt e sba e e bt e s beeesbeesabaesbeesbaesnseesane 41
L. Leave to Care for Covered ServiCemMEMDEN ......c..iocuiriirierieiece ettt e sne e 41
M.  Pregnancy DiSability LEAVE ..........uuiiiiii ettt e e e e et e e e e e e e e bae e e e e e e e seeabbaeeeaeeeeanntaaneaaeaaanns 41
1. Certification from Health Care Provider: 41
2. Use of Sick Leave 42
3. Use of Additional Accrued Paid Leave 42
4. State Disability 42
5. Health Benefits During PDL Leave 42
6. PDL Concurrent with FMLA Leave 42
7. Return to Work 43




Seniority 43

Coordination of PDL with Family/MediCal LEAVE..........cccueeeuiieiiiieiieciee ettt et e et eere e etaesree s baeeanee s 43
Victims of Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault or CrmMeE LEAVE ....cooevvviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 43
Organ and Bone Marrow DONAtioN LEAVE .........ceieciiiiiiiiieecie e eeteseetee et e e e ette s e eae e e eate e e esntaeeesnnaaeeenneeaean 44
SICK LAV ...ttt ettt st bt e h e bttt a e a e bRt et e et et see e she e Rt e n e et aeesne e reereen 44
Leave of ADSENCE WILNOUL PAY ........oiiiiiiieeeee ettt e et e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e eeeanbaeeeeeeseenstraaeaaaeeanns 45
Reservation of Right Dy the DiStriCt.......cccuiiiiiie et e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e aabreeeeeaeeanns 46
ARTICLE 4 - BENEFITS ...oeeeeniiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiinnreeaessisssn s e s aaasssss st s s s assssssss s s e s aassssssssssssssssssssssssresnssssssssssseesnsssssssssssnnnn 46
FEAEral SOCIAl SECUNILY ACt..iiiiiiieieiiiieiiiiee e eee et e et e e e e e e ee e e s s e e e e stseeeesteeesnseeeeassseeeestseesansneeeansreeennnes 46
California Public Employee Retirement System (CalPERS) ......ccooeuiiiiicieie e evee e e e s ereee e 46
Deferred ComPeNSation 457 PIan.........cuiiiiiiiiiiccieeecee e eee et e e e e e e st e e e e ate e e ssnsaeeesssaeeeesteeessnseeeesnsseeennes 47
TS [ Lol l o o < 2= 1 41U PPPPPTPPR 47
UNEMPIOYMENT INSUFANCE ..eiiiiiiiiiieiee ettt e ee ettt e e e e e e sttt e e e e e e e e e bbaaeeaaeeseasasaeeeaaeseassssaseaaeseaasnsraneaassanen 47
Other EMPloyee Paid BENEFitS ... .t et e e e e e et r e e e e e e e aaa e e e e e e esnbaaaeaeans 48
Employee and Family DISCOUNTS .......uiiiiiiieiiiiee e et e ettt e e ettt e e et eeeseteeeestteeesnseeessnsaeeesnsseeeessseessnseeessssesennnes 48
Training Programs, Seminars, Conferences, Lectures, Meetings or Other Outside Activities............cccecu...... 48
Compensation During Travel Away From the DiSTriCt .......ccccuiieieiiii e eeee e e et e e e ereee s 49
EdUucational ASSISTANCE PrOZIamMi......ccii i i ceiiiieiee e ceecttte e e e e et e e e e e e e ettre e e e e e e eeetaeaeeeaaeeeeanssaseeaeseasantraneaassannes 49
Americans With Disabilities ACt........coouiiiiiiiiiiiie et st s 49
ARTICLE 5 - MANAGEIVIENT ......oiiittiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiisirrreeseiissirrsasssssssstrreassssssissssrrssssssssssssseesssssssssssseesssssssssssssenns 50
Names and Addresses; EMErgeNCY CONTACES.....cccvuuiiiiiuieeeeiieeeecieeeestteeesstreeessseeeessnseeeessseseesssesessnseeessssesennnes 50
Solicitation and Distribution Of LItErature .........coeevieririiieeceeee e 50
Y 0] Lo A o] o Tolole I o e Yo [ ot £ SRR 51
Lo [ S o =S URUPUTN 51
Use Of RESOUICES @NA PIrOPEITY ....uviiiiiiiieiiiiiiiee e e ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e ettte e e e e e e seetaeaeeeaaeseaanssaseeaeseasnnsraseaaaeennns 51
[0 aY o] [o1VZ=T gl o o] o I=T o Y U UPUTN 51

EMPIOYEE REFEIENCES ....vvviiiiiee ettt ettt e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e tbeaeeeaeeseasasbeeeaaeeeassssaseaaeseaasstraneaassanes 52



He  PeISONNEI FIlES .ttt st st st s bttt et s ee e s b e e b e e e e reesnesaeesreenree st ennens 52
ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT ......cccctiiisunriiissneiiisssneisssssnssssssnessssssssssssssssssssssessssssesssssssesssssssesssssssssssssness 53
P AV 0T o Yot dUF- | [ VA=Y o e I N =T o To F=Y Vol IR U PUPPRRRRRE 53
B.  Prohibit@d CONUUCT.......uiiiiiiiieee et ettt et e et bt e s be e e bt e sbeesbee s beeenneenane 54
C. Dress Code and Other Personal Standards..........ooeeiiiiiiiiiiiieeee et 55
[ TR @ 4 o T0 ) 4V Y oo [ RN 55
E. Professional LOZO / CasUal AtLire......c.eciiieiieeeiie et eciee st et e s teestve e steesabeestaesabeesabaesabessabaesaseesaseesnsessnseesnsenan 55
F.  CUSTOMEI REIGLIONS. ..ttt sttt ettt s b e s b e r e e e e e saeesreenreeneenneeas 56
(T @1 o} o 1= oY d =1 1 1Y AU SUUU 56
H.  Outside BUSiNess O EMPIOYMENT .....cciii ittt e e et e e e e e e eeaer e e e e e e s e s aabbeeeeeeseenntbaneaaesannns 56
1. Definition: 57
2. Procedures for Requesting Authorization for Outside Business or Employment: ...........c.cccueuee.. 57

l. CONTIICES Of INTEIEST ... st sr ettt et s b e b e b e e re s nesaeesaeesreenneenneens 58
1. Form 700 — Statement of Economic Interests 58
3. Personal Use of District Contractors 59
J. i Yolol=] o) - [ o Lol <IN o ] ) i 3SR 59
K.  Public Records Act, GOvernment COAE 86253 ......cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt 59
L. BuSinNess CONAUCE @Nd ELNICS ....eeveiiiiiiiieiieieeeetee ettt sttt seeesreeneenne e 60
1. Conduct 60
2. Dishonest Acts 60
3. Abiding by the Law 60
4. Conducting Non-District Business 60
M. NEWS IMEAIA CONTACES ...eeiuiiiiiiiiiieiiie ettt sttt ettt e bt e e bt e s b e e e bt e s b e e e bt e s beeebeesabeeebeesabeeeaneesane 60
N.  Drug and AlCONOI ADUSE ....cooiiiiieee ettt e e e e et e e e e e e st b b e e e e e eeeeebasaeeeaaeseaassaaseaeeeeaansssaneaaeaannes 61
1. Policy 62
2. Application 62
3. Employee Responsibilities 63




ARTICLE 7 — WAGES; PAYROLL ........

A.

Management Responsibilities and Guidelines

Physical Examination and Procedure

Results of Drug and/or Alcohol Analysis

Confidentiality

Anti-Harassment, Discrimination, and Abusive CoNdUCE POIICY ....ccuueveeciiie it

Harassment; Discrimination

Sexual Harassment

Mandatory Training

Reporting and Investigating Complaints of Discrimination or Harassment

Additional Resources

Retaliation

Workplace Violence

Sexual Assault, Domestic Violence & Stalking

Abusive Conduct and Bullying

WWOIK SCREAUIES ...t et sttt s bt e s it e s bt e s ab e e s st e e e bt e e sabeesnbeesaneennteesaneenees
Alternative WOrk SCREAUIE — 9/80........uiiieeiee ettt ettt e e st e e e st e e e s eaaeeessbbeessntaeessnnaeas
TIMEKEEPING REGUIFEMENTS .......uiiiieeiieeiiiieee e ettt e e e e e e st e e e e e e e e e tabreeeeaeseaasabaeeaeaeseasssaaseaeesansssssesesessannnsrens
AdMINISTrative Pay COMTECLIONS .....uiiiciiiieeiiieeciieeeeere e ettt e et e e e st e e e esstaeeessteeeesasseeeansaeesssseseesnsseeessnsseessnsnns
PAYMENT Of WAEES ... .eiii ettt e ettt e et e e e st e e et te e e s s teeeesatseeeesnseeesnsaaeeassseeeanstseesnnseeaeansreeannnes
LYY o LI =TT o L3RRSt
UNCIAIMEA/LOSE PAYCRECKS .....vveiiiieciieecieecie ettt sttt et s e e st e e s te e st e e sbaesateesabaesabeesabaesareesnseesnsessnseennsenan
DT =Tot B I=Y oo 1Y 1 ARt
Pay for Mandatory Meetings / TIraiNiNG ....cceccvveeeireeeireeeireeereeeiteeeteeeeteeereesereeebeesbeeeabessbeeeasessbeessessseesreean
Overtime for NON-EXEMPT EMPIOYEES ....ccci ittt ettt e e ettt e e e e e e e et b e e e e e e e e e nbbaseeaeeeesnssareaeens
MEal AN RESE PEIIOTS ...ttt sttt ettt st r e n e e n e saeesmeesneenreeneenneens

Business EXPense REIMBDUISEMENT .....cccuiiiiiiiiieceiieecctiee e tee e et e e et e e e st e e e seaeaeessnsaeeesnsaeeeenseeessnseeaeansseeennnes

64

65

65

66

66

66

67

68

68

68

69

69

70

70



1Y R Yo A7 1 s ol <L OO OOUETRN 75

ARTICLE 8 - HEALTH AND SAFETY ..ccoiiiiittiiisiuneiiiseneiissnessisssnessssssessssssnessssssssssssssssssssssessssssesssssssesssssssesssssssssssssnes 76
YT | 1Y AV o] [ oy U PUUPRRRNE 76

S T Y Y (=Y AV I =Y [ 011 o = U UUPRN 76
B, HEAE HIINESS ettt et et b e e bt e b et e bt e b et e he e e be e e bee s bae e bt e s baeenneeeane 76
C.  SeCUrity/WOrKPIace VIOIENCE .....cccuvieiieeitieeiee ettt ettt ettt e e tb e e s tae e ta e e s aae e tbeesaaeessbeessseesbeesaseensseesaseensns 76
D. Recreational ActiVities aNd PrOgramS......c..uiiiiiiieieiie et ettt e ree et e e et e e e sata e e e sastaeessaseeeesssaeeeannseeesnreaeans 77
E. INClemMENt Weather/NatUral DiSASTrS.....cccuueiieeeiieeiriieieeeeeseeererteeeeessesaareeeeesssssssrteeeessesssssseeseesssssssressessssnsns 77
1. Inclement Weather 77

2. Natural Disasters 77

F. L ={o] aToT o o1 ol PP PTPPPTPPPPPRPRE 78
G. Employees Who Are REQUITEA 10 DIFIVE ....ccccuuiiiieiieecciieeeeeiteesetee e et e e e stre e e sateeesnteeeesstaeeesnssaeesnseeessnsseesannns 78
3. District Vehicles 78

4. Private Vehicle Use 78

H.  Use Of Cell PRONE WHIIE DIIVING ...uviiiiiieieiiieee ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e etatae e e e e e seeaabaeseaeeseannstaaneaaeeennes 79
INDEX .ceiiiuueeiiiineiiiiieeiiiiieeiiisaeeiissssessssssesssssseessssssessessssesssssstesssssseessssssesssssseesssssstessssasesssssssesssssstessssasessssnnesssns 80

EMPLOYEE COPY ....ortiitiiiiiiiintititininsnneieessisssssneteessssssssssnstessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssnssssssssssssssnnssessssssans 81







ARTICLE 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION

A. Purpose and Intent

It is the purpose of this Employee Manual (Manual) is to establish a system of
uniform and appropriate personnel policies and procedures which will provide the Pleasant
Valley Recreation and Park District with a productive, efficient, stable and representative
workforce by incorporating the following principles:

Recruiting, selecting and advancing employees on the basis of their relative
ability, education, training, knowledge, and skills relevant to the work to be
performed and providing progressive employment programs which
encourage and support employee development.

Establishing and maintaining a uniform plan of classification and pay based
upon the relative duties and responsibilities of positions.

Assuring fair treatment of applicants and employees in all aspects of
personnel administration without discrimination based on race, color, sex,
age, religion, national origin, political affiliation, marital status, sexual
orientation or disability with proper regard for their privacy and constitutional
rights.

Establishing ethical standards of conduct required of employees which will
promote the proper operation.

B. Scope

This Manual shall govern and affect personnel administration for employees of the
Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District, unless otherwise specified below:

Board of Directors of the Pleasant Valley Recreation & Park District
General Manager
General Counsel

Volunteer personnel who provide services to the District without receiving
compensation (although such persons may receive reimbursement for
actual expenses incurred in the service of the District)

Outside and independent contractors, engaged to provide expert,
professional, technical or other services

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | Article 1 — GENERAL INFORMATION



e Regular employees who have entered into a written employment
agreement with the District, unless otherwise specified in the employment
agreement

e Article 7 — SEIU Represented Employee Discipline; this article contains
rules and polices observed by those employees who are represented by
SEIU Local 721

The manual shall also not supersede any local, State, or Federal statues, rules,
and/or regulations. To the extent that this Manual conflicts or is inconsistent with any
applicable local, State, or Federal law, the terms and conditions of said local, State, or
Federal law shall apply over this Manual.

In addition, employees can refer to the Personnel Policy and Procedure Manual for
further information regarding their employment rights and obligations, to the extent such
information is not addressed in this Manual.

C. Right to Revise

This Manual provides employment policies and practices for employees of the
District in effect at the time of publication. All previously issued manuals or handbooks and
any inconsistent policy statements or memoranda distributed prior to this Manual are
superseded.

The General Manager is authorized to issue written administrative orders to
establish procedures and practices for administration of all District personnel system and
to interpret or clarify any provisions of the Manual.

The District reserves the right to revise, modify, delete, or add to any and all policies,
procedures, work rules, or benefits stated in this Manual or in any other document.
However, any such changes must be in writing and must be signed by the General
Manager and approved by the Board of Directors of the District.

Any changes to this Manual will be distributed in writing to all affected employees so
that employees will be aware of the new policies or procedures. No oral statements,
representations, or conduct can in any way alter the provisions of this Manual.

Except as provided by law or local regulation, this Manual sets forth the entire
agreement between employees and the District as to employment with the District. Nothing
in this Manual or in any other personnel document, including benefit plan descriptions,
creates or is intended to create a promise or representation of continued employment for
any employee. District employees, including unrepresented employees, remain employed
at-will at all times.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | Article 1 — GENERAL INFORMATION



D. At-Will Employment

All District personnel are employed on an at-will basis and may be terminated with
or without cause and with or without notice at any time by the District. Nothing in this
Manual shall limit the right to terminate at-will employment. No Superintendent, Manager,
Supervisor, or employee of the District has any authority to enter into an agreement for
employment for any specified period of time or to make an agreement for employment on
other than at-will terms. Only the Board of Directors of Pleasant Valley Recreation and
Park District have the authority to make any such agreement with the General Manager,
which is binding only if it is in writing and signed by both parties.

ARTICLE 2 - EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION

A. Exempt Employees

An exempt employee based on duties and responsibilities, does not fall under certain
wage and time requirements of federal and state regulations. An exempt employee does
not receive overtime or compensatory time off. Exempt employees are required to record
their hours worked on a timecard.

B. Non- Exempt Employees

A nonexempt employee is one who is paid on the basis of hours worked per pay
period and who receives compensation for overtime. Nonexempt employees are required
to record their hours worked on a time clock and/or timecard. All employees, unless
notified otherwise by management, are nonexempt.

C. Introductory Period - New Hires & Promotional Appointments

The purpose of the probationary period is to train, observe and evaluate the
employee. During this time, an employee will learn their responsibilities, get acquainted
with fellow co-workers, and their employer will determine whether or not they are satisfied
with the employee performance. Their direct Supervisor will closely monitor their
performance. The Supervisor will conduct a performance review at the conclusion of the
90-day introductory period. Employees within their introductory period do not receive
District benefits unless stated in this Manual.

During the introductory period, full time and part time year-round employees are
eligible for health insurance, paid holidays upon hire date, and accrue vacation and sick
time. After the 90-day introductory period, an employee may utilize their accrued vacation
and sick time. Throughout the introductory period they may not make use of any accrued
leave including vacation, sick, jury duty, bereavement and any other special days.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 2 — EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION



D. Re-Hires

Former employees may be considered for rehire provided they left employment with
the District in good standing and meet all qualifications of the current open position they
are seeking. If they are rehired after 90 days, they will not retain credit for length of service
for the purpose of calculating vacation and sick leave accrual and anniversary awards.

If the length of time since the end of employment is greater than 30 days the persons
under consideration for rehire will be required to complete a new drug, tuberculosis and
alcohol screen, physical, references and fingerprint clearance.

Employees who are on any type of leave of absence, work-related or non-work-
related, or after completing the work assignment for the season for which they were hired,
will be placed on an inactive status. During the time the employee is on inactive status,
benefits such as vacation and sick leave benefits by the District will not be earned or
continued, and seniority will not continue to accrue. Health insurance will continue under
certain circumstances as detailed in the Leaves of Absence policies.

ARTICLE 3 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE

The District may grant leaves of absence to employees in certain circumstances and
as applicable with Federal and State labor laws and regulations. Prompt notice of any
change in anticipated return date is requested. Failure to return to work as scheduled at
the end of a leave may be considered abandonment of employment and voluntary
resignation by the employee to the extent permitted by law.

Employees who report less than their regularly scheduled hours due to a leave of
absence or other time off will accrue leave on a prorated basis.

Employees should contact the Administrative Services Manager or designee for
further information.

A. Vacation

The District supports and encourages the use of vacation to provide opportunities
for rest, relaxation, and personal pursuits. Vacation time off with pay is available to all
regular full time and part time year-round employees. Active service commences with an
employee’s first day of work and continues thereafter unless broken by an extended period
of leave, including absence without pay, a paid leave of absence, or termination of
employment. Actual accrued vacation time must be sufficient to cover any requested
vacation time off before it can be taken, and vacation leave will not be advanced or paid
in lieu of taking actual time off.

It is the mutual responsibility of the employee and his/her Supervisor to assure that
no employee shall exceed said maximum accrual. There shall be no further accrual once
an employee's maximum hours have been reached. If accrued but unused vacation leave

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



reaches the maximum, vacation leave shall cease to accrue until such time as leave falls
below the maximum accrual limit.

For each pay period vacation will accrue in accordance with the following schedule,

subject to the accrual limitations and ﬁolicies.

Years of Service Accrual Rate Accrual Max Accrual Cap
Per Pay Period Hours per Year (Annual Hours)

0-5 Years 3.08 80 160

6-8 Years 3.85 100 200

9-12 Years 4.62 120 240

13-15 Years 5.38 140 280

15(+) Years 6.15 160 320

Years of Service Accrual Rate Accrual Max Accrual Cap
Per Pay Period Hours per Year (Annual Hours)

0-5 Years 2.31 60 80

6-8 Years 2.89 75 100

9-12 Years 3.47 90 120

13-15 Years 4.04 105 140

15(+) Years 4.61 120 160

Vacation begins to accrue the first payroll period of employment but no accrued
vacation time may be used by new or rehired employees until completion of 90 days of
continuous service. Leave may be used in increments of one (1) hour or more. Exempt
employees absent for three (3) hours or more in a workday will have the corresponding
amount of time deducted from their accrued vacation.

Current accrued vacation is reflected on pay stubs. If an error has been made on an
employee’s vacation accrual, it should be immediately reported to payroll for a correction
or explanation.

Supervisors shall respond to a written request for vacation within five (5) business
days from the date in which the employee provides their direct Supervisor the request.
Upon the request of the employee, the Supervisor shall confirm, in writing, the granting or
denial of the request with the reason for the denial. The District will attempt to
accommodate each vacation request; however; the District reserves the right to deny
employee vacations if required by business necessity. Vacation schedules should be
coordinated a minimum of two (2) weeks in advance and approved by a Supervisor.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



Seniority and annual rotation may be taken into consideration when resolving
schedule conflicts. The General Manager will make final determinations on disputes over
time off requests.

An employee whose employment terminates (including employees in their
introductory period) will be paid for accrued unused vacation days.

B. Management Leave

It is recognized that exempt employees will work additional hours as needed to meet
the demands of their position without receiving additional compensation for such hours.
The District allows regular exempt employees the ability to accrue twenty (20) hours of
additional management leave per quarter to be used at the employees’ discretion with the
General Manager’s or Department Manager’s approval.

The 20 hours will be accrued the first pay dates in January, April, July and October.
The maximum accrual cap is 20 hours per quarter, and quarterly accruals will be reduced
by balance carried over from the previous quarter, not to exceed earnings of 80 hours
annually.

Exempt employees are required to perform a minimum of four (4) hours of work per
day; if less than four (4) hours of work per day is performed it is expected that the employee
record their time not worked as management leave or one of the other appropriate leave
types. If the exempt employee works anything other than their normal work day it is
expected that they receive approval from the General Manager or designee.

C. Sick Leave

Sick leave is a benefit that full time and part time year-round employees accumulate
in order to provide a cushion for incapacitation due to iliness. It is intended to be used only
when actually required to obtain medical assistance or recover from illness or injury or
other reasons allowed by law. Sick leave is not for “personal” time off or other absences.

Sick Leave shall be used for the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health
condition of, or preventive care for, an employee or an employee’s family member or for
an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as provided
below. For the purpose of this section, an employee’s “family member” includes: (i) a
spouse; (ii) a registered domestic partner; (iii) regardless of age or dependency status, a
biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, legal ward, or a child to whom the employee
stands in loco parentis; (iv) a biological, adoptive, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal
guardian of an employee or the employee’s spouse or registered domestic partner, or a
person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child; (v) a grandparent;
(vi) a grandchild; or (vii) a sibling. Accrued sick leave may be used in increments of one
quarter (1/4) hour increments or more.

In cases of diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition of, or
preventive care for, an employee’s family member, up to one-half of the employee’s sick

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE




leave accrual for the year (up to 48 hours) can be used to attend to a family member.
Additional family sick leave usage for special circumstances may be granted on a case-
by-case basis in the discretion of the General Manager.

In cases of an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or
stalking, the employee may use sick leave to obtain any relief or services related to being
such a victim, including but not limited to: (i) a temporary restraining order; (ii) other
injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety or welfare of themselves or their children;
(iii) seeking medical attention for injuries caused by domestic violence, sexual assault, or
stalking; (iv) obtaining services from a domestic violence shelter, program, or rape crisis
center as a result of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking; (v) obtaining
psychological counseling related to an experience of domestic violence, sexual assault, or
stalking; (vi) participation in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from
future domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, including temporary or permanent
relocation. The District shall require certification for use of sick leave for unscheduled
absences under this subparagraph C.

Every regular full-time employee shall accrue sick leave at the rate of 3.69 hours per
pay period. Employees in regular positions budgeted less than eighty (80) hours per pay
period shall receive sick leave accumulation on a pro-rata basis.

Paid sick leave shall continue to accrue during any period of leave with pay, including
sick leave. Leave will accrue at a prorated rate if any part of the leave becomes unpaid.
There shall be no cap on the number of sick leave hours an employee may accumulate
for illness.

Employees in this classification will receive twenty-four (24) hours of sick leave upon
completion of six pay periods (84 calendar days). Beginning the seventh pay period
employees will accrue sick leave at 2.76 hours per pay period.

Paid sick leave shall continue to accrue during any period of leave with pay, including
sick leave. Leave will accrue at a prorated rate if any part of the leave becomes unpaid.
There shall be no cap on the number of sick leave hours an employee may accumulate
for illness.

Temporary or Seasonal Employees shall receive twenty-four (24) hours of sick leave
upon completion of six pay periods (84 calendar days). Beginning their second year of
employment the employee will receive an additional twenty-four (24) hours, not to exceed
forty-eight (48) hours.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



If an employee performs his/her duties for part of a working day, he/she shall be
credited with those hours worked and charged sick leave only for those hours not worked
for reason of illness or injury. Sick leave must be used in one quarter (1/4) hour increments.
Sick leave can only be charged to days the employee was scheduled to work.

A doctor’s certificate or other adequate proof shall be provided by the employee in
all cases of absence due to iliness of three (3) consecutive days or more.

The Department Manager or designee must be notified not later than one hour prior
to the start of the employee’s scheduled tour of duty. It is the responsibility of the employee
to keep the Department Manager or designee informed as to the continued absence
beyond the first day. If the need for leave is unforeseeable, the employee shall provide
notice as soon as possible

Accumulated sick leave shall have no cash value for any employee who terminates
for any reason prior to the completion of five (5) years of service with the District.
Employees who terminate after the completion of five years of employment shall be
compensated at the rate of twenty five percent (25%) and limited to 500 hours and
employees with 10 years and over of service will be compensated at a rate of fifty percent
(50%) and limited to 1,000 hours. The cash value compensation is based upon salary in
effect at the time of Termination.

Upon retirement, accumulated sick leave will be converted to retirement benefit
credits, with no cash value, in accordance with terms and conditions of the District contract
with the Public Employees' Retirement Systems (PERS).

D. Compensatory Time Off

Full Time employees may accrue compensatory time off hours in lieu of being paid
overtime for all worked overtime hours, with approval of their Supervisor. Compensatory
time off is accrued at one- and one-half times the regular pay rate of the employee.
Approval to work compensatory time must be approved by a Supervisor prior to working.
The District has a cap of 80 hours on accrued compensatory balances. No additional
compensatory time may be accrued until such hours fall below the maximum allowable
accumulation. Employees who cannot accrue additional compensatory time off will be paid
for overtime as required by law.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



In the event that an employee is promoted, all compensatory time will be paid to the
employee on the final paycheck of their previous position.

The granting, recording, and taking of compensatory time off shall be in accordance
with established vacation/time off procedures.

E. Bereavement Leave

In the event of a verified death in an employee's family, upon request, the District
shall grant a full-time employee up to three (3) days and a part-time year-round employee
up to eighteen (18) hours of bereavement leave, as provided below.

For the purpose of this Article, the term "family" shall be defined as spouse, child,
parent, sibling, grandparent, grandchild, parent of a spouse, registered domestic partner,
and parent of a registered domestic partner.

1. Bereavement leave will be paid at full pay for up to three (3) consecutive
work days for full-time employees or eighteen (18) consecutive hours for
part-time year-round employees and shall not be charged against the
employee's accrued vacation or sick leave.

2. When travel to a distant greater than 400 miles or other circumstances
require an absence longer than three (3) consecutive work days for full-time
employees or eighteen (18) consecutive hours for part-time year-round
employees, the District may allow the employee to use up to two (2) days
of accrued sick leave.

3. If the employee requests to take a cumulative leave of longer than five (5)
consecutive work days, the District may allow the use of accrued vacation
or compensatory time.

An employee desiring to attend a funeral of others than described above may be
given the time off, provided he/she so notified his/her Supervisor two (2) days in advance.
Upon concurrence and authorization of the Supervisor, he/she shall take the time off
against vacation, management or compensatory annual leave.

F. Personal Leave

A personal leave of absence without pay may be granted at the discretion of the
District General Manager or designee. Reasons for a leave may involve family
emergencies or extenuating circumstances not covered by other leaves of absence. Each
request for a leave of absence will be considered on a case-by-case basis. All accrued
vacation must be used before beginning a personal leave of absence. Requests for
personal leave should be limited to unique circumstances requiring an absence of no
longer than two (2) weeks.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



Employees will be required to make payment in advance as applicable for their
health, vision, and dental insurance coverage during the leave of absence as applicable.
Failure to make payment for coverage may result in cancellation of that coverage.

Requests for personal leave must be submitted in writing to, and approved by, the
General Manager.

The District cannot guarantee that the employee’s job will be held open for them until
they return from a leave. The District will make every effort to return an employee to the
same or a similar job; however, if no job opening exists for which they are qualified they
will be laid off for lack of work.

An employee on personal leave may not accept other employment while on leave.
If they do so, they may be subject to immediate termination.

Failure to return to work as scheduled at the end of a personal leave will be
considered abandonment of employment and voluntary resignation by the employee.

G. Emergency Leave Donations

Employees who meet established guidelines are only allowed to donate earned
vacation, comp-time, floating holiday, sick, Regular Day Off-Holiday (RDO-H) and
administrative hours to other employees for prolonged absences from work due to the
employee's serious injury or prolonged iliness.

Such donations of paid time off may be permitted under the following conditions:
The Department Manager must approve, in advance, the donation.

¢ Any eligible employee wishing to receive such donations must complete the
Request for Paid Time off Donations Form. The form must be signed by the
employee and approved by the requesting employee's Department Head.

e Upon approval of an employee's request for donated time, the Human
Resources personnel may, if requested to do so by the employee, post a
notice of the need for leave donations for the affected employee.

e Any eligible employee who wishes to donate vacation, comp-time and/or
floating holiday hours to an employee whose request for such donated time
has been approved, must complete the Authorization for Paid Time Off
Donations Form. This form must be signed by the donating employee and
submitted to Human Resources or designee.

e The donating employee must have a total of 120 hours of sick, vacation
and/or comp-time on the books after the time of hours donated.

Donations are entirely voluntary, and time is to be donated in whole hour increments.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



e The donated hours will be converted to a dollar equivalent and the
employee will receive it at his/her rate of pay.

e To be eligible, the receiving employee must have exhausted all paid leave,
or will foreseeably exhaust all such time (within the next week), due to his
or her personal serious injury or prolonged illness or a family member as
defined by Article 26.

e Any donated time remaining at the end of the employee's leave of absence
due to the injury or illness will be left in the bank for future requests.

ARTICLE 4 - BENEFITS

The District provides a comprehensive array of benefits. Further details regarding
the benefits set forth below can be obtained from the Administrative Services Department.

A. California Public Employee Retirement System (CalPERS)

The District makes contributions to each full time and part time year round
employees retirement through the California Public Employees’ Retirement Systems
(CalPERS) as of the date of hire and based on their wages. Employees are vested after
five years of service with the District. This benefit can be transferred only if the employee
goes to work for another public employer who also participates in CalPERS.

Part-time year-round employees may become eligible if they work over 1000 hours
in a fiscal year. See the Administrative Services Department for additional details. If an
employee terminates their employment with the District prior to completing five (5) years
of service, the employee is terminated from the CalPERS system and ineligible to receive
benefits from CalPERS.

According to guidelines established by CalPERS, all eligible employees must
participate in this program. Contributions to CalPERS will be made by the District and by
the employee in accordance to the guidelines established in the contracts and resolutions
of the District.

1. For employees with a hire date before March 31, 2011 the District is contracted
for a retirement formula of 2.5% @ 55 provided for by the Public Employees' Retirement
Law at Government Code section 21354 4.

a. Effective July 1, 2015, the employee's total contribution for classic members
shall be capped at 8% (PEPRA compliance).

b. All represented employees at 2.5% @ 55 will continue to pay 12% of which 8%
will be the Normal Cost (employee share) and 4% will be for the loan to enhance their
retirement. This will last until August 2022 or until the loan is paid off, whichever will happen
sooner. At that time these members would return to PEPRA compliance.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 4 - BENEFITS



2. For employees with a hire date after March 31, 2011 through December 31, 2012,
or classic PERS members (as defined by PERS) hired by the District on or after January 1,
2013, the District is contracted for a retirement formula of 2% @ 60 provided for by the
Public Employees’ Retirement Law at Government Code section 21353.

a. Employees with a hire date after March 31, 2011 through December 31, 2012,
or classic PERS members (as defined by PERS) hired by the District on or after January 1,
2013 will be responsible for paying a 7% employee contribution rate.

3. For employees with a hire date on or after January 1, 2013 who are new PERS
members, as defined by PERS, the District is contracted for a retirement formula of
2% @ 62 provided for by the Public Employees' Retirement Law at Government Code
section 7522.20(a).

a. Employees hired after January 1, 2013 who are also new PERS members (as
defined by PERS) will be responsible for paying the statutorily mandated employee
contribution rate of one half of the total normal cost per section code 20516.5 of the
California Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

B. Other Employee Paid Benefits

The District may make additional benefits available to employees at a cost.

C. Holidays

The District provides regular full-time employees 12 paid holidays on the days listed
below:

e New Year's Day — January 15t

e Martin Luther King Jr. Birthday — Third Monday in January
e Presidents’ Day — Third Monday in February

e Memorial Day — Last Monday in May

e Independence Day — July 4%

e Labor Day — First Monday in September

e Columbus Day — Second Monday in October

e Veterans Day — November 11

e Thanksgiving Day — Fourth Thursday in November

e Friday after Thanksgiving Day

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 4 - BENEFITS



e Christmas Eve Day- December 24t

e Christmas Day — December 25"

For most employees, if a holiday falls on Saturday, the holiday will be observed on
the Friday before, and holidays falling on Sunday will be observed on the Monday after.

1. Regular full-time non-exempt employees will receive straight time pay for
holidays. Paid holiday leave will be equal to the number of hours an
employee regularly would have been scheduled to work had it not been a
holiday.

2. Part-time Year-Round employees will receive straight time pay for holidays.
Paid holiday leave will be equal to 6 hours.

To receive holiday pay, they must work the normal work day immediately before and
after the holiday. If on approved leave (e.g., vacation) they will receive the holiday leave
pay and that day will not be counted against approved leave accrual.

If an unscheduled day off is taken, then they will not receive holiday pay, unless a
doctor’s note can be provided. A full-time employee who is required to work on a District
holiday shall be compensated at the rate of straight time for time actually worked. In no
event shall such an employee be compensated for working a fixed holiday in excess of
one and one-half (1 %) times the employee’s regular hourly rate of pay.

An employee must be in a normal regularly scheduled work status to receive holiday
pay. Management can change or modify any of the holidays based on business needs.
The District Administration Office is closed on the holidays listed above; however, other
facilities and programs may be open on a holiday.

If a fixed holiday falls on a full-time employee’s regularly scheduled workday, the
employee shall be entitled to their normal work schedule for holiday time off. If a fixed
holiday falls on an employee’s regularly scheduled day off, the full-time employee shall be
entitled to their regularly scheduled workday of holiday compensatory time. Holiday
compensatory time must be used within 60 days. Upon termination or retirement,
employees shall be compensated for any unused accrued holiday time at the then current
regular hourly rate of pay.

D. Recording Expenses Incurred

Please refer to the PVRPD Travel Policy.

E. Educational Assistance Program

The District recognizes that the skills and knowledge of its employees is critical to
the success of the organization. The educational assistance program encourages
personal development through formal education to maintain and improve job-related skills

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 4 - BENEFITS




or enhance the ability to compete for reasonably attainable jobs within the District.
Educational assistance is contingent on the annual budget of the District and its allocation
for such educational purposes.

1.

The District will provide educational assistance to regular full-time
employees who have completed one year of employment with the District.
Program criteria and funding are at the discretion of the District, and subject
to change annually.

To maintain eligibility, an employee must remain on the active payroll
and be performing their job satisfactorily through completion of each
course. All courses are to be taken at a time that does not interfere with
the District operations. Veterans eligible for education benefits from the
Federal Government or the State of California must maximize such
benefits before applying for reimbursement under this program.

The courses shall directly relate to the employee’s current job duties; or
any course, including outside-the-major electives, required for a degree
or certificate in the field either directly related to the employee’s current
duties, or a field in which the employee would have reasonable
expectation of being promoted to while employed with the District.

2. Eligible employees will be reimbursed for 75 % of their cost for tuition and

books for each semester for a maximum of $1,200 per fiscal year.

An outline of the course(s) and written approval from the General
Manager prior to registration must be submitted.

Transcripts showing completion of the course with a passing grade of a
“C” where letter grades of “A” to “F” are used, or successful completion
defined as “pass” for a “pass/fail” course are required to be submitted.

Receipts for tuition and books must be submitted within 30 days of
course completion.

3. Employees must remain with the District for a minimum of one year after

the completion date of any course for which Educational Assistance Funds
were received. If they leave prior to one year, they will have 30 days from
resignation or termination to reimburse the District for all educational
financial assistance received. The District will pay the licensing fee
whenever an employee is required to obtain a certificate, license or
endorsement in order to carry out the duties assigned. The District will

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 4 - BENEFITS



reimburse one time for the costs associated with successfully obtaining the
certificate, license or endorsement.

For more information contact the Administrative Services Department.

ARTICLE 5 - MANAGEMENT

A. Performance Evaluations

Each employee will receive periodic performance reviews conducted by his or her
Supervisor. The first performance evaluation should take place approximately after the
completion of the 90-day introductory period. Subsequent performance evaluations will be
conducted annually (during the anniversary month of the employee’s employment with the
District, or month of last promotion). The frequency of performance evaluations may vary
depending upon length of service, job position, past performance, changes in job duties,
or recurring performance problems. The Administrative Services Department will monitor
upcoming dates of performance evaluations and will notify Supervisors of performance
evaluations to be conducted.

Performance evaluations may review factors such as the quality and quantity of the
work performed, knowledge of the job, initiative, work attitude, and attitude toward others.
The performance evaluations are intended to make employees aware of their progress,
areas for improvement, and objectives or goals for future work performance. It is important
to remember that increases are not granted automatically and that each job classification
is assigned a salary range. Salary increases and promotions are solely within the
discretion of the District and depend upon many factors in addition to performance. After
the review, the employee will be required to sign the evaluation report simply to
acknowledge that it has been presented, discussed with their Supervisor, and that they
are aware of its contents.

B. Employee Property

An employee’s personal property brought onto District premises, including but not
limited to packages, purses, backpacks and vehicles, may be inspected upon reasonable
suspicion of unauthorized possession of District property or possession of unlawful
materials. Employees who do not wish to subject their property to search should not bring
it onto District premises.

C. Cell Phone Allowance / Stipend Policy

Full time and part time year-round employees whose job duties include the
requirement and frequent need for a cell phone will receive extra compensation, in the
form of a cell phone allowance/stipend, to cover business related costs.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 5 - MANAGEMENT



1. $30.00 per pay period given to management and other exempt staff with the
expectation that these employees will answer phone calls and respond to
urgent emails after hours.

2. $21.00 per pay period given to employees in a Supervisory/lead worker
capacity with the expectation that these employees will receive emergency
calls from staff after hours.

3. $14.00 per pay period given to staff members who may be away from their
desks or not provided a landline for extended business hours.

It is the intent of the District not to provide District owned cell phones. However,
should a department need to have a District owned cell phone, which would be shared by
staff in that department, the cell phone shall be used for District business only. Personal
use is prohibited on all District owned cell phones. If personal use occurs, disciplinary
measures will be implemented. The District may provide On-Call / Call Out cell phones to
be used per this section.

Employees receiving an allowance/stipend should consult with either the
Administrative Services Department or the designee prior to purchasing a phone to ensure
compatibility with District systems. The employee must maintain an active contract.

If an employee has an active contract and is receiving the allowance/stipend and
their cell phone is damaged and/or destroyed in the course of business, the District does
not reimburse the employee for replacement of the same or similar device. Use of the
phone in any manner contrary to local, state, or federal laws will constitute misuse and will
result in immediate termination of the cell phone allowance/stipend. The District does not
accept any liability for charges or disputes between the service provider and the employee.
If prior to the end of the cell phone contract period, an employee decides to cancel the
contract, or misconduct or misuse occurs, the employee will be responsible for any fees
charged by the provider.

D. Auto Allowance

Employees may be provided an auto allowance at the discretion of the General
Manager and based on their average mileage in a six (6) month period. Employees with
an auto allowance may be reviewed every two years or as needed.

ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

E. Disciplinary Action

Violation of the law, District policies and rules may warrant disciplinary action. The
District may, in its sole discretion, utilize whatever form of discipline is deemed appropriate
under the circumstances, in any order, including termination. The District’s disciplinary
policy in no way limits or alters the at-will employment relationship where the employee

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



may be terminated at any time with or without cause and is not subject to grievance or
appeal.

Any and all steps may be used in any order, at any time, or may be skipped entirely,
in the sole discretion of the District. Disciplinary actions may take one or more of the
following forms in any order:

e Counseling Session

e Verbal Warning

e Written Warning

e Probation

e Demotion

e Reduction in pay

e Suspension with or without pay

e Transfer or reduction in working hours
e Withholding of wage increase

e Termination

F. Open-Door Policy / Grievance Process

Suggestions for improving the District are always welcome. If an employee has a
complaint, suggestion, or question about their job, working conditions, or the treatment
they are receiving, excluding any disciplinary action, the following steps should be taken:

In order to minimize potential misunderstandings first discuss any problem, concern,
or grievance with the direct Supervisor. It is expected that any problem or grievance is
addressed as soon as possible after the occurrence of the problem. Supervisors will make
an effort to promptly investigate the matter and attempt to resolve the problem or provide
an explanation or, where warranted, propose a remedy within one week from the
occurrence, unless circumstances require a longer period.

If unsatisfied with the response or resolution by the Supervisor, the employee and
their Supervisor may request an appointment with the Supervisor’s direct report (Manager,
or General Manager) within ten (10) working days, as applicable. The Services Manager

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



or General Manager may then schedule an interview with the employee and attempt to
resolve the problem within a reasonable period of time.

Should an employee not receive an answer or resolution from his/her Supervisor or
Manager which is satisfactory to the employee, the employee may refer the matter to the
Administrative Services Manager for further review within ten (10) working days. The
Administrative Services Manager may then schedule a meeting with the employee and
attempt to investigate and resolve the matter within a reasonable period of time. If
assistance is needed with the complaint, or it is preferred to make a complaint in person,
contact the Administrative Services Manager. It is encouraged that employees bring the
matter up as soon as possible if the immediate Supervisor or Manager has failed to resolve
it.

If an employee remains unsatisfied with the response or resolution of the matter by
his/her Supervisor, Manager, and the Administrative Services Manager, the employee
may request an appointment with the General Manager of the District. The General
Manager may, in their discretion, then arrange an interview with the employee and attempt
to resolve the problem. The General Manager's decision will be considered final and
conclusive for all parties.

This procedure is important for both the employee and the District and it cannot be
guaranteed that every problem will be resolved to the employee’s satisfaction. However,
the District values observations and employees should feel free to raise issues of concern,
in good faith, without the fear of retaliation. This procedure does not alter the at-will nature
of employment with the District.

G. Conflict of Interest; Gifts; Gratuities; Political Activity Policy

Employees shall adhere to all applicable rules or polices and state law regarding
conflicts of interest, and shall not take part in, or attempt in any manner to influence the
consideration of any application, proceeding or other matter involving their own personal
property, real estate, investment or other interest, or that of any relative or close personal
acquaintance. In all such situations, the employee must disclose the nature of the
relationship to his or her immediate supervisor and request to be relieved of any
responsibility or involvement in such manner.

Employees shall not directly or indirectly solicit any gift or receive any gift whether
in the form of money, services, loan, travel, entertainment, hospitality, promise, or any
other form under circumstances which it could reasonably be inferred the gift was intended
to influence them or could be expected to influence them in the performance of their official
duties, or was intended as a reward for any official action on their part.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



(a) Gifts that will be shared with office staff, such as boxes of candy, flowers
and food, may be viewed as exceptions provided, they are of minimal value and do not
exceed limits imposed by law for gifts to public employees. All financial disclosure laws
and regulations must be complied with.

(b) An employee who is unsure of any questionable gifts or offers of gifts should
immediately report the matter to a Supervisor or the Administrative Services Department.

Political activities of all employees shall be governed by the applicable provisions of
State and Federal law.

ARTICLE 7 - SEIU REPRESENTED
EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE

Violation of the law, District policies and rules may warrant disciplinary action. The
District may impose disciplinary measures. The system is not formal and the District may,
in its sole discretion, utilize whatever form of discipline is deemed appropriate under the
circumstances, in any order. The District’s disciplinary policy in no way limits or alters the
at-will employment relationship.

Supervisors are expected to counsel, or give a warning regarding an employee’s
performance, conduct, attitude or for some other reason as needed. Supervisors will
document all disciplinary actions and employees are allowed to submit their own written
response. In certain cases, employees may be terminated without prior counseling or
warnings.

The individual circumstances, nature of the offense, and the employee's prior work
record may be used among other factors to determine the appropriate action to be taken.
While the District attempts to notify employees when their performance or behavior is
unsatisfactory, the District may elect to terminate any employee at any time depending on
the nature and/or seriousness of the infraction.

Any and all steps may be used in any order, at any time, or may be skipped entirely,
in the sole discretion of the District. Disciplinary actions may take one or more of the
following forms in any order:

i. Counseling Session
ii. Verbal Warning
iii. Written Warning

iv. Probation

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 7 — seiu represented employee
DISCIPLINE



v. Demotion
vi. Reduction in pay

vii. Suspension with or without pay

viii. Transfer or reduction in working hours
ix. Withholding of wage increase

x. Termination

1. Admonishment or Reprimand

Admonishment and reprimand represent the two mildest forms of disciplinary action
and neither type results in the loss of pay for the employee. These actions may be oral or
written and constitute only a warning to the employee that he is not satisfactorily fulfilling
the duties and responsibilities of their position. If the admonishment or reprimand is written
and a copy is sent to the Administrative Services Manager, it shall become part of the
employee's official personnel file. If a grievance is sustained then the written reprimand
shall be purged from the record. No record of an oral reprimand shall be placed in the
employee's official personnel file unless subsequent action is necessary. The Supervisor
shall, however, make note of the date, time and content of the warning. Such records shall
be made with full knowledge of the affected employee, evidenced by the employee's
signature and date.

2. Demotion/Reduction in Pay

The appointing authority may demote or reduce in pay any employee whose ability
to perform his required duties falls below standard, or for other disciplinary purposes. Such
demotion/reduction in pay may be for a specified period of time with the understanding
that the employee may be reinstated to the class from which he was demoted provided
that agreed upon conditions set by the appointing authority are met to the satisfaction of
the appointing authority. No employee shall be demoted to a position for which he does
not possess the minimum qualifications.

3. Suspension

The appointing authority may suspend a regular employee from his position at any
time for cause. The appointing authority may suspend an employee not to exceed twenty
(20) working days. No employee shall be penalized by suspension for more than twenty
(20) working days in any twelve (12) month period for disciplinary reasons. Suspensions
shall be reported immediately to the Administrative Services Manager.

4. Discharge

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 7 — seiu represented employee
DISCIPLINE



An employee may be discharged for cause at any time by the appointing authority.
Whenever it is the intention of the appointing authority to discharge an employee, the
Administrative Services Manger shall be notified. Any employee who has been discharged
shall be entitled to pre-disciplinary procedural due process.

ARTICLE 8 - WAGES

H. Payment of Wages

Paychecks are normally available by 4 p.m. every other Thursday at the
Administration Office as outlined on the District’s payroll schedule. Beginning July 14, 2016
paychecks will be mailed to the current mailing address on file; paychecks will no longer
be available for pick up.

I. Unclaimed/Lost Paychecks

Until July 14, 2016 if any paycheck is not picked up by the employee within seven
(7) days of the date issued, the check will be sent to the employee’s last known address.

Checks lost or otherwise missing should be reported immediately to Accounting so
that a “stop payment” order may be initiated. Management will determine when, and if, a
new check should be issued to replace a lost or missing check.

J. Overtime for Non-Exempt Employees

Employees may be required to work overtime as business necessities arise. For all
non-emergency needs, the District will provide as much advance notice as possible to the
employee of the need to work overtime as applicable with Federal and State laws. Only
actual hours worked in a given workday or workweek can apply in calculating overtime.
The District will attempt to distribute overtime evenly. All overtime work must be previously
authorized by a Supervisor. The District provides compensation for all overtime hours
worked by non-exempt employees in accordance with Federal law as follows:

All hours worked in excess of regularly scheduled hours in one workweek will be
treated as overtime. A standard regular workday begins at 12:01 a.m. and ends at midnight
24 hours later. The workweek begins Saturday at 12:01 a.m. and ends Friday at 11:59
p.m. Compensation for actual hours worked in excess of 40 worked hours for the
workweek shall be paid in accordance with applicable law at the rate of one-and-one-half
the employee’s regular rate of pay to the nearest quarter hour

Exempt employees may have to work hours beyond their normal schedules as work
demands require. No overtime compensation will be paid to exempt employees.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 8 - WAGES



K. Call in to Work

The District will pay a minimum of two hours of designated pay to employees who
are contacted by and required by their immediate Supervisor or Crew Lead to report to
work on a day other than their normally scheduled workday or after their normal workday
has ended. This may involve emergency situations.

L. Shift Differential Pay

The District’'s normal business hours range between 6:00 am to 10:00 pm, Saturday
through Friday. The District shall pay full time employees a shift differential of two-and-one
half (2°2%) percent for hours worked between 8:00 pm and 6:00 am.

M. Out of Class Assignments

If it is necessary to specifically assign in writing an employee all of the significant
duties of a higher classification for more than 16 consecutive working days or more (128
regular hours) in duration, the employee so assigned shall be compensated at the
minimum rate established for the higher class or 5% above the employee’s regular base
rate of pay, whichever is greater, with pay effective upon the date of the change of
assignment. Under no circumstances shall the employee receive an amount greater than
the maximum step of the higher class.

a. This policy shall apply in temporary situations due to:
i.  The extended leave or other temporary absence of the employee in the

higher classification;

i.  Orif the position to be filled is vacant and there is no valid eligibility list
for the classification. In this case, if the Division Head has initiated
procedures to fill the vacancy, he/she may assign an employee to fill that
position on a temporary basis not to exceed 60 days. If an eligibility list
exists for the vacant position, the Division Head may appoint an
employee from the eligibility list at the earliest possible date.

iii.  Noregular positions shall be filled by out-of-class appointees for a period
longer than 60 days, except when due to special circumstances such as
extended leaves of absence or in cases of emergencies approved by
the Administrative Services Manager.

iv.  Individuals hired specifically to temporarily fill a position vacancy due to
illness, vacation, etc. are also excluded from working out-of-class.

v. Individuals appointed to work out-of-class must meet minimum
qualifications of the higher classification, must be capable of handling
major duties of the higher-level classification without any more
supervision than another would in the same job.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 8 - WAGES



vi.  The mere performance of certain portions of the higher position or only
performing the less difficult parts until the position is filled does not
constitute working out-of-class.

vii.  When an employee is assigned to work in a higher-level classification
that entails moving the employee into a different classification other than
that which is his/her regular classification, the said employee shall not
receive a change in his/her benefits. Similarly, a part time non-exempt
employee temporarily filling a regular full-time position shall receive no
benefits nor shall he/she be subject to retirement system payments.

vii. ~ While working in an out-of-class assignment, an employee shall
continue to accrue, and have recorded, normal step increases in the
employee’s regular assignment.

ix. At the time an employee returns to his/her regular assigned position,
his/her salary should reflect the same salary rate he/she had previously,
with any merit or salary adjustments added as appropriate. At any time
during the out-of-class appointment, an employee may be removed from
the appointment. Out-of-class appointments may not be made in excess
of authorized budgeted funds without approval of the General Manager.

x. Performing a specified work assignment for a short period of time.
Examples of work assignments may include insecticide application.

The District will not pay employees who report to work but are unable to work due to
the following circumstances:

e Interruption of work because of the failure of any or all public utilities; or

e Interruption of work because of natural causes or other circumstances
beyond the District’'s power to control.

ARTICLE 9 - SEPARATION FROM SERVICE
/TERMINATION

A. Separation of Employment

Termination of employment is a regular and inevitable aspect of personnel activity
within any organization, and many of the reasons for termination are routine. District
management is not at liberty to divulge information concerning termination of employment
except to the employee involved. Below are examples of some of the most common
circumstances under which employment is terminated, either with or without cause,
consistent with every District employee’s at-will employment status:

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 9 - SEPARATION FROM SERVICE
/TERMINATION



Separation/Resignation: Employment termination initiated by an employee who
chooses to leave the organization voluntarily, or by an employee who fails to report to work
for three consecutively scheduled workdays without notice to, or approval by, his or her
Supervisor. An employee who desires to separate from employment shall submit a written
resignation giving at least two (2) weeks’ notice. The General Manager may consent to
accepting less than two weeks as adequate notice to be considered in good standing.

Termination/Discharge: Employment termination initiated by the District.

Layoff: Involuntary employment termination initiated by the organization for
reorganization, efficiency and/or economic reasons.

Retirement: Voluntary retirement from active employment status initiated by the
employee.

Death of Employee: Immediate family should notify the District as soon as possible.

The District will generally schedule exit interviews at the time of employment
termination. If a termination occurs on a non-work day, an exit interview will be scheduled
the next business day. The exit interview will afford an opportunity to discuss such issues
as continuation of employee benefits, suggestions for improving employment conditions,
complaints, questions or the return of District owned property. Notwithstanding this
practice, since employment at the District is “at will” and based on continuing mutual
consent, both the employee and the District have the right to terminate employment at any
time, with or without cause.

Employees will receive their final compensation upon termination in accordance with
applicable Federal and State laws. An employee who has submitted their resignation will
receive his/her final check the next pay period. For any other reason for termination, the
employee will receive their final paycheck within 72 hours. Any terminating employee will
be paid for all work and accrued, unused vacation through the last day worked. Also, if
applicable a prorated cell phone stipend.

The District does not generally make payments of “severance” compensation, other
than salary and compensation amounts to which employees are entitled by law.

All District owned property and equipment, including vehicles, keys, cell phones,
uniforms, identification badges, and credit cards must be returned immediately upon
termination of employment. Employees who fail to return such property will be liable for
the cost of replacement and/or other damages incurred by the District.

B. Reductions in Workforce

District may lay off an employee because of shortage of work, lack of funds, material
change in duties or organization, or for other legitimate reasons. The District may, after
consultation with employees and/or formally recognized employee organizations as

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 9 - SEPARATION FROM SERVICE
/TERMINATION



required by law, consider alternative actions in order to minimize layoffs. The General
Manager will identify those classifications which will be reduced which will minimize the
impact and will meet the necessary reduction in force requirements as determined by the
District.

In determining which employees will be subject to layoff, the District will take into
account among other things, operation and requirements, the skill, productivity, ability,
seniority and past performance of those involved.

Notification:
a. No less than ten (10) working days before the effective date of the layoff, the
appointing authority will notify Human Resources of the name(s),
classification(s), and reason(s) for layoff of employee(s) being laid off.

b. All regular District employees to be laid off will be given written notice from
Human Resources or designee of the effective layoff date no less than ten
(10) working days before the effective day of the layoff. Such notice will be
hand delivered or sent by certified mail.

PERSONNEL POLICIES & PROCEDURES

ARTICLE 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION

A. Scope

Except as stated herein, this Policy shall govern and affect personnel administration
for all employees of the District, except for the following:

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 1 — GENERAL INFORMATION



e Board of Directors of the District
e General Manager
e General Counsel

e Volunteer personnel who provide services to the District without receiving
compensation (although such persons may receive reimbursement for
actual expenses incurred in the service of the District); and

e Outside and independent contractors, engaged to provide expert,
professional, technical or other services.

If any provision of this Policy Manual conflicts or is inconsistent with any applicable
bargaining agreement or MOU, any local, State, or Federal law, the provisions of said
bargaining agreement or MOU, any local, State, or Federal law shall apply over this Policy
Manual.

This Policy Manual is not intended to and does not supersede any provision of
applicable collective bargaining agreements to which the District is a party specifically, the
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). The Policy Manual shall also not supersede any
local, State, or Federal statues, rules, and/or regulations.

B. Right to Revise

Except as provided by law, local regulation, or applicable bargaining agreement or
MOU, this Policy Manual provides employment policies and practices of the District in
effect at the time of publication. All previously issued manuals or handbooks and any
inconsistent policy statements or memoranda distributed prior to this Policy Manual are
superseded.

The General Manager is authorized to issue written administrative orders to
establish procedures and practices for administration of the District personnel system and
to interpret or clarify any provisions of the Policy Manual.

The District reserves the right to revise, modify, delete, or add to any and all policies,
procedures, or work rules stated in this Policy Manual or in any other document. However,
any such changes must be in writing and must be signed by the General Manager and
approved by the Board of Directors of the District.

Any changes to this Policy Manual will be distributed in writing to all employees so
that employees will be aware of the new policies or procedures. No oral statements,
representations, or conduct can in any way alter the provisions of this Policy Manual.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 1 — GENERAL INFORMATION



C. Equal Employment Opportunity

The District is an equal opportunity employer and makes employment decisions on
the basis of merit. District policy prohibits unlawful discrimination based on race, color,
creed, gender, religion, marital status, registered domestic partner status, age, national
origin or ancestry, pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions, physical or mental
disability, medical condition including genetic characteristics, sexual orientation, gender
identity or any other consideration made unlawful by Federal, State, or local laws. It also
prohibits unlawful discrimination based on the perception that anyone has any of those
characteristics or is associated with a person who has or is perceived as having any of
those characteristics. All such discrimination is unlawful and prohibited.

The District is committed to compliance with all applicable laws providing equal
employment opportunities. This commitment applies to all persons involved in District
operations and prohibits unlawful discrimination by or against any employee of the District,
including Supervisors and co-workers.

The primary objectives of this Policy are as follows:

e Ensure the recruiting, hiring and training for all job classifications are done
without regard to sex, gender, race, creed, color, religion, class, disability,
national origin, age, political or union affiliation, marital status, medical
condition or sexual orientation.

e Ensure that employment decisions further the principle of Equal
Employment Opportunity.

e Ensure that promotion decisions further the principle of Equal Employment
Opportunity and that those criteria which are not discriminatory for
promotions be used.

e Ensure that other personnel policies and procedures governing
compensation, benefits, transfers, training, tuition assistance and recreation
programs are administered without regard to sex, gender, race, creed,
color, religion, class, disability, national origin, age, political or union
affiliation, marital status, medical condition or sexual orientation.

ARTICLE 2 - EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION

A. Employment Categories

It is the intent of the District to clarify the definitions of employment and employment
classifications in order to understand employment status and benefit eligibility. These
classifications do not guarantee employment for any specific period of time and should not
be deemed as any modification to the at-will nature of employment at the District as
described above.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 2 — EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION



B. Full Time Employees

Regular full-time employees are those who are regularly scheduled to work and work
80 or more hours in a two-week period, or 2080 hours per calendar year. Full-time
employees are eligible for District benefits. Regardless of assigned schedule, full-time
employees shall be assigned to work a sufficient number of workdays and/or be credited
with holidays, vacation, sick, and compensation leaves under Federal and State laws, to
normally equal a total of two hundred sixty (260) workdays of either (8) hour periods per
calendar year or two thousand eighty (2,080) hours.

C. Part-Time Year-Round Employees (1,000+ hours/year)

Part-time year-round employees who are classified to work over 1,000 hours per
fiscal year may be eligible for pro-rated benefits as approved by the District. The intent of
the District is that part-time year-round employees report a total of 1,560 hours per fiscal
year and to not exceed 1,700 hours with the General Manager’s approval. This will
average out to 30 hours per week.

D. Part-Time Employees

1. Part-time employees are those who are scheduled on average 19 hours per
week and do not exceed 960 hours per fiscal year, unless an additional 20
hours, for a total of 980 hours, have been approved by the General
Manager. Part-time employees are not eligible for District benefits except
as required by law.

2. Seasonal or temporary employees may be scheduled to work any number
of hours per week with no regular schedule but may not work more than
960 hours per year fiscal year. Seasonal employees are typically hired for
a particular seasonal need, no longer than a four (4) month period. They
are not eligible for any District benefits except as required by law.

3. A Retired Annuitant (CalPERS retiree) who, without applying for
Reinstatement from Retirement, returns to work for the District in a
designated retired annuitant position has equal responsibility along with the
District to ensure the potential employment is lawful. Without exception, the
retired annuitant may work a maximum of 960 hours per fiscal year.
Nonpaid or volunteer hours cannot be used in order to exceed 960 hours.

Employees who must work 20 hours per week must not do so for longer than a four
(4) month period within a fiscal year.

E. Exempt Employees

An exempt employee based on duties and responsibilities, does not fall under certain
wage and time requirements of Federal and State regulations. An exempt employee does

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 2 — EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION



not receive overtime or compensatory time off. Exempt employees are required to record
their hours worked on a timecard.

F. Non- Exempt Employees

A nonexempt employee is one who is paid on the basis of hours worked per pay
period and who receives compensation for overtime. Nonexempt employees are required
to record their hours worked on a time clock and/or timecard. All employees, unless
notified otherwise by management, are nonexempt.

G. Nepotism (Employment of Relatives)

The purpose of this Nepotism policy is to ensure that the hiring and supervision of
employees within the District are conducted in a manner which enhances the public’s
confidence in the District and prevents situations that may have an adverse impact on the
District or give the impression of preferential treatment, improper influence, or conflict of
interest.

The following definitions apply to this policy

“Employee” for purposes of this section only, is one who receives a District payroll
check for services rendered.

“Fraternization” means a romantic and/or sexual relationship between a Supervisor
and subordinate employee within the direct chain of command or same Department.

“‘Nepotism” means as the practice of an employee using personal influence or power,
because of a familial relationship, to aid or hinder another person in securing employment,
promotion or other benefit.

“‘Relative” means immediately family member or spouse, domestic partner, child,
step-child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, half-brother, half-sister, aunt,
uncle, niece, nephew, or in-laws of those enumerated by blood, marriage or domestic
partnership, or other legal action.

“Spouse” means two persons who have a valid marriage or two people who are
registered domestic partners, as that term defined by California law, Family Code Section
297, et seq.

“Supervisory relationship” means one in which one employee exercises the right to
control, direct, reward, or discipline another employee by virtue of the duties and
responsibilities assigned to him or her.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 2 — EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION



It is the intent of the District not to discriminate in its employment or personnel
actions with respect to employees and applicants on the basis of marital or familial status.
A relative or a person with whom an employee shares a romantic and/or sexual
relationship will be considered for employment, promotion, or transfer, provided the
person:

e Has made an application in accordance with established procedure;
e Has been considered in accordance with established procedure;

e Possesses the necessary qualifications; and

e [s considered to be the most suitable candidate.

When a relative or a person with whom an employee is engaged in a romantic and/or
sexual relationship is being considered for employment, promotion, or transfer, the
employee shall have no involvement in the recruitment, employment, promotion, or
transfer of the person, either directly or indirectly, nor shall that employee take any action
that would directly or indirectly impact the employment of the relative or individual with
whom there exists a romantic and/or sexual relationship.

An appointing authority shall not appoint, promote, or transfer a person to a position
within the same Department in which the person’s relative or individual with whom there
exists a romantic and/or sexual relationship already holds a position, when such
employment will result in the any of the following:

e A direct or indirect supervisory relationship.
e The two employees handling financial transactions together.

e The two employees having regular job duties which require performance
of shared duties or the same or related work assignment;

e The two employees having the same immediate Supervisor;

e An actual or perceived conflict of interest or having an adverse impact
on supervision, safety, security, morale, or efficiency of the workplace
that cannot be adequately mitigated.

If two employees who work in the same Department become relatives or romantically
and/or sexually involved, and one of the conditions sets forth above applies, the
Administrative Services Department has discretion to transfer one of the employees to a
similar vacant position of comparable pay and duties in another Department. The
employee must meet the qualifications of the vacant position. Although the wishes of the

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 2 — EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION



Kathryn Drewry
General Manager or designee


employees in question will be given consideration, the Department retains sole discretion
to determine which employee is to be transferred based upon District needs, operations,
or efficiency.

If continuing employment of both employees cannot be accommodated in a manner
the Department finds to be consistent with the District’s interest in the promotion of safety,
security, morale and efficiency, then the Department retains sole discretion to separate
one employee from District employment. Absent the resignation of one employee, the less
senior employee will be separated.

In implementing this policy, the District's employment application and promotion
process shall ask candidates to disclose their relative and/or relationship status to a District
employee. Such information shall not be used as a basis for employment decision other
than those stated in this policy.

Where two relatives or persons who have a romantic and/or sexual relationship are
working in the same Department or within the direct chain of command at the time this
policy is adopted, the relationship shall not be deemed a violation of this policy. This
waiver, however, may not be used as a basis for further exceptions subsequent to the
effective date of this policy. All current employees, at the time this policy is adopted, shall
disclose whether they have a relative or person with whom they are romantically involved
within the Department or direct chain of command in which they are employed. Failure to
disclose such relationship may be a cause for discipline, up to and including termination,
as set forth in this policy.

If a conflict of interest or other threat to the efficient operation of the District should
develop, it is the duty of the involved employees to immediately notify the applicable
Department and Administrative Services Department. The District reserves the right to
reasonably investigate the situation to determine whether a violation of this policy exists
and therefore threatens the working conditions at the District. If the District determines
that the proscribed violation of this policy exists, remedial and/or disciplinary measures,
including but not limited to a transfer, re-assignment, or dismissal, shall be utilized to
mitigate issues that arise relevant to the enforcement of this policy.

ARTICLE 3 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE

The District may grant leaves of absence to employees in certain circumstances and
as applicable with Federal and State labor laws and regulations. Prompt notice of any

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



change in anticipated return date is requested. Failure to return to work as scheduled at
the end of a leave may be considered abandonment of employment and voluntary
resignation by the employee to the extent permitted by law.

Employees who report less than their regularly scheduled hours due to a leave of
absence or other time off will accrue leave on a prorated basis.

Employees should contact the Administrative Services Manager or designee for
further information.

A. Jury Duty and Witness Leave

The District encourages employees to fulfill their civic responsibilities by serving jury
duty when called or appearing as a witness. Employees must inform their Supervisor of
the need for time off for jury or witness duty as soon as they receive a notice or summons
from the court.

1. Regular full time non-exempt employees who are called for jury or withess
duty due to a job-related subpoena shall be paid the difference between
their regular wages and any jury/witness payment received by him/her,
except travel pay, for such duty up to a maximum of 10 days per calendar
year.

2. Exempt employees will receive their full salary unless they are absent for a
full workweek and perform no work.

3. Part-time Year-Round employees will receive a max of 40 hours to use
towards Jury Services in a 12 month period of time.

4. If an employee in a non-exempt status is required to remain on jury or
witness duty over the allowed amount of time, they may opt to work a flexible
schedule as approved by the General Manager.

An employee who is required to participate in jury duty or testify in court or in any
other legal proceeding may be required to provide written verification from the court clerk
for performance of jury service. If an employee is required to serve jury duty beyond the
period of paid jury duty leave, they may use any available vacation or may request an
unpaid jury duty, witness duty or witness service leave of absence. They must show the
jury duty summons to their Supervisor as soon as possible so that the Supervisor can
make arrangements to accommodate the absence. If an employee is a witness on behalf
of the District, regular salary, less payment received for services, shall be continued. If at
least two hours of work time remains after any day of jury selection or jury duty, they will
be expected to return to work for the remainder of their work schedule.

An employee may retain any mileage allowance or other fee paid by the court for
jury services.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



B. Time Off for Voting

If an employee does not have sufficient time outside of working hours to vote in an
official state-sanctioned election, the employee may take paid time off to vote. Such time
off shall be taken at the beginning or the end of the regular working shift, whichever allows
for more free time, and the time taken off shall be a maximum of two hours. An employee
requesting time off to vote shall give his or her Supervisor at least two (2) days’ notice,
and must provide proof of voting to the Supervisor upon returning to work.

C. Volunteer Civil Service Personnel

Employees are eligible for unpaid leave to perform emergency duty as a volunteer
firefighter, a reserve peace officer, or emergency rescue personnel or for related training.
A Supervisor should be notified by an employee if they are a civil service volunteer in case
it is necessary to take time off for emergency duty. When taking time off for emergency
duty, employees must alert their Supervisor before doing so as early as possible and
provide documentation of service on their return.

D. Workers’ Compensation

Employees who have a work-related illness or injury are covered by workers’
compensation insurance. The workers’ compensation benefits provided to injured
employees may include:

i.  Medical care
i. Cash benefits, tax free, to replace lost wages
iii. Assistance to help qualified injured employees return to suitable
employment
iv.  To ensure workers’ compensation benefits are received an employee
needs to:
e Immediately report any work-related injury to their Supervisor within
24 hours.
¢ Notify the Administrative Services Department who will schedule an
appointment at an in service provider/clinic for initial treatment. If the
event of an emergency requiring immediate care, 911 may be called.
It is an employee’s responsibility to work with the Administrative
Services Department to seek medical treatment and follow-up care
if required.
e Complete an Employee Accident Report.
e Complete a written Employee’s Claim Form (DWC Form 1) and
return to the Administrative Services Department.
e Provide the District with a certification from the health care provider
regarding the need for workers’ compensation disability leave, as

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



well as eventual ability to return to work from the leave.

The District provides medical treatment for work-related injuries through a medical
provider network approved by the District's workers’ compensation insurance, which the
District has chosen to provide medical care to injured employees because of their
experience in treating work-related injuries. . All employees and volunteers must go to the
clinics and hospital listed on the website, http://www.eiampn.csac-eia.org.

Employees who are ill or injured as a result of a work-related incident, and who are
eligible for family and medical leave under FMLA and CFRA, will be placed on
FMLA/CFRA leave during the time they are disabled and unable to return to work. The
leave under these laws runs concurrently, and eligible employees will be on FMLA/CFRA
for a maximum of 12 weeks in a rolling 12-month period.

An employee taking workers’ compensation leave who is eligible for and placed on
FMLA/CFRA leave will be allowed to continue participating in any health and welfare
benefit plans in which he/she was enrolled before the first day of the leave (for a maximum
of 12 workweeks) at the level and under the conditions of coverage as if the employee had
continued in employment for the duration of such leave. The District will continue to make
the same premium contribution as if the employee had continued working. The employee
must make payments for his or her share of continued premiums, or risk losing coverage
under the District’'s plan. Payment is due when it would otherwise be made by payroll
deduction. The continued participation in health benefits begins on the date leave first
begins. In some instances, the District may recover from an employee premiums paid to
maintain health coverage if the employee fails to return to work following family/medical
leave.

Employees on workers’ compensation leave who are not eligible for continued paid
coverage may continue their group health insurance coverage through the District in
conjunction with the federal COBRA guidelines by making monthly payments to the District
or insurance carrier for the amount of the applicable premium. Employees should contact
the Administrative Services Department for further information.

Paid sick leave is a benefit that also covers absences for work-related illness or
injury. Workers' compensation benefits usually do not cover absences for medical
treatment. When a work-related iliness or injury is reported, the employee will be sent for
medical treatment, if treatment is necessary. They will be paid their regular wages for the
time spent seeking initial medical treatment.

Any further medical treatment will be under the direction of the health care provider.
Any absences from work for follow-up treatment, physical therapy or other prescribed
appointments will not be paid as time worked. If an employee has accrued and unused
sick leave, the additional absences from work will be paid with the use of sick leave.

If an employee does not have accrued, paid sick leave, or if he/she used all of the
sick leave, the employee may choose to substitute vacation for further absences from
work, related to the iliness or injury.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



http://www.eiampn.csac-eia.org/

Neither the District nor its insurance carrier will be liable for the payment of workers’
compensation benefits for injuries that occur during voluntary participation in any off-duty
recreational, social or athletic activity sponsored by the District, even if such activities take
place at a District sponsored event, such as a staff picnic or other social gathering.
Participation in all such activities, even if planned or sponsored by the District, is not
considered part of their job duties or employment responsibilities and should be
considered entirely voluntary.

E. School Activities

Employees are encouraged to participate in the school activities of their child(ren).
Any employee who is a parent or guardian of a pupil and who is requested to appear at
the pupil's school pursuant to section 48900.1 of the Education Code will be granted time
off without pay, provided the employee gives reasonable notice to their Supervisor. Any
employee who is a parent, guardian or grandparent having custody of one or more children
in Kindergarten or grades 1-12, inclusive, or attending a licensed day care facility, may
take up to a total of forty (40) unpaid hours for all such children each school year, not
exceeding eight (8) hours in any calendar month of the school year, to participate in
activities of the school of any child or to address school emergencies, provided the
employee gives reasonable notice to their Supervisor. The employee may elect to use
vacation, comp time or holiday time in lieu of leave without pay.

F. Employee Literacy Assistance

Employees who desire assistance in enrolling in an adult literacy education program
should contact the Administrative Services Department. Human Resources will assist an
employee in locating and enrolling in a literacy education program. Employee requests will
be kept confidential as requested.

G. Family Care and Medical Leave

The District will provide family and medical care leave for eligible employees, as
required by State and Federal law, including leaves under the federal Family and Medical
Leave Act (FMLA) (which includes Military Caregiver Leave, also known as Covered
Service Member Leave), the California Family Rights Act (CFRA), and the Paid Family
Care Leave Act (PFCLA). An individual who is entitled to leave under the FMLA and the
CFRA may take Family Temporary Disability Insurance (FTDI) leave concurrently with
leave taken under the FMLA and the CFRA.

“12-Month Period” means a rolling 12-month period measured backward from the
date leave is taken and continuous with each additional leave day taken.

“Child” means a child under 18 years of age, or 18 years of age or older who is
incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical disability. An employee’s child is

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



one for whom the employee has actual day-to-day responsibility for care and includes a
biological, adopted, or foster child, a step-child, a legal ward, a son or daughter of a
domestic partner, or a son or daughter to whom the employee stands in loco parentis (in
place of a parent).

“‘Parent” means the biological, foster, or adoptive parent of an employee or an
individual who stands or stood in loco parentis (in place of a parent) to an employee when
the employee was a child. This term does not include parents-in-law.

“Spouse” means a husband or wife as defined or recognized under California state
law for purposes of marriage.

“‘Domestic Partner” means a partner as defined in Section 297 of the Family Code.

“Family Member” means a Child, Parent, Spouse, or Domestic Partner as defined in
this family care and medical leave policy.

“Serious Health Condition” means an illness, injury impairment, or physical or mental
condition that involves:

i. Inpatient care (i.e., an overnight stay) in a hospital, hospice, or residential
medical care facility, including any period of incapacity (i.e., inability to work
or perform other regular daily activities because of the serious health
condition, treatment involved, or recovery therefrom); or

ii. Continuing treatment by a health care provider (i.e., a serious health
condition involving continuing treatment by a Health Care Provider as
defined under Federal or State law).

Leave is only permitted for the following reasons:

a. The birth of a child or to care for a newborn of an employee or the employee’s
domestic partner;

b. The placement of a child with an employee in connection with the adoption or
foster care of the child by the employee or the employee’s domestic partner;

c. To care for an employee’s child, parent, spouse, or domestic partner who has
a serious health condition; or

d. Because of a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to
perform the functions of his or her position.

An employee is eligible for leave if the employee:
a. Has been employed for at least 12 months; and
b. Has worked for at least 1250 hours during the 12-month period immediately
preceding the commencement of the leave.

The District counts FMLA/CFRA leave using a “looking back” method, meaning that
if an employee requests FMLA/CFRA leave, the District looks back over the preceding 12

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



months to determine if the employee has taken FMLA/CFRA leave during that time period.
If the employee did take FMLA/CFRA leave, then that time would be deducted from the
amount of leave for which the employee is now eligible. If the employee has not taken any
FMLA/CFRA leave, then the employee would be eligible for all 12 weeks of FMLA/CFRA
leave.

Eligible employees are entitled to a total of 12 workweeks of leave during any 12-
month period.

If leave is requested for the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of a child of the
employee or domestic partner, leave must be concluded within one (1) year of the birth or
placement of the child. In addition, the basic minimum duration of such leave is two (2)
weeks. However, an employee is entitled to leave for one of these purposes (e.g., bonding
with a newborn) for at least one (1) day, but less than two (2) weeks’ duration on any two
(2) occasions.

If leave is requested to care for the employee or the employee’s child, parent,
spouse, or domestic partner with a serious health condition, there is no minimum amount
of leave that must be taken. However, the notice and medical certification provisions of
this policy must be complied with.

Leave under this policy is unpaid. However, an employee may be able to use
accrued paid leave. While on leave, the employee will continue to be covered by the
District’'s group health insurance to the same extent that coverage is provided while the
employee is on the job.

The employee may be entitled to other, non-District provided benefits under any
other federal or state programs such as state disability insurance benefits. The District is
not responsible for administering any such benefits.

Employees may make the appropriate contributions for continued coverage under
the preceding non-health benefit plans by payroll deductions or direct payments made to
these plans. Depending on the particular plan, the District will inform the employee whether
the premiums should be paid to the carrier or to the District. The coverage on a particular
plan may be dropped if the employee is more than 30 days late in making a premium
payment. However, the employee will receive a notice at least 15 days before coverage is
to cease, advising him or her that he or she will be dropped if the premium payment is not
paid by a certain date. Employee contribution rates are subject to any change in rates that
occurs while the employee is on leave.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



If the employee fails to return to work after his or her leave entitlement has been
exhausted or expires, the District shall have the right to recover its share of health plan
premiums for the entire leave period, unless the employee does not return because of the
continuation, recurrence, or onset of a serious health condition of the employee or his or
her family member that would entitle the employee to leave or because of circumstances
beyond the employee’s control.

While on leave under this policy, an employee may elect to concurrently use paid
accrued leaves. Similarly, the District may require an employee to concurrently use paid
accrued leaves after requesting FMLA/CFRA leave and Paid Family Care Leave and may
also require an employee to use family and medical care leave concurrently with a non-
FMLA/CFRA leave that is FMLA/CFRA-qualifying.

When an employee has earned or accrued paid vacation leave, that paid leave must
be substituted for all or part of any (otherwise) unpaid leave under this policy.

An employee is entitled to and may use sick leave concurrently with leave under this
policy if:
a. The leave is for the employee’s own serious health condition; or
b. The leave is needed to care for a parent, domestic partner, spouse, or child
with a serious health condition and would be permitted as sick leave under the
District’s sick leave policy.

An employee may use vacation or sick time concurrently with leave under this policy.

As a condition of an employee’s initial receipt of family temporary disability insurance
benefits during any 12-month period in which an employee is eligible for these benefits,
the District may require an employee to take up to 2 weeks of earned but unused vacation
or sick leave (or both) prior to the employee’s initial receipt of these benefits. If the District
requires the employee to take vacation or sick leave, that portion of the leave that does
not exceed 1 week shall be applied to any applicable waiting period for receipt of family
temporary disability insurance benefits.

Although the District recognizes that emergencies arise that may require employees
to request immediate leave, employees are required to give as much notice as possible of
their need for leave. If leave is foreseeable, at least 30 days’ notice is required. In addition,
if an employee knows that he or she will need leave in the future but does not know the
exact date(s) (e.g., for the birth of a child or to take care of a newborn), the employee shall
inform his or her Supervisor as soon as possible that such leave will be needed. Absent

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



unusual circumstances, such notice may be given in accordance with the District’s usual
and customary call-in procedures for reporting an absence. The employee must provide
notice sufficient to make the District aware that the employee needs FMLA/CFRA-
qualifying leave and of the anticipated timing and duration of the leave. If the District
determines that an employee’s notice is inadequate, the District may delay the granting of
FMLA/CFRA leave.

Employees who request leave for their own serious health condition or to care for a
child, parent, domestic partner, or spouse who has a serious health condition must provide
written certification from the qualified health care provider of the individual requiring care.
The written certification must come from a physician in the field of which treatment is being
sought. The employee will also be required to give periodic reports on the status of
themselves or the seriously ill family member.

a. Time to Provide Medical Certification

In order to be granted family and medical leave, the employee must fill out a request
form found in Human Resources and provide such medical certification in advance of the
leave or as soon as practicably possible thereafter, or within 15 days of notice from the
District. After a continuous absence of 30-calendar days for any “covered event,” the
employee must request family/medical care leave. Failure to comply with these notice
rules may be grounds, and may result in denial or deferral of the requested leave until the
employee complies with this policy.

b. Consequences of Failure to Provide Adequate or Timely Certification

The District will advise the employee in writing what additional information is
necessary to make the certification complete and sufficient. The employee will have seven
(7) calendar days, unless not practicable under the circumstances despite the employee’s
diligent good faith efforts, to cure any deficiencies. If the deficiency is not cured, the District
may deny the taking of FMLA/CFRA leave.

C. Recertification

If the District has reason to doubt the validity of a certification, the District may
require a medical opinion of a second health care provider chosen and paid for by the
District. If the second opinion is different from the first, the District may require the opinion
of a third provider jointly approved by the District and the employee but paid for by the
District. The opinion of the third provider will be binding. An employee may request a copy
of the health care provider’s opinions when there is a recertification.

If an employee requests leave intermittently (e.g., a few days or hours at a time) or
on a reduced leave schedule, the employee must provide medical certification that such

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



leave is medically necessary. “Medically necessary” means there must be a medical need
for the leave and that the leave can best be accomplished through an intermittent or
reduced leave schedule.

a. Right to Reinstatement

On expiration of leave, an employee is entitled to be reinstated to the position of
employment held when the leave commenced, or to an equivalent position with equivalent
employment benefits, pay, and other terms and conditions of employment. Employees
have no greater rights to reinstatement, benefits, and other conditions of employment than
if the employee had been continuously employed during the FMLA/CFRA leave period.

If a definite date of reinstatement has been agreed on at the beginning of the leave,
the employee will be reinstated on the date agreed on. If the reinstatement date differs
from the original agreement date between the employee and the District, the employee
will be reinstated within two (2) business days, when feasible, after the employee notifies
the District of his or her readiness to return.

b. Employee’s Obligation to Periodically Report on His or Her Condition

An employee may be required to periodically report on his or her status and intent
to return to work. This will avoid any delays to reinstatement when the employee is ready
to return.

c. Fitness-for-Duty Certification

As a condition of reinstatement of an employee whose leave was based on the
employee’s own serious health condition that made the employee unable to perform his
or her job, the employee must obtain and present a fitness-for-duty certification from the
health care provider stating that the employee is able to perform the essential functions of
the employee’s job. When reasonable job safety concerns exist, the District may require a
fitness-for-duty certification before an employee may return to work when the employee
takes intermittent or reduced leave. Failure to provide such certification will result in denial
of reinstatement.

H. Military Leave

Employees who enter fulltime duty in the armed services shall be granted all benefit
and reinstatement rights as required by applicable law.

Employees who are members of a National Guard or Military Reserve unit will be
granted an unpaid leave of absence for annual military training.

An employee must present the Administrative Services Department with official duty
orders along with a written request for such a leave of absence. They may elect to take

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



the time off without pay, to receive full annual vacation benefit or to receive vacation pay
only for that portion of time not covered by military base pay.

I. Military Family Leave

The District will comply with any applicable Federal or State laws regarding Military
Family Leave.

J. Military Caregiver Leave

The District will comply with any applicable Federal or State laws regarding Military
Caregiver Leave.

K. Qualifying Exigency Leave

The District will comply with any applicable Federal or State laws regarding
Qualifying Exigency Leave.

L. Leave to Care for Covered Servicemember

The District will comply with any applicable Federal and State laws regarding Leave
to Care for Covered Servicemember.

M. Pregnancy Disability Leave

Under the California Fair Employment and Housing Act (FEHA), an employee
disabled by pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions is eligible to take up to four
(4) months (or 88 work days for a full-time employee) of unpaid Pregnancy Disability Leave
(“PDL”) leave, and may also be eligible to transfer to a less strenuous or hazardous
position or to less strenuous duties, if a health care provider determines such transfer is
medically advisable. At the end of the leave, the employee will be reinstated in the same
or a substantially equivalent position, unless the position has been eliminated because of
a change in business conditions or operations.

There is no minimum amount of time worked to qualify for PDL.

The PDL need not be taken in one continuous period of time; it can also be taken
on a reduced schedule or an intermittent, as-needed basis.

Time off for prenatal care, severe morning sickness, doctor-ordered bed rest,
childbirth, and recovery from childbirth are covered by PDL.

The period of leave, including the date upon which the leave shall begin, shall be
determined by the employee’s physician. This date shall be based upon the employee’s
ability to render service in the current position. The employee must obtain a certification

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



from their health care provider of the pregnancy-related disability or the medical
advisability for a transfer to a less-strenuous position and provide it to the General
Manager or designee. The certification should include: the date on which the employee
became disabled due to pregnancy or the date of the medical advisability of the transfer;
the probable duration of the period(s) of disability or the duration of the intermittent leave
or transfer to a less strenuous position; and a statement that, due to the disability, the
employee is unable to work at all or perform any one or more of the essential functions of
the position without undue risk to the employee, the successful completion of the
pregnancy or to other persons, or a statement that, due to pregnancy-related disability, an
intermittent leave or transfer to a less strenuous position is medically advisable.

The employee is entitled to use accumulated sick leave for the period of time the
employee is required to be absent by reason of physical incapacity due to pregnancy or
childbirth or conditions related thereto.

At the employee’s option, any additional accrued time off may be used as part of
PDL before taking the remainder of leave as unpaid. While on paid leave, the employee
will continue to accrue vacation and sick leave benefits. Once paid leave is exhausted,
the employee will no longer accrue vacation or sick leave benefits.

Employees may also be eligible for state disability insurance for the unpaid portion
of pregnancy leave.

During PDL, group health benefits will continue at the same level and conditions as
if the employee had continued working. The time the District maintains health coverage
during a PDL will not be used to offset the twelve (12) weeks of coverage under the CFRA,
regardless of whether the PDL is designated as FMLA or CFRA leave.

PDL leave shall run concurrently with FMLA leave, if the employee is FMLA-eligible.
However, it shall not run concurrently with CFRA leave (See Section N below) An
employee who is transferring from PDL to CFRA Leave must provide a certificate from the
doctor stating that the pregnancy disability has concluded. If more information regarding
eligibility for a leave, the impact of the leave on seniority and benefits, and policy for other
disabilities, contact the Administrative Services Manager.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



Return to service is based upon a doctor's written statement of physical ability to
render service. Upon return following PDL leave, the employee is entitled to the same
position, if available. If the position has been eliminated, the employee is entitled to a
comparable vacant position for which the employee is qualified. Return rights are the
same as they would have been had the employee been employed continuously in the
position.

The employee will continue to accrue seniority while on PDL, whether the leave is
paid or unpaid. Employees on pregnancy leave may also be eligible for benefits under the
District's Short Term and/or Long Term Disability Plan. Employees must file a claim in
order to receive these benefits. Forms are available from the employee’s doctor and the
District’s Personnel Office.

If an employee takes a pregnancy disability leave of absence while on probation,
her probationary period shall be extended the same length of time as the pregnancy leave.

A comparable position is one having similar terms of pay, location, job content and
promotional opportunities. Failure to return to work after the authorized four month leave
period shall cause the pregnant employee to have no reinstatement rights provided there
are no other available leaves.

N. Coordination of PDL with Family/Medical Leave

Under the California Family Rights Act of 1993 (CFRA), an eligible employee may
request CFRA leave of up to twelve (12) work weeks due to the birth of the child. This
unpaid CFRA leave is separate and distinct from the right to take pregnancy disability
leave, which is explained in the preceding section of this Policy Manual. If taking a leave
for the birth of a child, the basic minimum duration of the leave is two (2) weeks and must
conclude the leave within one (1) year of the birth of the child.

There is no requirement that either the employee or the child have a serious health
condition to take CFRA leave. The maximum possible combined unpaid leave is four (4)
months for pregnancy/childbirth disability if medically required, plus twelve (12) work
weeks to care for the newborn child. If more information is needed regarding eligibility for
an unpaid CFRA leave or the impact of the leave on your seniority and benefits and
coordination with pregnancy disability leave, contact the Administrative Services Manager.

0. Victims of Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault or Crime Leave

Except as provided in the Sick Leave section of this Policy Manual, employees who
are victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking or other crime shall be given time
off without pay as necessary for obtaining legal relief, including but not limited to a

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



temporary restraining order or other injunctive relief for the employee's protection as well
as his/her child's protection or to attend to judicial proceedings. Time off from work is also
extended to employees who are not the victims of a crime but are immediate family to or
registered domestic partners of such victims. Employees who are victims of domestic
violence, sexual assault or other crime shall also be given time off without pay as
necessary for seeking medical attention, seeking assistance or services from a domestic
violence shelter, program or rape crisis center, obtaining psychological counseling or
participating in activities designed to ensure the victim's safety and well-being.

An employee who takes time off is required to provide the Administrative Services
Department with reasonable advance notice unless such notice is not feasible. The
employee must also provide documentation to the Administrative Services Department,
such as a police report indicating the employee was a victim of domestic violence, a
restraining order or any other evidence certifying a court appearance or documentation
from a medical professional, health care provider, domestic violence advocate, or
counselor that the employee is undergoing treatment for physical or mental injuries or
abuse. Victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or other crime may use any available
sick, vacation, personal or compensatory time off while on such leave. The total time taken
for leave for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking may not exceed
twelve (12) weeks and is not in addition to unpaid time provided under the Family and
Medical Leave Act (FMLA).

P. Organ and Bone Marrow Donation Leave

An employee may take a paid leave of absence up to 30 business days to donate
his or her organ to another person in any one (1) year period. The one year starts from
the date the employee takes a leave pursuant to this section and shall consist of 12
consecutive months.

An employee may take a paid leave of absence up to five (5) business days to
donate his or her bone marrow in any one year period. The one year starts from the date
the employee takes a leave pursuant to this section and shall consist of 12 consecutive
months. The employee must provide written verification that he or she is an organ or bone
marrow donor and that there is a medical necessity for the donation. The District may
require the employee to take up to five (5) days of sick or vacation time for bone marrow
donation and up to two (2) weeks of sick or vacation time for organ donation.

Q. Sick Leave

Sick leave is a benefit that employees accumulate in order to provide a cushion for
incapacitation due to illness. It is intended to be used only when actually required to obtain
medical assistance or recover from illness or injury or other reasons allowed by law. Sick
leave is not for “personal”’ time off or other absences.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



Except as stated in any bargaining agreement or other local policy providing for a
higher accrual rate of sick leave, employees shall be entitled to receive twenty-four (24)
hours of sick leave upon completion of six (6) pay periods (84) calendar days.

Sick Leave shall be used for the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health
condition of, or preventive care for, an employee or an employee’s family member or for
an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as provided
below. For the purpose of this section, an employee’s “family member” includes: (i) a
spouse; (ii) a registered domestic partner; (iii) regardless of age or dependency status, a
biological, adopted, or foster child, stepchild, legal ward, or a child to whom the employee
stands in loco parentis; (iv) a biological, adoptive, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal
guardian of an employee or the employee’s spouse or registered domestic partner, or a
person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child; (v) a grandparent;
(vi) a grandchild; or (vii) a sibling. Accrued sick leave may be used in increments of 1 hour
or more.

In cases of an employee who is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or
stalking, the employee may use sick leave to obtain any relief or services related to being
such a victim, including but not limited to: (i) a temporary restraining order; (ii) other
injunctive relief to help ensure the health, safety or welfare of themselves or their children;
(iii) seeking medical attention for injuries caused by domestic violence, sexual assault, or
stalking; (iv) obtaining services from a domestic violence shelter, program, or rape crisis
center as a result of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking; (v) obtaining
psychological counseling related to an experience of domestic violence, sexual assault, or
stalking; (vi) participation in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from
future domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, including temporary or permanent
relocation.

R. Leave of Absence Without Pay

Any employee who is absent from work and who is not on leave of absence with pay
shall be considered to be on leave of absence without pay.

Leave of absence without pay shall be approved in advance and in writing. Any
employee requesting a leave of absence without pay must exhaust all available leaves,
including accrued compensatory time-off, administrative leave, vacation time (and sick
leave if appropriate) prior to the start of the leave without pay. No single leave of absence
without pay may exceed three (3) months, without approval of the General Manager.

Upon expiration of an approved leave of absence without pay the employee shall be
reinstated in the classification held at the time the leave was granted. Failure on the part
of the employee to report to work promptly at the expiration of the leave shall result in the
employee being deemed to have resigned from employment.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 3 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE



S. Reservation of Right by the District

This section sets forth only a maximum of the discretionary time allowed for leaves
of absences and is not to be construed as an indication of entitlement to a leave of the
maximum duration for any employee. Furthermore, other than as dictated by law the
District reserves the right to fill or eliminate the employee's position as required by
business necessity (e.g., the District’s ability to find a qualified temporary replacement).

ARTICLE 4 - BENEFITS

The District provides a comprehensive array of benefits. Further details regarding
the benefits set forth below can be obtained from the Administrative Services Department.

A. Federal Social Security Act

The Federal Social Security Act covers full time and part time year-round employees.
The plan is designed for future security and that of the employee’s dependents and
provides for retirement, disability, death, survivor and Medicare benefits. The plan requires
equal contribution from both the employer and the employee. District employees
participate through payroll deductions. Part time restricted employees do not pay into
Social Security. Refer to District’'s 457 Plan.

B. California Public Employee Retirement System (CalPERS)

The District makes contributions to each full time and part time year round
employees retirement through the California Public Employees’ Retirement Systems
(CalPERS) as of the date of hire and based on their wages. Employees are vested after
five (5) years of service with the District. This benefit can be transferred only if the
employee goes to work for another public employer who also participates in CalPERS.

Part-time year-round employees may become eligible if they work over 1000 hours
in a fiscal year. If an employee terminates their employment with the District prior to
completing five (5) years of service, the employee is terminated from the CalPERS system
and ineligible to receive benefits from CalPERS.

According to guidelines established by CalPERS, all eligible employees must
participate in this program. Contributions to CalPERS will be made by the District and by
the employee in accordance to the guidelines established in the contracts and resolutions
of the District, as well as any applicable bargaining agreements or other local policy or
manual.

See the Administrative Services Department for additional details.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 4 - BENEFITS



C. Deferred Compensation 457 Plan

The District provides a Deferred Compensation Plan for employees in order to assist
in planning for their retirement. Deferred compensation is a benefit that provides the
opportunity for employees to invest with their own pre-tax contributions into a retirement
plan by means of a pre-tax payroll deduction. For information regarding eligibility,
contributions, benefits, and tax status, contact the Administrative Services Department. All
eligible participants will receive a summary plan description.

D. Insurance Programs

The District is committed to providing employees with benefits necessary to provide
assistance in the event of medical need. The District at its discretion may pay any or all
premiums including but not limited to medical, dental, vision, short term disability, long
term disability and life insurance coverage for eligible employees. In the event of an
increase in medical insurance premium rates, employees may be required to contribute to
the cost of increased premiums to retain coverage. In accordance with federal law, staff
classified as seasonal and temporary employees are not eligible to participate in these
insurance plans. Part time employees may be eligible for benefits as approved by the
Board of Directors.

Employees who begin working for the District and submit their insurance application
between the first and the 15th day of the month may have health insurance coverage begin
on the first of the following month, while those who submit their application between the
16th and the last of the month may be covered from the first day of the second calendar
month. After these dates, employees may enroll or change plans during the open
enroliment period that occurs annually.

The coverage and benefits available under the insurance plans provided by the
District are set forth in the insurance plan itself, any applicable bargaining agreements,
and other local policy or manual for. Specific information about the plan is distributed to
employees at the time of hire; questions can be directed to the Administrative Services
Department. The terms, conditions, coverage, and benefits may be changed at any time.

E. Unemployment Insurance

The District is self-insured for the Unemployment Insurance Fund on behalf of its
employees. Claims are made through the Employee Development Department.
Employees do not pay into State Disability Insurance (SDI).

Any further medical treatment will be under the direction of the health care provider.
Any absences from work for follow-up treatment, physical therapy or other prescribed
appointments will not be paid as time worked. If they have accrued and unused sick leave,
the additional absences from work will be paid with the use of sick leave.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 4 - BENEFITS



F. Other Employee Paid Benefits

The District may make additional benefits available to employees at a cost.

G. Employee and Family Discounts

In order to promote wellness for employees and their immediate family the following
discounts are offered:

1. Swim Passes — two (2) free twenty (20) entry swim passes will be offered to
employees on a yearly basis.

N

District Run Programs— 25% off .

w

Drop-In Games — free access to drop-in games.

e

Parking Pass — 25% off parking pass for Camarillo Grove Park.

H. Training Programs, Seminars, Conferences, Lectures, Meetings or
Other Outside Activities

Some employees may need to attend training programs, seminars, conferences,
lectures, meetings, or other outside activities for the benefit of the District or the individual
employee. Attendance at such activities, whether required by the District or requested by
individual employees, requires the written approval of the General Manager or his/her
designee. To obtain approval, any employee wishing to attend an activity must submit a
written request detailing all relevant information, including date, hours, location, cost,
expenses, and the nature, purpose, and justification for attendance to their Supervisor.
Attendance at any such event is subject to the following policies on reimbursement and
compensation.

For attendance at events required or authorized by the District, customary and
reasonable expenses will be reimbursed upon submission of proper receipts. Acceptable
expenses generally include registration fees, materials, meals, transportation, and
parking. Reimbursement policies regarding these expenses should be discussed with a
Supervisor in advance.

A report of all expenses incurred along with receipts must be submitted within 10
days of the event/travel date on the District’'s "Travel and Expense Reimbursement" form
available from Accounting. This form must be submitted with all receipts and records in
order to properly support and account for expenses. Proper completion of this form
requires the employee to gather together in one place all facts relative to the travel
experience. All expenses, whether personally incurred, charged to the District, charged to
a District credit card, or paid through a District check request, must be reported on this
form after completion of the trip.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 4 - BENEFITS



Travel includes all work away from the District, such as attendance at meetings,
(both formal and informal), training programs, seminars, conferences, lectures, or other
outside activities. Travel expenses include transportation, meals, lodging, registration, and
any related incidental expenses (such as telephone, tips, and car rental). The destination
can be alocation close by (e.g. lunch after a meeting at a restaurant), or at a great distance
(e.g. training out of state).

I. Compensation During Travel Away From the District

When the trip originates from the employee's home, time spent commuting, traveling
to and from an authorized business event is considered time worked and will be
compensated.

When the trip originates from the employer’s work location, all time spent commuting
to and from an authorized business event is considered time worked and will be
compensated.

Employee attendance at authorized outside activities will be considered hours
worked for non-exempt employees and will be compensated in accordance with normal
payroll practices.

For recording expenses incurred, please refer to the District’'s Travel Policy.

J. Educational Assistance Program

The District recognizes that the skills and knowledge of its employees is critical to
the success of the organization. The educational assistance program encourages
personal development through formal education to maintain and improve job-related skills
or enhance the ability to compete for reasonably attainable jobs within the District.
Educational assistance is contingent on the annual budget of the District and its allocation
for such educational purposes. For further details regarding the educational assistance
program, please refer to any applicable bargaining agreement or Employee Manual. For
more information contact the Administrative Services Department.

K. Americans With Disabilities Act

The District provides employment-related reasonable accommodations to qualified
individuals with disabilities within the meaning of the California Fair Employment and
Housing Act (FEHA) and the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

An applicant or employee who desires a reasonable accommodation for testing or
to perform the essential job functions should make such a request in writing to the
Administrative Services Department. The request must identify the job or testing related
functions and the desired accommodations. Following receipt of the request, the District
may require additional information, such as reasonable documentation of the existence of
a disability and restrictions.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 4 - BENEFITS


Kathryn Drewry
Review


The District may require an employee to undergo a fitness for duty examination at
the District's expense to determine whether the employee can perform the essential
functions of the job with or without reasonable accommodation. The District may also
require that a District-approved physician conduct the examination.

After receipt of sufficient documentation of a disability and/or fitness for duty report,
the District will arrange for a discussion, in person or via telephone conference call, with
the applicant or employee, and any representative(s). The purpose of the discussion is to
work in good faith to fully consider all feasible potential reasonable accommodations.

The District determines, in its sole discretion, whether reasonable
accommodation(s) can be made, and the type of accommodations to provide. The District
will not provide accommodations that would pose an undue hardship on the District’s
finances or operations, or that would endanger the health or safety of the employee or
others. The District will inform the employee or applicant of its decision as to reasonable
accommodations in writing.

ARTICLE 5 - MANAGEMENT

A. Names and Addresses; Emergency Contacts

The District is required by law to keep current all employees’ names and addresses.
Employees are responsible for notifying the District in the event of a name or address
change. Employees must also provide the District with at least two current emergency
contacts.

B. Solicitation and Distribution of Literature

In order to ensure efficient operation of the District’'s business and to prevent
disruption to employees, we have established control of solicitations and distribution of
literature on District property. The District has enacted the below rules applicable to all
employees governing solicitation, distribution of written material, and entry onto the
premises and work areas. All employees are expected to comply with these rules. Any
employee who is in doubt concerning the application of these rules should consult with the
General Manager or designee.

e Employees may be allowed to use breakrooms or other designated
common areas to solicit or promote support for organizations. Material may
not be advertised for longer than a two-week period.

e No employee shall solicit or promote support for any cause or organization
during his or her working time or during the working time of the employee
or employees at whom such activity is directed.

e No employee shall distribute or circulate any written or printed material in
work areas at any time, or during his or her working time or during the

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 5 - MANAGEMENT




working time of the employee or employees to whom such activity is
directed. Under no circumstances will non-employees be permitted to solicit
or to distribute written material for any purpose on District property.

C. Smoking / Tobacco Products

No smoking of any kind on District property to include all tobacco-related products,
all forms of electronic smoking devices, and other vaporizing products.

D. Parking

Reasonable accommodations are made for employees to park their personal
vehicles on District property during the employees work shift. In some areas, due to
customer use and clientele, employees are required to park off-site or in the clearly signed
and designated employee parking areas. The District is not responsible for any loss or
damage to employee vehicles or contents while parked on District property. Employees
are responsible for obeying all traffic and civil laws in regard to parking, i.e. handicap stalls,
red and/or yellow zones.

E. Use of Resources and Property

Employees are prohibited from remaining in District offices or work areas when not
on duty. District funds and property shall not be used by any employee of the District for
any purpose other than District business unless approved by the Department or General
Manager.

F. Employer Property

Lockers, desks, file cabinets, computers, cell phones, office equipment, and vehicles
are District property and must be maintained according to District rules and regulations.
They must be kept clean and are to be used only for work-related purposes. The District
reserves the right to inspect all District property to ensure compliance with its rules and
regulations, without notice to the employee and at any time, not necessarily in the
employee’s presence.

No personal locks may be used on District provided lockers unless the employee
furnishes a copy of the key or the combination to the lock. Unauthorized use of a personal
lock by an employee may result in losing the right to use a District locker.

The District may periodically need to assign and/or change “passwords” and
personal codes for voice mail, e-mail, computer, alarms, and other equipment. These
communication technologies and related storage media and databases are to be used
only for District business and they remain the property of the District. The District reserves
the right to keep a record of all passwords and codes used and/or may be able to override
any such password system. Employees do not have a right of privacy in District

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 5 - MANAGEMENT


Kathryn Drewry
Remove – under tech use policy


telecommunication and computer systems, including, but not limited to, voicemail, e-mails,
computer data, passwords and District property.

For security reasons, employees should not leave personal belongings of value in
the workplace. Personal items are subject to inspection and search, with or without notice,
with or without the employee’s prior consent, upon reasonable suspicion of unauthorized
possession of District property or possession of unlawful materials. Employees who do
not wish to subject their property to search should not bring it onto District premises.

Terminated employees are responsible for returning all-District property in good or
same condition it was originally received. All personal items should be removed at the time
they leave employment with the District. Personal items left in the workplace are subject
to disposal if not claimed at the time of an employee’s termination.

G. Employee References

All requests for references must be directed to the General Manager or designee.
No other Supervisor, coordinator, specialist, lead worker, or employee is authorized to
release any type of references for current or former employees.

H. Personnel Files

The Administrative Services Department shall maintain a central personnel file for
each employee indicating the employee’s name, original application for employment, title
of position, the department assigned, salary, changes in employment status, performance
evaluations, disciplinary documents, and such other information as may be considered
pertinent by the Department.

Upon request of the employee, an employee may place documents in the
employee’s respective personnel files that commend his/her job performance with the
District or demonstrates educational attainment.

Disclosures of personnel information to third parties except as authorized by State
or Federal law or as duly authorized in writing by the employee is prohibited. To the
maximum extent possible, no direct information contained in the personnel files shall be
disclosed concerning any current or former employee, without the employee’s consent,
other than the employee’s job title, inclusive dates of employment, work location, salary,
work phone number, departmental assignment and the nature of separation, resignation,
or termination to any person other than the General Manager or designee, General
Counsel, Special Legal counsel, the employee’s Supervisor, or their designated
representatives. An employee or former employee may authorize access the disclosure
of information from their file only when written permission is provided to the Administrative
Services Department.

Nothing herein shall prohibit the District from keeping or placing documents in an
observation folder for the purpose of investigating alleged criminal conduct, to process
complaints under the anti-discrimination policies, or complaints from the public. For the

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 5 - MANAGEMENT



Kathryn Drewry
Review for language


purpose of this Section, an observation folder shall not be considered a personnel file, and
an employee or the employee’s designated representative shall not have access to
observation folders nor receive copies of documents placed in such folder.

It is the employee’s responsibility to notify the Administrative Services Department
of any changes in the employee’s address, phone number, marital status, dependent
status, name change, training certificates, emergency contact, driving status/record,
criminal convictions, or other pertinent information.

Personnel records may be destroyed according the State of California records
retention guidelines, and/or five (5) years after the date of resignation or termination, or in
accordance with any provision of the District’s system for destruction of public records,
and in accordance with other applicable laws.

ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

A. Punctuality and Attendance

Employees are expected to be punctual and have regular attendance. Any tardiness
or absence causes problems for fellow employees and Supervisor. When absent,
assigned work must be performed by others.

Employees are expected to report to work as scheduled, on time, and prepared to
start work. Employees are also expected to remain at work for their entire work schedule,
except for meal periods or when required to leave on authorized District business. Late
arrival, early departure, or other unanticipated and unapproved absences from scheduled
hours are disruptive and will result in disciplinary action.

If unable to report for work on any particular day, an employee must, under all but
the most extenuating circumstances, call their Supervisor at least one hour before the time
they are scheduled to begin work. If an employee calls in less than one hour before their
scheduled time to begin work and do not arrive in time for their assigned shift, they may
be considered tardy for that day. In all cases of absence or tardiness, employees must
provide their Supervisor with an honest reason or explanation. Employees also must
inform their Supervisor of the expected duration of any absence. Excessive absenteeism
or tardiness, whether excused or not, will not be tolerated.

If the employee fails to report for work without any notification to their Supervisor
and their absence continues for a period of three days, this will be considered
abandonment of employment and voluntary resignation by the employee.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT


Kathryn Drewry
Check the state law.


B. Prohibited Conduct

The following conduct is prohibited and will not be tolerated by the District. This list
of prohibited conduct is illustrative only; other types of conduct that threaten security,
personal safety, employee welfare and District operations also may be prohibited.

1.

w

2O®NO O A

0.

11.

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.

20.
21.

22.
23.
24.
25.

Falsifying employment records, employment information, or other District records;
Recording the work time of another employee or allowing any other employee to record
one’s own work time, or falsifying any time card, either the employee’s own or another
employee’s time;

Theft and deliberate or careless damage or destruction of any District property, or the
property of any employee or customer;

Removing or borrowing District property without prior authorization;

Unauthorized use of District equipment, time, materials, or facilities;

Provoking a fight or fighting during working hours or on District property;
Participating in horseplay or practical jokes on District time or on District premises;
Carrying firearms or any other dangerous weapons on District premises at any time;
Engaging in criminal conduct;

Causing, creating, or participating in a disruption of any kind during working hours on
District property;

Insubordination, including but not limited to failure or refusal to obey the orders or
instructions of a Supervisor or member of management, or the use of abusive or
threatening language toward a Supervisor or member of management;

Using abusive language;

Failing to notify a Supervisor when unable to report to work;

Unreported absence of three consecutive scheduled workdays;

Failing to obtain permission to leave work for any reason during normal working hours;
Failing to observe working schedules, including rest and meal breaks;

Failing to provide a physician’s certificate when requested or required to do so;
Sleeping or malingering on the job;

Making or accepting personal telephone calls, including personal cell phone calls, of
more than five minutes in duration during working hours, except in cases of
emergency;

Working overtime without authorization or refusing to work assigned overtime;
Wearing disturbing, unprofessional or inappropriate styles of dress or hair while
working;

Violating any safety, health, security or other District policy, rule, or procedure;
Committing a fraudulent act or a breach of trust under any circumstances;

Engaging in any act of unlawful harassment of another individual,

Acts which are incompatible with or inimical to the public service.

Any other conduct unbecoming to the District or contrary to District goals and policies
is cause for discipline, up to and including termination, in the sole discretion of the District.
This statement of prohibited conduct does not alter the District’'s policy of at-will
employment. Either the employee or the District remains free to terminate the employment
relationship at any time, with or without reason or advance notice.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



C. Dress Code and Other Personal Standards

Attire should reflect positively on the District and from the public’s point of view and
instill confidence in professional abilities. This can be defined as Business Casual
however, clothing must be in good business taste and appropriate for job functions.
Clothing should not be revealing, overly tight, particularly short or low-cut, transparent or
torn. Proper shoes should be worn while on duty and be suitable for the duties of the job
required to perform. At no time should flip flops be worn. Employees are expected to
practice good hygiene, and adhere to appropriate grooming (hair, nails, makeup, body
decorations, and fragrance). The District reserves the right to request that they change
any attire that is deemed to be offensive and/or distracting to the public or coworkers.

Based on the nature of job duties and departments appropriate attire may differ.
Department Managers or Division Supervisors may issue specific guidelines concerning
any exceptions to this Policy.

Tattoos or body piercings other than in the ears that are deemed inappropriate by
Management must be covered.

D. Off-Duty Conduct

While the District does not seek to interfere with the off-duty and personal conduct
of its employees, certain types of off-duty conduct may interfere with the District’s
legitimate business interests. For this reason, employees are expected to conduct their
personal affairs in a manner that does not adversely affect the District’'s or their own
integrity, reputation or credibility. Off-duty conduct by an employee that adversely affects
the District’s legitimate business interests or the employee's ability to perform his or her
job will not be tolerated.

E. Professional Logo / Casual Attire

District approved logo attire includes logo shirts, sweaters, and jackets worn with
appropriate casual pants, shorts, or skirts. Appropriate casual attire includes polo and
regular shirts, denim wear, khakis, and corduroy pants. If employees choose not to wear
logo attire on designated casual days, appropriate casual attire must be worn as listed
above.

The District observes a casual dress day on Thursday and Friday. Employees
required to wear safety equipment or clothing still must do so on a casual dress day.

All employees required to wear uniforms provided by the District must take care of
their uniforms and report any wear or damage to their Supervisors. Supervisors will inform
you of additional requirements regarding acceptable attire. Certain employees may be
required to wear safety equipment or clothing. Any deviations from these guidelines must
be approved by your Supervisor.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



F. Customer Relations

Employees are expected to be polite, courteous, prompt, and attentive to every
customer. When an employee encounters an uncomfortable situation that he or she does
not feel capable of handling in a professional and courteous manner, their immediate
Supervisor should be called immediately.

Never argue with a customer. If a problem develops or if a customer remains
dissatisfied, ask an immediate Supervisor, Department Manager or the General Manager
to intervene.

G. Confidentiality

Each employee is responsible for safeguarding the confidential information obtained
during employment.

In the course of work employees may have access to confidential information
regarding the District, its suppliers, its customers, or fellow employees. It is each
employee’s responsibility to prevent revealing or divulging any such information unless it
is necessary for them to the performance of their assigned duties. Access to confidential
information should be on a “need-to-know” basis and must be authorized by a Supervisor.
Any breach of this Policy will not be tolerated and legal action may be taken by the District.

H. Outside Business or Employment

While employed as a Full-Time employee by the District, employees are expected
to devote their energies to their jobs with the District. The following types of employment,
education classes or extracurricular activities, elsewhere are strictly prohibited:

e Additional employment that conflicts with an employee’s work schedule,
duties, and responsibilities at the District.

e Additional employment that creates a conflict of interest or is incompatible
with the employee's position with the District.

e Additional employment that impairs or has a detrimental effect on the
employee’s work performance with the District.

e Additional employment that requires the employee to conduct work or
related activities on District property during the employer's working hours or
using District facilities and/or equipment.

¢ Additional employment that directly or indirectly competes with the business
or the interests of the District.

Employees who wish to engage in additional employment that may create a real or
apparent conflict of interest must submit a written request to the Administrative Services

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



Manager explaining the details of the additional employment. If the additional employment
is authorized, the District assumes no responsibility for it. The District shall not provide
workers’ compensation coverage or any other benefit for injuries occurring from or arising
out of additional employment. Authorization to engage in additional employment can be
revoked at any time.

Outside employment is defined as any work, service or other act performed by an
employee other than his/her District duties for which the employee receives compensation.
In addition to work for another employer, outside employment includes, but is not limited
to:

e Landscaping

e Teaching

e Bookkeeping

e Painting

e Self-employment

e Sale of commercial or homemade products
e Construction

Inconsistent and incompatible employment is defined as, but is not limited to work
that: a) Results in a conflict of interest, b) Give the impression that outside activities are
official acts, c) Detracts from job performance with the District, d) Causes the employee to
be less effective or productive, €) Tends to impair the mental or physical capacity of the
employee, f) Is subject to District regulation, and g) Takes time and attention away from
District business.

All employees shall request authorization for any outside business or employment
in addition to their employment with the District on a standard form, Request for
Authorization of Outside Business or Employment, provided by the District, prior to
beginning date of business or employment.

If a request is disapproved by the Department head, the employee may request
review by the General Manager, who shall make a final decision in writing to the employee
within twenty (20) calendar days, after making or causing to be made wherever
investigation that he/she deems necessary.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



Sick leave will not be granted for any injury arising out of or injured in connection
with any outside business or employment. Paid leave, with the exception of annual
vacation leave and holidays, shall not be used for outside business or employment. A
leave of absence from the District employment shall not be granted for the purpose of
pursuing outside business or employment.

On an annual basis, employees will resubmit the Request for Authorization of
Outside Business or Employment and note on the form that the request is an annual
update. An employee terminating his/her outside business or employment shall notify the
Administrative Manager or designee in writing.

I. Conflicts of Interest

Employees are responsible for adherence to the District’s Conflict of Interest Code
and all applicable rules or polices and State law regarding conflicts of interest. Further,
they must avoid situations involving actual or potential conflicts of interest. Personal
involvement with a competitor, supplier, or subordinate employee of the District, which
impairs an employee's ability to exercise good judgment on behalf of the District, creates
an actual or potential conflict of interest. Supervisor-subordinate personal relationships
also can lead to Supervisory problems, possible claims of harassment, and morale
problems.

An employee involved in any of the types of relationships or situations described in
this Policy should immediately and fully disclose the relevant circumstances to their
immediate Supervisor, or the Administrative Services Manager or designee, for a
determination about whether a potential or actual conflict exists. If an actual or potential
conflict is determined, the District may take whatever corrective action appears appropriate
according to the circumstances. Failure to disclose an actual or potential conflict of interest
shall constitute grounds for disciplinary action.

Every elected official and public employee who makes or influences
governmental decisions is required to submit a Statement of Economic Interest, also
known as the Form 700. The Form 700 provides transparency and ensures accountability
in two ways:

a. It provides necessary information to the public about an official’'s personal
financial interests to ensure that officials are making decisions in the best
interest of the public and not enhancing their personal finances.

b. It serves as a reminder to the public official of potential conflicts of interest
so the official can abstain from making or participating in governmental
decisions that are deemed conflicts of interest.

The following classifications are required by the District to complete this form:

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT


http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/conflicts-of-interest-rules.html

e Board of Directors

e General Manager

e Administrative Services Manager
e Parks Services Manager

e Recreation Services Manager

e Park Supervisor

e Recreation Supervisor

e Administrative/Development Analyst

The District prohibits personal use of contractors that have current contracts with the
District in an amount of $5,000 or more. This will be applied to all employees who work in
a capacity where they can make a decision or a board recommendation on who is hired.

J. Acceptance of Gifts

Employees shall not directly or indirectly solicit any gift or receive any gift whether
in the form of money, services, loan, travel, entertainment, hospitality, promise, or any
other form under circumstances which it could reasonably be inferred the gift was intended
to influence them or could be expected to influence them in the performance of their official
duties, or was intended as a reward for any official action on their part.

(a) Gifts that will be shared with office staff, such as boxes of candy, flowers
and food, may be viewed as exceptions provided they are of minimal value and do not
exceed limits imposed by law for gifts to public employees. All financial disclosure laws
and regulations must be complied with.

(b) An employee who is unsure of any questionable gifts or offers of gifts should
immediately report the matter to a Supervisor or the Administrative Services Department.

K. Public Records Act, Government Code §6253

Public records are open to inspection by the public at all times during office hours
and every person has a right to inspect any public record except as exempted
(Government Code §6253 (a)). District guidelines can be obtained at the Administration
Office.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



L. Business Conduct and Ethics

Public confidence is important to any organization. For a Special District entity,
public confidence is vital. To warrant continued public trust, public entities and their
employees and officials must be above reproach, steadfastly adhering to the highest
ethical standards and business practices. The District expects each employee to follow
such standards and practices at all times.

Each employee should adhere to high standards of professional and personal
behavior on and off the job. Deficiencies in personal or business conduct can result in
disciplinary action including termination of employment or removal as a volunteer.

Committing a dishonest act, attempting to defraud the public, shoplifting, theft, etc.
or a breach of trust is not permitted. Employees cannot use District funds for personal use.
Discharge from employment or official removal for certain dishonest, fraudulent, and
criminal acts is required by certain regulatory agencies and governing laws.

Because laws and regulations governing federal entity operations are complex and
changing, it is difficult for any volunteer or employee to know them all. The best safeguard
is to strictly follow the operating rules, policies, and procedures in District manuals and
handbooks.

If it is believed another employee or an official has committed a dishonest act or
breached this policy in any way, report the incident to a Supervisor, Manager, or the
General Manager immediately.

Employees may not conduct personal business or business for another employer
during their scheduled working hours.

M. News Media Contacts

Employees may be approached for interviews or comments by the news media. Only
staff designated or approved by the General Manager should comment to news reporters
on District policy or events relevant to the District.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



N. Drug and Alcohol Abuse

It is the intention of this policy to eliminate substance abuse and its effects in the
work place. While the District has no intention of intruding into the private lives of its
employees, unless it is for legitimate District reasons, involvement with drugs and alcohol
off the job can take its toll on job performance and employee safety. Employees must be
in a condition to perform their duties safely and efficiently, in the interests of their fellow
workers and the public as well as themselves. The presence of drugs and alcohol on the
job, and the influence of these substances on employees during working hours, are
inconsistent with this objective.

Furthermore, the use of prescription drugs and/or over-the-counter drugs also may
affect an employee’s job performance and may seriously impair them. If an employee is
taking a drug or medication, whether or not prescribed by a physician, which may
adversely affect their ability to perform work in a safe or productive manner, they are
required to report such use to their Supervisor. This includes drugs which are known or
advertised as possibly affecting judgment, coordination or other senses, including those
which may cause drowsiness or dizziness, and including both prescription and non-
prescription drugs and medications. The employee’s Supervisor, in conjunction with the
Administrative Services Department, will determine whether they will be allowed to remain
at work, and whether any work restrictions are appropriate.

Employees who think they may have an alcohol or drug usage problem are urged to
voluntarily seek confidential assistance from the Employee Assistance Program. While the
District will be supportive of those who seek help voluntarily, the District will be equally firm
in identifying and disciplining those who continue to be substance abusers and do not seek
help or continue substance abuse even while enrolled in counseling or rehabilitation
programs.

Supervisors may be trained to recognize abusers and become involved in this
control process. Alcohol or drug abuse will not be tolerated and disciplinary action, up to
and including termination, will be used as necessary to achieve this goal.

This policy provides guidelines for the detection and deterrence of alcohol and drug
abuse. It also outlines the responsibilities of the District managers and employees. To that
end, the District will act to eliminate any substance abuse (alcohol, illegal drugs,
prescription drugs or any other substance which could impair an employee's ability to
safely and effectively perform the functions of the particular job) which increases the
potential for accidents, absenteeism, substandard performance, poor employee morale or
damage to the District's reputation. All persons covered by this policy should be aware that
violations of the policy may result in discipline, up to and including termination.

In recognition of the public service responsibilities entrusted to the employees of the
District, and that drug and alcohol usage can hinder a person's ability to perform duties
safely and effectively, the following policy against drug and alcohol abuse is hereby
adopted by the District.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



It is District policy that employees shall not be under the influence, or in possession,
of alcohol or drugs while on District property, at work locations, or while on duty or subject
to being called to duty or standby, and that employees shall not sell or provide drugs or
alcohol to any other employee or person while on duty or on standby duty.

While use of validly prescribed medications and drugs does violate this policy per
se, failure by an employee to notify his/her Supervisor, before beginning work, when taking
medications or drugs which could foreseeably interfere with the safe and effective
performance of duties, or the operation of District equipment, can result in discipline up to
and including termination. In the event there is a question regarding an employee's ability
to safely and effectively perform assigned duties while using such medications or drugs,
clearance from a qualified physician may be required.

The District reserves the right to search, without employee consent, all areas and
property in which the District maintains control or joint control with the employee. “Right
to search, when utilized, shall be preceded with notice to the employee of his/her right to
representation and to be present during the search unless it is an emergency or the District
deems it is not practical to have the employee present.” Otherwise, the District may notify
appropriate law enforcement agencies that an employee may have illegal drugs in his or
her possession or in an area not jointly or fully controlled by the District.

Refusal to immediately submit to an alcohol and/or drug analysis when requested
by District management or law enforcement personnel, or refusal to submit to a search of
personal properties if requested by law enforcement personnel, may constitute
insubordination and be grounds for discipline up to and including termination.

Employees reasonably believed to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs shall
be prevented from engaging in further work and shall be detained for a reasonable time
until he or she can be safely transported from the work site.

The District is committed to providing reasonable accommodation to those
employees whose drug or alcohol problem classifies them as handicapped under federal
and/or state law.

The District has established an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) to assist those
employees who voluntarily seek help for alcohol or drug problems. Employees should
contact their Supervisors or Administrative Services Department for additional information.

This policy applies to all employees and unpaid persons whose actions can serve to
place themselves or employees at risk, cause poor employee morale, or damage the
District's reputation. This policy applies to alcohol and drugs, including all substances,
drugs, or medication, whether legal or illegal, which could impair an employee's ability to
effectively and safely perform the functions of the job.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



For purposes of this Section, the following definitions shall apply:

“‘Abuse of any legal drug” means the use of any legal drug, including prescription
drugs, (a) for any purpose other than the purpose for which it was prescribed or
manufactured;, or (b) in a quantity, frequency or manner that is contrary to the instructions
or recommendations of the prescribing physician or manufacturer.

“Controlled substance” or “Drugs” denotes any substance which could potentially
impair the employee’s ability to effectively and safely perform the functions of his/her
duties, including, but not limited to the following including derivatives of: alcohol, coca
leaves, cocaine, marijuana, opioids (opium and opiates or any hallucinogenic), “Speed”
including amphetamines, methamphetamine, lysergic acid (L.S.D.), PCP, quaaludes, etc.
As outlined below, certain prescription drugs and medications shall also be classified as
controlled substances.

A complete listing of controlled substances may be found in Schedules | through V
of Section 202 of the Controlled Substance Act (21 U.S.C. 812), and as further defined at
21 CFR 1300.11 through 1300.15. A copy of Schedules | through V of Section 202 of the
Controlled Substances Act shall be kept on file with the District, and will be available for
inspection by an employee on request.

“Conviction” is a finding of guilt (including a plea of no contest), an imposition of
sentence, or both, by any judicial body charged with the responsibility to determine
violations of the Federal or State criminal drug statutes.

An employee must:

i. not report to work or be subject to duty while his/her ability to perform job duties is
impaired due to on or off duty alcohol or drug use; not possess or use alcohol or impairing
drugs, including illegal drugs and prescription drugs without a prescription, during working
hours or while on standby duty, on breaks, during meal periods or at anytime while on
District property;

ii.not directly or through a third party sell or provide drugs or alcohol to any person,
including any employee, while either or both employees are on duty or on standby duty,
unless attending a District sponsored event where alcohol may be served;

iii. submit immediately to an alcohol and drug test when requested by a District
representative, and approved by the General Manager or his/her designated
representative;

iv. notify his/her Supervisor, before beginning work, when taking any
medications or drugs, prescription or non-prescription, which the employee knows or
should know may interfere with the safe and effective performance of duties or operation
of District equipment; and

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



V. provide, within 24 hours of request, bona fide verification of a current valid
prescription for any potentially impairing drug or medication identified when a drug
screen/test is positive. The prescription must be in the employee's name.

Managers and Supervisors are responsible for reasonable enforcement of this
policy.

Managers and Supervisors may request that an employee submit to a drug and/or
alcohol test when a manager or Supervisor has a reasonable suspicion that an employee
is intoxicated or under the influence of drugs or alcohol while on the job or subject to being
called.

"Reasonable suspicion" is a belief based on objective facts sufficient to lead a
reasonably prudent Supervisor to suspect that an employee is under the influence of drugs
or alcohol so that the employee's ability to perform the functions of the job is impaired or
so that the employee's ability to perform his/her job safety is reduced. "Reasonable
suspicion" shall generally not be deemed to exist if other objective explanations exist.

For example, any of the following, alone or in combination, may constitute
reasonable suspicion: (when such behavior is unusual for an individual)

e Slurred speech;
e Alcoholic odor on breath;
e Unsteady walking and movement;

¢ An accident involving District property, where it appears the employee's
conduct is at fault, when other objective evidence exists;

e Physical altercation;

e Unusual behavior;

e Verbal altercation;

e Possession of alcohol or drugs;

Any Manager or Supervisor requesting an employee to submit to a drug and/or
alcohol test should document in writing the facts constituting reasonable suspicion that the
employee in question is intoxicated or under the influence of drugs.

Any Manager or Supervisor encountering an employee who refuses an order to
submit to a drug and/or alcohol analysis upon request shall remind the employee of the
requirements and disciplinary consequences of this policy. Where there is reasonable

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



suspicion that the employee is then under the influence of alcohol or drugs, the manager
or Supervisor should arrange for the employee to be safely transported home.

Managers and Supervisors shall not physically search the employee, nor shall they
search the personal possession of an employee without the freely given written consent
of, and in the presence of, the employee.

Managers and Supervisors shall notify their Department Manager or designee when
they have reasonable suspicion to believe that an employee may have illegal drugs in his
or her possession or in an area not jointly or fully controlled by the District. If the
Department Manager or designee concurs that there is reasonable suspicion of illegal drug
possession, the Department Manager shall notify the appropriate law enforcement
agency.

The drug and/or alcohol test may test for any substance which could impair an
employee's ability to effectively and safely perform the functions of his/her job, including,
but not limited to, prescription medications, alcohol, heroin, cocaine, morphine and its
derivatives, P.C.P., methadone, barbiturates, amphetamines, marijuana, and other
cannabinoids.

If drug/alcohol testing is proposed, the employee who is to be tested shall have the
right to determine whether the test is by blood sample or by urinalysis. Testing, other than
by breathalyzer performed by law enforcement for reasonable cause, shall only be
conducted by a laboratory certified by the National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA), using
gas spectrometer testing and shall, in all cases, include a split-sample properly identified,
for use by the employee if the employee challenges a positive result. The split sample
and/or original sample shall be available for parallel testing by a different licensed
laboratory at the District's expense. Test results and samples shall be retained for at least
one (1) year. Any irregularity in the chain of custody of a sample shall serve to void the
test.

A positive result from a drug and/or alcohol analysis may result in disciplinary action,
up to and including termination. "Positive results" shall be defined, for alcohol, as having
a blood-alcohol level above that limit as established under California law for the operation
of a motor vehicle.

If the drug screen is positive, the employee must provide within 24 hours of request
bona fide verification of a valid current prescription for the drug identified in the drug
screen. The prescription must be in the employee's name. If the employee does not
provide acceptable verification of a valid prescription, or if the prescription is not in the
employee's name, or if the employee has not previously notified his or her Supervisor, the
employee will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



If an alcohol or drug test is positive for alcohol or drugs, the District shall conduct an
investigation to gather all facts.

The Alcohol/Drug Abuse Report shall not be considered valid until signed by a
trained Supervisor/Manager and the General Manager or his designee. Any such report
shall be removed from the file unless confirmation is made that the violation took place.

Suspicion of, participation in EAP laboratory reports and test results shall not appear
in an employee's general personnel folder. Information of this nature will be contained in
a separate confidential medical folder that will be securely kept under the control of the
Administrative Services Department. The reports or test results may be disclosed to
District management on a strictly need-to-know basis and to the tested employee upon
request.

Disclosures, without employee consent, may also occur when: (1) the information is
compelled by law or by judicial or administrative process; (2) the information has been
placed at issue in a formal dispute between the employer and employee; (3) the
information is needed by medical personnel for the diagnosis or treatment of the patient
who is unable to authorize disclosure.

Disclosure of any information garnered through the administration of this policy is a
violation of this policy and may cause discipline up to and including termination of the
person or persons making the disclosure.

0. Anti-Harassment, Discrimination, and Abusive Conduct Policy

The District is committed to providing a work environment free of unlawful
harassment. District policy prohibits all forms of harassment in the workplace. This
includes harassment based in regard to sex, gender, race, creed, color, religion, class,
disability, national origin, age, political or union affiliation, marital status, medical condition
or sexual orientation. Any technique or procedure used in recruitment and selection of
employees shall be designed to measure only the job- related qualifications of applicants.
No recruitment or selection technique shall be used which, in the opinion of the District, is
not justifiably linked to successful job performance.

The District strictly prohibits discrimination or harassment of employees in the
workplace against any protected status of person as set forth above. Discrimination is any
action or conduct by which an employee is treated differently or less favorably than other
employees similarly situated to him or her for the sole reason that he or she is a member
of a legally protected class.

Harassment includes all forms of offensive or unwelcome physical or verbal conduct
that interferes with an employee’s work or creates an offensive or hostile working

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT




environment, based on an employee’s protected status. Such conduct constitutes
harassment when (a) submission to such conduct is made a condition of employment,
either expressly or implied, (b) submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual
is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting that individual, or (c) such conduct
has the purpose or effect or unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work performance
or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment. It is also unlawful to
discriminate or harass based on the perception or association of a protected status.

Prohibited unlawful harassment includes, but is not limited to, the following behavior:

e Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory jokes or comments, slurs or
unwanted sexual advances, invitations or comments;

e Visual displays such as derogatory and/or sexually-oriented posters,
photography, cartoons, drawings or gestures;

e Physical conduct including assault, unwanted touching, intentionally
blocking normal movement or interfering with work because of sex, race or
any other protected basis;

e Threats and demands to submit to sexual requests as a condition of
continued employment, or to avoid some other loss and offers of
employment benefits in return for sexual favors; and

e Retaliation for reporting or threatening to report harassment.

Sexual harassment of all types towards employees in the workplace is specifically
prohibited and is illegal, unacceptable, and will NOT be tolerated. Under state and federal
law, sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual
favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature that is offensive to the
person or persons. It is illegal whenever (a) submission to such conduct is made a
condition of employment, either expressly or implied, (b) submission to or rejection of such
conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting that
individual, or (c) such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with
an individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working
environment. Sexual harassment can occur between members of the same or opposite
sex and is prohibited whether it involves a co-worker, a supervisor, or persons doing
business with or for the District.

Examples of sexual harassment include unwelcome sexual propositions or marriage
proposals; unwelcome hugging, kissing, or other offensive physical contact or a sexual
nature; lewd gestures, remarks, or innuendos; unwelcome discussions of sexual practices
or anatomy; and sexually offensive posters, photographs, drawings, cartoons, jokes,
stories, nicknames, or comments about appearance.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



All employees who are hired by the District will be given a copy of this Policy Manual
and will receive guidance from the District on its provisions and the District's commitment
to provide a workplace free from harassment, discrimination, and retaliation. In addition,
all supervisors and employees will be trained in accordance with the requirements of FEHA
(Government Code § 12950.1) and implementing regulations.

Any employee who believes he or she has been unlawfully discriminated against or
harassed should bring the matter to the attention of the employee’s supervisor immediately
and provide a full and accurate report of the underlying facts either verbally or in writing.
Where the employee’s supervisor is the alleged harasser, the employee should bring the
matter to the attention of the Administrative Services Department. Employees are urged
to report to the employee’s Supervisor, but this is not required if the employee feels
uncomfortable in doing so, or if the employee believes the supervisor is the harasser. In
all cases, employees are free to report such problems directly to the Administrative
Services Department.

Upon notification of a harassment complaint, the Administrative Services Manager
or designee shall promptly and in good faith commence or conduct an investigation of the
complaint and supervise and/or investigate the complaint. The investigation will generally
include interviews with (1) the complainant; (2) the accused harasser; and (3) any person
that is believed to have relevant knowledge concerning the complaint. This may include
victims of similar conduct.

All such reports will be kept confidential to the greatest extent possible, but some
disclosure will be necessary to conduct a proper investigation. In each case, the employee
reporting the problem will receive a written reply from the Administrative Services Manager
or designee on the results of the investigation and whether appropriate action has been
taken. Any employee who is not satisfied with the reply may appeal to the General
Manager and will receive a reply in writing.

FEHA (California Govt. Code Sections 12940 et seq.) prohibits unlawful
discrimination or harassment based on a protected status. Employees may file complaints
about sexual harassment or other illegal employment discrimination with the California Fair
Employment and Housing Commission (FEHC), or with the California Department of Fair
Employment and Housing (DFEH). The DFEH is authorized to accept and investigate
complaints of employment discrimination, and to mediate settlements. The FEHC has
authority to issue accusations against employers, conduct formal hearings, and award
reinstatement, back pay, damages, and other affirmative relief. Employees may also file
complaints with the federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC).

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



The District prohibits retaliation against any employee because of the employee’s
truthful and good faith opposition to a practice the employee reasonably believes to
constitute employment discrimination or harassment or because of the employee’s
participation in an employment discrimination investigation, proceeding, or hearing. Any
retaliatory action because of such opposition or participation will not be tolerated; and may
also be unlawful. Opposition to perceived harassment or discrimination includes
threatening to file a discrimination complaint with the EEOC, the DFEH, or court, or
complaining about alleged employment discrimination or harassment to a manager, co-
worker, or other official. Opposition also includes a complaint or protest made on behalf
of another employee or made by the employee’s representative. Opposition in a manner
which disrupts the workplace, or which constitutes an unlawful activity, or engaging in
badgering or threatening of employees or supervisors is not protected. Participation
includes filing, testifying, or assisting in any manner in an investigation, proceeding,
hearing, or litigation under federal or state employment discrimination statutes or at other
hearings regarding protected employee rights.

Employees who believe they have been retaliated against in violation of this Policy
may inform the Administrative Services Department, and investigation of complaints shall
be conducted as provided in this policy. FEHA prohibits retaliation against employees
because they have filed a complaint with the DFEH, participated in an investigation,
proceeding, or hearing with either agency, or opposed by practice made unlawful by the
FEHA.

Malicious Complaint: While the District vigorously defends its employee’s right to
work in an environment free of sexual harassment, it also recognizes that false
accusations of sexual harassment can have serious consequences. Accordingly, any
employee who is found, through the District's investigation, to have knowingly falsely
accused another person of sexual harassment will be subject to appropriate disciplinary
action, up to and including termination.

The District does not tolerate any act or behavior which can be perceived as
threatening, hostile, and/or violent. No employee shall make any threat, either physical or
verbal, against a co-worker, supervisor, or member of the public. No employee, other than
those required by their position, shall bring a weapon (exclusive of personal defense
chemical spray) of any type to a District facility, including parking lots and public streets
outside or immediately adjacent to a District building or place in a District vehicle or
equipment. Violation of this “zero tolerance” policy will lead to discipline, up to and
including termination. An employee, having demonstrated a legitimate need and having
obtained any necessary certification, may bring a personal defense chemical spray to a
District facility including parking lots and public streets outside or immediately adjacent to
a District building or place in a District vehicle or equipment, if first approved by their

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT



Department Manager having demonstrated a legitimate need and having obtained any
necessary certification. the Administrative Services Department.

All employees are required to report immediately to their Supervisor and Manager
any threats or incidents of violence. Supervisors and Managers are required to
investigate, or to cause to be investigated, incidents of violence or threats of violence to
maintain department safety.

Effective January 1, 1995 the Workplace Violence Safety Act became law. Pursuant
to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 527.8, employers are permitted to seek
temporary restraining orders (TRO) and an injunction to protect employees who have been
the subject of actual or threatened unlawful violence in the workplace.

The District shall comply with California Labor Code Sections 230 and 230.1 which
prohibits discrimination or adverse employment action against an employee who is a victim
of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, for taking time off from work to address
such domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, for seeking medical attention,
counseling, participating in safety planning or obtaining services from a domestic violence
shelter program or rape crisis center.

Employees who are victims of sexual assault, domestic violence, or stalking may
use available vacation, personal leave, accrued paid sick leave, or compensatory time off
unless the employee is covered by a collective bargaining agreement that provides for
different rights regarding use of leave. An employee without available leave may still take
time off for such purposes. Employees have a right to request, as a reasonable
accommodation, that employers make changes in the workplace to ensure their safety.

As a condition of taking time off for the purposes set forth under Labor Code Section
230 and 230.1, the employee is required to give their supervisor reasonable advance
notice of the employee’s intention to take time off, unless the advance notice is not
feasible. In the event of an unscheduled absence due to domestic violence, sexual assault
and/or stalking, the District will not take any action against the employee if the employee,
within a reasonable time after the absence, provides [a] written certification to the
employer.

It is the policy of the District to maintain a workplace free from any form of abusive
conduct or bullying. The receiving of any complaints of alleged acts of abusive conduct or
bullying will be taken seriously and will be promptly and objectively investigated, and
offenders will be appropriately disciplined.

“Abusive conduct” is defined under Government Code Sections §12950.1(g)(2) as
conduct of an employer or employee in the workplace, with malice, that a reasonable
person would find hostile, offensive, and unrelated to an employee’s legitimate business

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT




interests. For example, abusive conduct may take the form of, but not limited to, repeated
infliction of verbal abuse, such as the use of derogatory remarks, insults, and epithets,
verbal or physical conduct that a reasonable person would find threatening, intimidating,
or humiliating, or the gratuitous sabotage or undermining of a person’s work performance.
A single act shall not constitute abusive conduct, unless especially severe or egregious.

Another form of abusive conduct may also be referred to as bullying. In addition to
the above definition, examples of workplace bullying may include, but not limited to the
spreading of malicious rumors, or insulting someone by word or behavior, ridiculing or
demeaning someone, picking on someone or setting them up to fail, exclusion or
victimization, unfair or discriminatory treatment, overbearing supervision or other misuse
of power or position, making threats or comments about job security without basis,
slapping, pushing, shoving, punching, or otherwise physically attacking someone, or
deliberately undermining a competent worker by unnecessarily overloading their work and
constant criticism.

If an employee is bullied because of their race, gender, religion, sexual orientation,
disability, age, or any other protected status, he or she may have a claim for harassment
and discrimination.

ARTICLE 7 - WAGES; PAYROLL

A. Work Schedules

The District Administration office is normally open for business between the hours
of 8 a.m. and 5 p.m., Monday through Friday. Parks and facilities are available for rental
as otherwise posted or in accordance with District's General Use Policy except with the
permission of the General Manager or designee. Immediate Supervisors will assign
individual work schedules. All employees are expected to be at their desks or work
locations at the start of their scheduled shifts.

For payroll purposes, employees who are not working an Alternative Work Schedule
will operate under a workweek which begins at 12:01 a.m. Saturday and ends at midnight
on Friday.

B. Alternative Work Schedule - 9/80

The District offers employees in certain work units the opportunity to work an
alternative workweek schedule (AWS) based upon the business needs of the District and
its management. Employees who are offered the opportunity to work and do work an
alternative work schedule are subject to the standards and requirements outlined below.

The 9/80 work schedule has the following requirements:

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 7 — WAGES; PAYROLL



a. The schedule cannot impact the District’'s requirement to conduct
business or adversely affect workflow.

b. Employees will be assigned to either the 9/80 or the regular 10/80
work schedule and adhere to it. Employees are entitled to revoke the
agreement to the alternate work schedule in writing, however; they
may not alternate back and forth between the schedules.

c. The Supervisor and the General Manager’s approval is needed prior
to the start of working a 9/80 work schedule. The 9/80 work week
day off is designated by the Department Manager. The General
Manager has the right to designate which day is appropriate for the
needs of the District. Once the regular day off is established, it will
be considered the regular day off and employees may not switch the
day and/or shifts.

d. If a meeting is scheduled on a regular 9/80 work week day off,
employees are still required to attend the meeting unless excused by
a Supervisor, Manager or the General Manager. Employees will be
paid for this working time, including overtime pay if applicable.
Exempt employees will not be compensated.

e. The alternate workweek schedule (9/80) shall begin at 12:00 a.m. on
the first day of the pay cycle and shall end at 11:59 p.m. on the 14th
day of the same pay cycle.

C. Timekeeping Requirements

Accurately recording time worked and submitting a timecard when it is due is the
employee’s responsibility. Federal and State laws require the District to keep an accurate
record of time worked in order to calculate employee pay and benefits on the appropriate
pay day. Time worked is the time actually spent on the job performing assigned duties.

On a daily basis non-exempt employees should accurately record the time they
work. Non-exempt employees may not begin work more than five minutes before the start
of their shift or stop working more than five minutes after the end of their shift without prior
authorization from their Supervisor. Time cards for non-exempt employees are submitted
to Supervisors or other designated staff on the last Friday of the pay period.

In order to track vacation and sick time, and as a tool for Management to evaluate
performance, exempt employees must complete a timecard and submit to the General
Manager on the last Friday of each pay period. The report should reflect the days worked
and the hours of leave (and the type of leave) used during the pay period.

It is the employee’s responsibility to sign their time card and to verify the accuracy
of all time recorded. Supervisors will review and sign the time card before submitting it to
Accounting for processing. As designated by the Department Supervisor, Supervisory staff

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 7 — WAGES; PAYROLL



will review the time card(s) for errors, initial and submit to the Supervisor for submission
to Accounting. All timecards must be completed in Blue or Black Ink only. Any handwritten
marks or changes on the timecard must be initialed by the employee and a Supervisor.
Whiteout is not to be used on timecards. Altering, falsifying, or tampering with time
records, punching in/out or recording time on another employee’s time record (even with
that employee’s permission) is prohibited. Violation of this rule may result in disciplinary
action, up to and including termination.

Any errors on a timecard should be reported immediately to a Supervisor/Crew Lead.

D. Administrative Pay Corrections

It is District policy and practice to accurately compensate employees and to do so in
compliance with all applicable Federal and State laws. To ensure proper payment for all
time worked and that no improper deductions are made, information should be recorded
correctly of all work time and paychecks reviewed promptly to identify and to report all
errors. In the unlikely event that there is an error in the amount of pay, or in the calculation
of accrued vacation or sick leave, or if there is an unauthorized deduction made, the
employee should promptly bring the discrepancy to the attention of the Administrative
Services Department staff so the correction can be made as quickly as possible. Once
underpayments/overpayments are identified, they will be corrected in the next paycheck.
If this presents a financial burden to the employee, a manual paycheck may be written as
soon as possible.

E. Payment of Wages

Paychecks are normally available by 4 p.m. every other Thursday at the
Administration Office as outlined on the District's payroll schedule. Paychecks will be
mailed to the current mailing address on file; paychecks will not be available for pick up.

F. Payroll Records

Employees may receive copies of their payroll records within twenty-one (21) days
of making a request to the Administrative Services Department to do so. Employees will
be charged for the cost of making copies.

G. Unclaimed/Lost Paychecks

Checks lost or otherwise missing should be reported immediately to Accounting so
that a “stop payment” order may be initiated. Management will determine when, and if, a
new check should be issued to replace a lost or missing check.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 7 — WAGES; PAYROLL



H. Direct Deposit

The District encourages automatic payroll deposit for employees. To begin
automatic payroll deposit, the correct form must be completed and returned to the
Administrative Services Department at least 10 days before the pay period begins.

To stop automatic payroll deposit, complete the form available from the
Administrative Services Department and return it at least 10 days before the pay period.

I. Pay for Mandatory Meetings / Training

The District will pay non-exempt employees for their attendance at meetings,
lectures, and training programs under the following conditions:

a. Attendance is mandatory;
b. The meeting, course, or lecture is directly related to the employee’s job;
C. The employee who is required to attend such meetings, lectures, or training

programs will be notified of the necessity for such attendance by his or her Supervisor;

d. Employees who attend meetings, lectures or training programs will be
compensated at their regular rate of pay;

e. Any worked hours in excess of 40 hours in a week will be paid at the
applicable overtime rate, at the hourly rate in effect at the time the overtime work is being
performed.

J. Overtime for Non-Exempt Employees

Employees may be required to work overtime as business necessities arise. For all
non-emergency needs, the District will provide as much advance notice as possible to the
employee of the need to work overtime as applicable with Federal and State laws. The
District will attempt to distribute overtime evenly. All overtime work must be previously
authorized by a Supervisor. The District provides compensation for all overtime hours
worked by non-exempt employees in accordance with Federal law as follows:

All hours worked in excess of regularly scheduled hours in one workweek will be
treated as overtime. A standard regular workday begins at 12:01 a.m. and ends at midnight
24 hours later. The workweek begins Saturday at 12:01 a.m. and ends Friday at 11:59
p.m. Compensation for actual hours worked in excess of 40 worked hours for the
workweek shall be paid in accordance with applicable law.

Exempt employees may have to work hours beyond their normal schedules as work
demands require. No overtime compensation will be paid to exempt employees.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 7 — WAGES; PAYROLL



K. Meal and Rest Periods

Non-exempt employees that work more than five or more hours per day are required
to take an unpaid meal period, which must commence before the end of the fifth hour of
work. All employees are provided with a 60-minute meal period to be taken approximately
in the middle of the workday. However, if scheduled to work no more than six hours during
the workday, they can choose to waive their meal period by signing a voluntary written
waiver, to skip the meal and go home earlier. This waiver must be in writing and voluntarily
signed by the employee, and is available from the Administrative Services Department.

Employees wishing to take a 30-minute meal break may do so in lieu of a standard
1-hour meal period with the prior approval from a Supervisor to adjust their work schedule
to deduct the 30 minutes they are not taking for a meal break. Meal periods are scheduled
by the immediate Supervisor and may not be taken at the beginning or the end of a
workday or added to a break. Employees may leave the premises during their meal period.

Employees are allowed a 15-minute rest period for every four hours of work or major
portion thereof; 15-minute breaks are paid by the District and do not need to be recorded
on timecards. Supervisors will schedule rest periods.

It is expected that employees observe their assigned working hours and the time
allowed for meal and rest periods. Rest periods may not be longer than 15 minutes and
they must take place on the premises.

L. Business Expense Reimbursement

The District reimburses employees for business expenses two times each month
when accounts payable checks are processed. These are the opposite weeks of payroll
processing. Employees who have incurred business expenses must submit required
receipts and the appropriate form to the Administrative Services Department staff no later
than three days before the Monday of the accounts payable processing week. All
reimbursable expenses must be submitted within 30 days of time incurred.

Personal and/or vacation travel may be combined with business travel provided
there is no additional cost to the District, and it meets with the approval of the General
Manager. The District credit cards are not to be used for personal expenses.

M. Advances

The District does not permit advances against paychecks or against un-accrued
vacation or sick leave.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 7 — WAGES; PAYROLL



ARTICLE 8 - HEALTH AND SAFETY

A. Safety Policy

It is the policy of the District that accident prevention shall be of high importance in
all phases of operation and administration. It is the intention of the District to provide safe
and healthy working conditions. It is, therefore, a basic requirement that each Supervisor
make the safety of employees part of his/her regular Supervisory function. Itis equally the
duty of each employee to accept and follow established safety regulations and procedures.

Employees are expected to assist management in accident prevention activities.
Unsafe conditions must be reported. All employees are responsible for the housekeeping
duties that pertain to their jobs. Any injury that occurs on the job must be reported to
management as soon as possible. In no circumstance, except an emergency, should an
employee leave a shift without reporting an injury that has occurred.

B. Safety Training

All new employees will be provided a safety orientation during their initial assignment
to the job. The orientation will be conducted by a Safety Committee representative,
Manager, or Supervisor. It will cover the District safety rules and safe practices required
for their job assignment as well as a copy of the Injury and lliness Prevention Program.
Employees given a new job assignment will be provided safety training regarding any new
hazards.

1. To ensure that all employees receive appropriate training, all District
employees will participate in:
a. Scheduled safety meetings
b. Additional training as job duties or work assignments are expanded or
changed.
c. Other training programs as appropriate.

Further training will be provided whenever employees are exposed to new
processes, machinery, equipment chemicals and/or previously unrecognized hazards.

B. Heat Illness

The District is concerned with employee health and safety. Employees who work
outside may be exposed to extreme temperatures or adverse working conditions,
particularly in the summer months. All Supervisors are trained in the prevention of heat
illness. Refer to the District’s Injury lliness and Prevention Program or talk to a Supervisor
for details on how to ensure protection from heat illness dangers.

C. Security/Workplace Violence

The District has developed guidelines to help maintain a secure workplace.
Employees should be aware of persons loitering for no apparent reason in parking areas,

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 8 - HEALTH AND SAFETY




walkways, entrances and exits, and service areas. Any suspicious persons or activities
should be reported to Management personnel. An employee’s desk or office should be
secured at the end of the day. If called away from the work area for an extended length of
time, employees should not leave valuable and/or personal articles in or around
workstations that may be accessible. The security of facilities as well as the welfare of
employees depends upon the alertness and sensitivity of every individual to potential
security risks. A Supervisor should be notified immediately when unknown persons are
acting in a suspicious manner in or around the facilities, or when keys, security passes, or
identification badges are missing.

The District’'s workplace security and violence program is described in detail in the
District’s lllness and Injury Prevention Program (IIPP).

D. Recreational Activities and Programs

The District or its insurer will not be liable for payment of workers’ compensation
benefits for any injury that arises out of an employee’s voluntary participation in any off-
duty recreational, social, or athletic activity that is not part of the employee’s work-related
duties.

E. Inclement Weather/Natural Disasters

In the event of severe weather or a natural disaster that prevents employees from
safely traveling to and from work, the following leave policies will apply:

Conditions that excuse absence from work include flooding, heavy rainstorms, hail,
road closure and power outages. If weather conditions prevent an employee from safely
traveling to work, they must notify their immediate Supervisor by phone, if telephone
service is functional, or by any other available means.

In the event of a natural disaster such as earthquake, fire, or explosion, the office
will be closed if the building is damaged or highways leading to the office are damaged.
For instructions on reporting to another location, contact a Supervisor immediately, if
possible.

The safety of employees’ families should be the employees’ first priority in these
situations, and then they can contact a Supervisor for instructions on when and where to
report.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 8 - HEALTH AND SAFETY



F. Ergonomics

The District is subject to Cal/OSHA ergonomics standards for minimizing workplace
repetitive motion injuries. The District will make necessary adjustments to reduce exposure
to ergonomic hazards through modifications to equipment and processes and employee
training. The District encourages safe and proper work procedures and requires all
employees to follow safety instructions and guidelines.

The District believes that reduction of ergonomic risk is instrumental in maintaining
an environment of personal safety and well-being, and is essential to our business. We
intend to provide appropriate resources to create a risk-free environment.

For questions about ergonomics, contact the Administrative Services Manager.

G. Employees Who Are Required to Drive

The following Policy is established for the use of the District—owned vehicles and
private vehicles in the conduct of official business of the District:

a. The use of motor vehicles for other than official purposes shall be prohibited.

b. Only employees over 18 years of age are permitted to drive for the District.

c. No person shall operate any vehicles owned and maintained by the District
unless such person is an employee of the District and has a valid operator’s
license issued by the California Department of Motor Vehicles. Any person
operating a vehicle owned and maintained by the District is responsible for
observing all rules and regulations as prescribed for the safe operations,
maintenance and security of such vehicle.

d. No person shall be a passenger in any vehicle owned or maintained by the
District unless one of the following conditions is met:

i. Such person is an employee of the District
ii. Such person has a business relationship with the District, and transportation
in such vehicle of the District is necessary
iii. Such person is a family member of an employee of the District and the
transportation of such person is necessary to attend a business meeting or
event which such person is volunteering or an invited guest.

a. Employees who drive their own vehicles on approved District business will be
reimbursed upon submission of a District Mileage Report to Accounting.

b. Reports should be submitted monthly listing beginning and ending mileage for
each trip with the purpose of the trip. Mileage will be reimbursed at the rate
designated by the Internal Revenue Service.

c. The District will not be responsible for any damages, parking tickets, equipment
violation citations or moving violations incurred while operating a vehicle on
District business.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 8 - HEALTH AND SAFETY



Those who are required to drive a District vehicle or their own vehicles on District
business will be required to provide proof of a current valid driver's license and current
effective insurance coverage before the first day of employment.

The District participates in a system that regularly checks state Department of Motor
Vehicles (DMV) records of all employees who drive as part of their job.

H. Use of Cell Phone While Driving

In the interest of the safety of our employees and other drivers, District employees
are required to stop the vehicle in a safe location so that they can safely use their cell
phone or similar device.

Employees must adhere to all federal, state or local rules and regulations regarding
the use of cell phones while driving. Accordingly, employees must not use cell phones if
such conduct is prohibited by law, regulation or other ordinance. Employees must not use
hand held cell phones for business purposes while driving. Should an employee need to
make a business call while driving, he/she should locate a lawfully designated area to park
and make the call or use a hands-free speaking device such as a speakerphone/earpiece.

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | ARTICLE 8 - HEALTH AND SAFETY



INDEX

A M

Appeal, 20, 21 Management, 7, 15, 23, 59, 78, 79, 82
C 0

CalPERS, 13, 50, 51 overtime, 4, 10, 24, 32, 59

clothing, 59, 60

Compensatory Time, 10 P

Conduct, 20, 21, 58
part time year round, 4, 5, 7, 13, 18, 50
D PEPRA, 13
performance, 4, 17, 18, 25, 28, 36, 60, 78
Demotion, 20

Discharge, 27 R
E Retirement, 10, 13, 14, 27, 50
evaluations, 17, 18 S
Exempt, 4, 6, 24, 32, 35
sick, 31
F Suspension, 20
Full Time, 10, 31 V
H vacation, 31
Vacation, 5,6, 7
harassment, 59, 62, 71, 72 Vehicle, 84
hours, 24, 31 vehicles, 83, 84
L
layoff, 28

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District |



EMPLOYEE COPY

| have received my copy of the Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District’s
Employee Manual Personnel Policies and Procedures. | understand and agree that it is
my responsibility to read and familiarize myself with the policies and procedures contained
in the Manual.

UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES

Initial

| understand that, except for employment at-will status, any and all policies or
practices can be changed at any time by the District. The District reserves the right to
change my hours, wages, and working conditions and locations at any time. | understand
and agree that other than the General Manager of Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park
District, no Manager, Supervisor, or representative of the District has authority to enter into
any agreement, express or implied, for employment for any specific period of time, or to
make any agreement for employment other than at-will; only the Board of Directors has
the authority to make any such agreement and then only in writing, signed by the Board of
Directors.

| understand and agree that nothing in the employee Manual creates or is intended
to create a promise or representation of continued employment and that employment at
the District is employment at-will; employment may be terminated at the will of either the
District or me. My signature certifies that | understand that the foregoing agreement on at-
will status is the sole and entire agreement between the District and me concerning the
duration of my employment and the circumstances under which my employment may be
terminated. It supersedes all prior agreements, understandings, and representations
concerning my employment with the District.

REPRESENTED EMPLOYEES

Initial

| understand the Memoranda of Understanding between SEIU Local 721 and the
Pleasant Valley Recreation & Park District supersedes any contradicting language
contained in the Employee Manual/Personnel Policies and Procedures.

Employee Signature Date

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | EMPLOYEE COPY



Employee Name (Please Print)

The information in this handbook supersedes all previously issued publications, documents or memoranda that
would be in conflict with the provisions set forth herein.

TO BE RETAINED IN THE EMPLOYEE’S HANDBOOK

Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District | EMPLOYEE COPY






PLEASANT VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT / AGENDA REPORT

TO: PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
FROM: MARY OTTEN, GENERAL MANAGER

By: Kathryn Drewry, Human Resources Specialist
DATE: March 23, 2022
SUBJECT: EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS RESOLUTION
SUMMARY

As a government agency, the District is required to adopt and update as necessary a Employer-
Employee Relations Resolution.

BACKGROUND

In 1973 the District adopted Resolution #104, providing rules to both employees and the District
on how to address the recognition of employee organizations, bargaining unit determination, the
rights of management and employee organizations. Since the adoption of Resolution #104 the
government code that empowers the District to adopt such rules has changed.

ANALYSIS

The District seeks to promote communication and improved employer-employee relations
between the District and its employees by establishing uniform and orderly methods of
communication. Government Code Section 3507 empowers a District to adopt reasonable rules
and regulations for the administration of employer-employee relations. These rules and
regulations are set forth in an Employer-Employee Relations Resolution (“EERR”).

The intent of the EERR is to expand on existing law and provide clarification for the
administration of employer-employee relations through the establishment of rules. The EERR
does not address wages, hours, benefits, or other terms and conditions of employment.
Procedures regarding the following types of items addressed in the EERR include:

e Recognition of employee organization

e Bargaining unit determinations
e The rights of management and the employee organization
e Meeting and conferring regarding matters within the scope of bargaining
e Impasse resolution
FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact at this time.

RECOMMENDATION
Review the Employer-Employee Relations Resolution and provide direction.




STRATEGIC PLAN COMPLIANCE
Meets 2021 Strategic Plan Goal 1.5 G.: Evaluate and Provide Necessary Tools

ATTACHMENTS
1) Updated Employer-Employee Relations Resolution
2) Resolution #104




RESOLUTION NO. XXX

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
PLEASANT VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT,
CALIFORNIA, RELATING TO EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS
WITHIN THE DISTRICT ADOPTING AN UPDATED POLICY
PERTAINING TO RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN
THE PLEASANT VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT AND
ITS EMPLOYEES, AND RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 104,
RELATING TO EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

WHEREAS, the Pleasant Valley Recreation & Park District (“District”) seeks to
promote full communication and improved employer-employee relations between the
District and its employees by establishing uniform and orderly methods of
communication, and

WHEREAS, on August 9, 1973, the Board of Directors of the Pleasant Valley
Recreation & Park District (“Board”) previously adopted Resolution No. 104, relating to
employer-employee relations and communications; and

WHEREAS, the Government Code section 3507 empowers a district to adopt
reasonable rules and regulations for the administration of employer-employee relations
after consultation in good faith with representatives of its employee organizations
regarding such proposed rules and regulations; and

WHEREAS, District Representatives have met and conferred in good faith with
the employee representatives of the District's Recognized Employee Organizations, as
hereinafter defined, regarding the preparation of an updated comprehensive employer-
employee relations resolution which provides improved guidance and procedures for
communications and relations between the parties; and

WHEREAS, the Board believes that it is in the best interests of the District and its
employees to now adopt an updated and complete employer-employee relations
resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE PLEASANT
VALLEY RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT, CALIFORNIA, DOES ORDAIN AS
FOLLOWS:

ARTICLE . GENERAL PROVISIONS
Section 1. Title of the Resolution

This resolution shall be known as the Employer-Employee Relations Resolution
of the Pleasant Valley Recreation & Park District.

Resolution No. XXX
Page 1



Section 2. Statement of Purpose; Rescission of Prior Resolution

This Resolution is adopted as authorized under Chapter 10, Division 4, Title 1 of
the California Government Code (Section 3500 et seq.), entitled the Meyers-Milias-
Brown Act (“MMBA”), to provide reasonable and orderly procedures for the
administration of employer-employee relations between the District and its employees,
including procedures for the recognition of employee organizations, determination of
appropriate units of representation and/or modifying such units, and a reasonable,
uniform and orderly method for the resolution of questions regarding wages, hours, and
other terms and conditions of employment of District employees.

Resolution No. 104 is hereby rescinded and superseded and this Resolution
shall take precedence over the provisions of any prior minute orders, statements of
policy, or personnel rules of the Board dealing with the same subjects and matters as
are covered herein.

Section 3. Definitions

Except as otherwise specifically provided below, the terms used in this
resolution shall be defined in the same way as such terms are defined in the MMBA. In
addition, the following definitions are adopted for terms used in this resolution.

3.1 “Appropriate Unit” or “Employee Unit of Representation” means a unit of
employee classes or positons, established pursuant to Article Il hereof.

3.2  "District" shall mean the Pleasant Valley Recreation & Park District, a
special district, and where appropriate herein, "Board" refers to the Board of
Directors, the governing body of said District, or any duly authorized
representative of the Pleasant Valley Recreation & Park District.

3.3 "Confer in good faith" or "meet and confer in good faith means
performance by the duly authorized District representative and a representative
of a Recognized Employee Organization or Exclusively Recognized Employee
Organization who shall have the mutual obligation personally to meet within the
time periods established by Section 6 of this Resolution upon request, to
exchange freely information, opinions, and proposals, and to endeavor to reach
an agreement on matters within the scope of representation, including wages,
hours and other terms and conditions of employment, in a good faith effort to:
1) reach agreement on those matters within the authority of such representatives;
2) freely exchange information, opinions and proposals; and 3) reach agreement
in the form of a memorandum of understanding on what will be recommended to
the Board on those matters within the decision making authority of the Board.
This does not require either party to agree to a proposal or to make a
concession.

3.4 "Confidential Employee" means any employee who formulates, develops,
or determines management policy or administers the District's employer-
employee relations, or whose duties normally require access to confidential

Resolution No.
Page 2



information that is used to contribute significantly to the formulation,
development, or determination of the same (e.g., secretary to a department
head, analyst who prepares confidential employer-employee relations
documents).

3.5 "Consult in good faith" or “meet and consult in good faith” means to
communicate in writing or, if requested by the employee organization within the
time limits set by the Service Employee International Union Local 721 (“Union”),
orally, for the purpose of presenting and obtaining views, and advising of
intended actions in a good faith effort to reach a consensus; and as distinguished
from meeting and conferring in good faith regarding matters within the required
scope of the meet and confer process. Consult in good faith does not involve an
exchange of proposals and counterproposals in an endeavor to reach agreement
in the form of a Memorandum of Understanding, nor is it subject to Article IV
hereof.

3.6  "Days" means calendar days unless otherwise stated.

3.7 "Employee" means any person employed by the District in a position
approved in the District's allocated positions and compensation plan, as
approved by the Board of Directors, except in a position designated in that plan
as temporary or part-time.

3.8  "Employee Organization" or “Recognized Employee Organization” (“REQ”)
means any employee organization which is certified as the representative of its
members in a unit formally acknowledged by the District as an employee
organization that represents the District’'s employees.

3.9 "Employee Representative" means the authorized representative of a
Recognized Employee Organization or an Exclusively Recognized Employee
Organization.

3.10 "Employee unit of representation” or “appropriate unit” means a unit of
employee classes or positions, established pursuant to Article Il hereof.

3.11  "Employer-employee relations" means the relationship between the
District and its employees and their employee organization(s), or when used in a
general sense, the relationship between District management and individual
employees or employee organization(s).

3.12 "Exclusive Recognized Employee Organization" (“EREO”) means a sole
employee organization certified as the representative of all employees in a unit or
units, whether or not those employees are its members, and having the exclusive
right and duty to meet and confer in good faith on behalf of said employees
concerning statutorily required subjects pertaining to unit employees and thereby
assuming the corresponding obligation of fairly representing said employees. An
EREO may not be challenged by another employee organization within twelve
(12) months of initial recognition.

Resolution No. XXX
Page 3



3.13 “Filing Period” means the period between November1st and
December 31st of every year following the adoption of this Resolution during
which Employee Organizations may submit petitions to be recognized,
decertified, or modified, or within which an employee organization or the District
may propose to modify an existing unit of representation.

3.14 "Impasse" means that the representatives of the District and a Recognized
Employee Organization or Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization have
reached a “deadlock” or point in the meet and confer process in good faith where
their differences on matters to be included in a Memorandum of Understanding,
or on general mandatory bargaining matters within the scope of representation
and concerning subjects on which they are required to meet and confer, remain
so substantial and prolonged that further meeting and conferring would be futile.

3.15 "Management Employee" means any employee in a position having
significant responsibilities for formulating, administering or managing the
implementation of District policies and programs through independent judgment,
including, but not limited to, the exercise of discretionary authority to develop and
modify institutional goals and priorities, including, but not limited to, the District
Manager, and all Department Heads.

3.16  “Mediation or Conciliation” means the efforts of an impartial third person or
persons functioning as an intermediary to assist the parties in reaching a
voluntary resolution to impasse, through interpretation, suggestion and advice.
Mediation and conciliation are interchangeable terms.

3.17 “Meet and Confer” or “Confer in Good Faith” means performance by the
duly authorized District representative and a representative of a Recognized
Employee Organization or Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization who
shall have the mutual obligation personally to meet within the time periods
established by Section 6 of this Resolution upon request, to exchange freely
opinions, and proposals, and to endeavor to reach an agreement on matters
within the scope of representation, including wages, hours and other terms and
conditions of employment, in a good faith effort to: 1) reach agreement on those
matters within the authority of such representatives; 2)freely exchange
information, opinions and proposals; and 3) reach agreement in the form of a
memorandum of understanding on what will be recommended to the Board of
Directors on those matters within the decision making authority of the Board of
Directors. This does not require either party to agree to a proposal or to make a
concession.

3.18 “Memorandum of Understanding” means a written document jointly
prepared by the District's Service Employees Internation Union Local 721, or
designee(s), and a Recognized Employee Organization or Exclusively
Recognized Employee Organization enumerating any agreement reached as the
result of meeting and conferring on matters within the scope of representation,

Resolution No.
Page 4



and the same signed by the parties involved, and ratified by the majority of the
relevant bargaining unit, and approved by the Board of Directors.

3.19 “Mid-Manager” means management positions defined under the Irwindale
Management Employees Association, which is the exclusive Recognized
Employee Organization for the Management Unit consisting of all regular full-time
management employees, who are not at-will or covered by individual contract
and who are designated by the classifications set forth the Memorandum of
Understanding between that unit and the District. Mid-Managers may be
confidential depending upon their job classification or duties.

3.20 "Service Employees Internation Union Local 721" ("UNION") means the
District's principal representative in all matters of employer-employee relations
with authority to meet and confer on matters within the scope of representation.
The Board of Directors hereby designates the District Manager as the UNION
who is hereby authorized to delegate his/her duties and responsibilities.

3.21 "Professional Employee" means any employee engaged in work requiring
specialized knowledge and skills attained through completion of a recognized
course of instruction.

3.22 "Proof of Employee Support" means (1) an authorization card recently
signed and personally dated by an employee, (2) a verified authorization petition
or petitions recently signed and personally dated by an employee, or
(3) employee dues deduction authorization, using the payroll register for the
period immediately prior to the date a petition is filed hereunder, except that dues
deduction authorizations for more than one employee organization for the
account of any one employee shall not be considered as Proof of Employee
Support for any employee organization. The only authorization which shall be
considered as Proof of Employee Support hereunder shall be the authorization
most recently signed by an employee within ninety (90) days prior to the filing of
a petition.

3.23 “Recognized Employee Organization” (‘REO) or "Employee
Organization(s)" means any employee organization which is certified as the
representative of its members in a unit formally acknowledged by the District as
an employee organization that represents the District’'s employees.

3.24 "Scope of Representation" means all matters relating to employment
conditions and employer-employee relations, including, but not limited to, wages,
hours, and other terms and conditions of employment, except, however, that the
scope of representation shall not include consideration of the merits, necessity,
or organization of any service or activity provided by law or executive order, as
set forth in Section 5.

3.25 "Supervisory Employee" means any employee who has authority, in the
interest of the District, to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, recall, promote,

Resolution No. XXX
Page 5



discharge, assign, reward, or discipline other employees, or the responsibility to
assign work and direct them, or to adjust their grievances, or effectively to
recommend such action if, in connection with the foregoing, the exercise of such
authority is not of a merely routine or clerical nature, but requires the use of
independent judgment.

Section 4. Employee Rights

4.1 Subject to the requirements of the law and Section 5 below, employees
shall have the following rights:

(@) To form, join, and participate in the activities of employee
organizations of their own choosing for the purpose of
representation on matters within the scope of representation, in
accordance with this Resolution.

(b) To refuse to join or participate in the activities of employee
organizations and to represent themselves individually in their
employment relations with the District.

(c) To be free from the interference, intimidation, restraint, coercion, or
discrimination by the District, any employee organization, or any
other employee because of the exercise of these rights.

4.2 Professional Employees shall not be denied the right to be represented
separately from nonprofessional employees by an employee organization
consisting of such Professional Employees.

4.3 No, Supervisory, Management, or Confidential Employee may represent
any employee organization, which represents other employees of the District on
matters within the scope of representation, unless as permitted by the Pleasant
Valley Recreation & Park District Personnel Rules, and no Supervisory,
Management, or Confidential Employees may engage in any activity with or on
behalf of any employee organization which would result in an actual or apparent
conflict of interest, as determined by the UNION.

4.4 Peace officers, as that term is defined in Chapter 4.5 (commencing with
Section 830) of Title 3 of Part 2 of the Penal Code, may be required, and have
the right to be represented by an employee organization which (i) is composed
solely of such peace officers; (ii) concerns itself solely and exclusively with the
wages, hours, working conditions, welfare programs, and advancement of the
academic and vocational training in furtherance of the police profession; and
(iii) is not subordinate to any other organization.

Section 5. District Responsibilities and Rights

51 To ensure that the District is able to carry out its functions and
responsibilities imposed by law, the District has and will retain the exclusive right

Resolution No.
Page 6



to manage and direct the performance of District operations and the work force
performing such operations. Among the rights which are reserved to the District
are the following:

(@)

To determine the merits, necessity, organization, expansion, or
diminishment of any operation, service, or activity conducted by the
District;

To determine and change the facilities, methods, means, and
personnel by which District operations are to be conducted;

To determine and change the number of locations, relocations, and
types of District operations and the processes and materials to be
employed in carrying out said operations including, but not limited
to, the right to subcontract any work or operation;

To determine the size, assignments, and composition of the
employee work force, to determine employee job classifications and
contents thereof, and to assign work to employees in accordance
with requirements as determined by the District;

To relieve employees from duty because of lack of work, lack of
financial resources, or other non-disciplinary reasons;

To hire, transfer, promote, and discipline employees in accordance
with the District's Personnel Rules;

To determine policies, procedures and standards for the selection,
training and promotion of employees;

To establish employee performance standards including, but not
limited to, quality and quantity standards;

To maintain the efficiency of governmental operations;

To take any and all necessary actions to carry out the District’s
operations in emergencies;

To exercise complete control and discretion over the District’s
organization and the technology of performing its work and
services; and

To establish reasonable work and safety rules and regulations to
maintain the efficiency and economy desirable in the performance
of District operations.

Resolution No. XXX
Page 7



5.2  The District, in exercising these rights and operations, will not discriminate
against any employee because of membership or non-membership in any
employee organization.

Section 6. Meeting and Conferring

6.1  The District, through its representative(s), shall meet and confer in good
faith with Employee Representative(s) of any Recognized Employee
Organization (“REO”) or Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization
(“EREQ”) whichever applies regarding matters within the scope of representation
for its members or for all employees, whichever applies, in the unit for which such
organization is recognized.

6.2 When a REO or EREO desires to meet and confer with the District,
through its Employee Representative(s), on matters within the scope of
representation, said organization shall make a request in writing and specify the
subjects to be discussed.

6.3 The REO or EREO shall submit any and all request(s) to meet and confer
on matters within the scope of representation that have a fiscal impact and are
not currently accounted for in the current budget in the manner specified below.

6.4 When practical, by March 15 if it intends to have the requested items
considered for the budget for the next fiscal year.

6.4.1 If a REO or EREO fails to submit, or to request a reasonable
extension of time to submit, written requests by March 15th, the District
shall send written notice requesting said employee organization to submit
its written requests. If said employee organization fails to deliver to the
District its written request(s) the meet and confer process will not
commence until such request is submitted.

6.4.2 Written requests submitted by the REO or EREO may be
changed during the meet and confer process so long as the total cost of
the requests as changed does not exceed the cost of the initial requests.

6.4.3 Promptly after such written requests have been made, a meeting
shall be arranged at a time and place mutually satisfactory to the parties
involved.

6.4.4 The meet and confer process discussed in this Section 6.2 should
be completed by the commencement of the fiscal year in which the
changes and/or requests are to become effective, or by any other
extension of time as agreed upon by the parties in writing.

6.5 Where the District proposes to take action on matters regarding wages,
hours, and other terms and conditions of employment within the scope of
representation, whether such action be by ordinance, resolution, rule, or

Resolution No.
Page 8



regulations, reasonable written notice shall be given to each REO or EREO
affected thereby, and each shall be given the opportunity to meet and confer with
the District, through its representative(s), prior to the adoption of same. In cases
of emergency when the Board of Directors determines that an ordinance,
resolution rule or regulation must be adopted immediately without prior notice or
meeting with any REO or EREO, the District shall provide such notice and
opportunity to meet at the earliest practicable time following the adoption of
same.

6.6 If a tentative agreement is reached by the authorized representative(s) of
the District and the EREO, the Board of Directors shall vote to accept or reject
the tentative agreement within thirty (30) days of the date it is first considered at
a duly noticed public meeting. A rejection of the tentative agreement shall not
bar the filing of an unfair practice charge for failure to meet and confer in good
faith. If the Board of Directors accepts the tentative agreement, the parties shall
jointly prepare a written Memorandum of Understanding, signed by the District’s
representative(s), and the duly authorized Employee Representative(s). Said
tentative agreement shall be brought back and is not binding until approved by
the Board of Directors.

6.7 In the event the meet and confer process has not been completed or an
agreement is not reached within the time period(s) set forth in this Section 6,
either party may declare an Impasse and initiate Impasse procedures in
accordance with Section 21.

Section 7. Consult or Consultation in Good Faith

The District, through its representatives, shall consult in good faith with
representatives of recognized and exclusively Recognized Employee Organizations
prior to the modification of any rules and regulations for the administration of employer-
employee relations, including any amendments to this Resolution.

ARTICLE Il. -REPRESENTATION PROCEEDINGS
Section 8. Employee Unit of Representation

8.1  The District has investigated and considered the services performed by its
employees, their working conditions, and job duties, and the District's needs to
maintain an efficient operation while providing sound employer-employee
relations and the units of representation historically recognized by the District.
The District has concluded, based upon these investigations and considerations,
that it is most conducive to harmonious employer-employee relations and to
efficient operation of the District and that it is therefore proper and reasonable to
recognize the following three (3) employee units of representation, subject to
Section 4.2:

8.1.1 A Police Safety Unit, consisting of employees in the Police
Department who are sworn police officers (except Management and

Resolution No. XXX
Page 9



8.2

Professional Employee positions) non-sworn police dispatchers, and
cadets.

8.1.2 A General Employees Unit, consisting of all regular, full-time
employees in the competitive service who are not at-will or covered by
individual contract, excluding sworn personnel, non-sworn police
dispatchers and cadets, Mid-Management, Professional and Supervisory
positions.

8.1.3 A Management Unit, consisting of all regular, full-time
Management, including Mid-Management, Professional, and Supervisory
Employees in the competitive service who are not at-will or covered by an
individual contract.

8.1.4 Confidential Employees will not be officers or board members in
any employee organization representing a bargaining Unit, or negotiate on
behalf of said Unit, due to the potential or actual conflict of interest that
may arise. In the event of a dispute the UNION, or designee, shall make a
determination and the decision of the UNION shall be final.

Additional or different employee units of representation may be created by

action of the Board of Directors as it deems appropriate, upon the District's own
motion or upon a petition filed by an employee organization pursuant to Section 9
of this Resolution. In making its determination, the Board of Directors will
investigate and consider the following factors:

(@) Whether and which employees share a similar community of
interests, kinds of work performed, types of qualifications required,
and general working conditions;

(b)  The District's needs to maintain an efficient operation;

(c) The units of representation historically recognized by the District,
except however, that no unit shall be deemed to be an appropriate
unit solely on the basis of the extent to which employees in the
proposed unit have organized,;

(d)  Consistency with the organizational patterns of the District;

(e) Effect of differing legally mandated Impasse resolution procedures;

() Number of employees and classifications, and the effect on the
administration of employer-employee relations created by the
fragmentation of classifications and proliferation of units; and

(g0  Other matters considered relevant by the District to promoting

sound employer-employee relations and efficient operation of the
District.

Resolution No.

Page 10



Section 9. Requirements For and Process of Becoming an Exclusively
Recognized Employee Organization.

9.1  Only one employee organization shall be recognized as an employee
organization representing employees in a unit and, after the effective date of this
Resolution, only exclusive recognition on behalf of a unit established in
accordance with this Resolution or amendment hereto shall be conferred.

9.2 An employee organization which was a Recognhized Employee
Organization immediately prior to the effective date of this Resolution shall
continue to be so recognized under this Resolution in the unit for which it had
been recognized, subject to Sections 9, 14 through 16 herein, and provided that
said organization, sixty (60) days after the effective date of this Resolution,
submits current information listed in Sections 9.3.1 through 9.3.7 and
acknowledges in writing within said time limit that it consents to the definition of
said unit or units set forth in Section 8.

9.3 Process of Becoming Recognized. An employee organization seeking to
become certified as the Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization
representing employees in an appropriate unit shall file a petition (“Recognition
Petition”) with the UNION during the Filing Period. The Recognition Petition shall
contain all of the following information and documentation declared by the duly
authorized signatory under penalty of perjury to be true, correct, and complete:

9.3.1  Name and address of the employee organization;
9.3.2 Names and titles of its officers;

9.3.3 Names of employee organization representatives who are
authorized to speak on behalf of the organization;

9.34 Names and addresses of no more than two (2) employee
representatives to whom notices, if sent pursuant to this Resolution, will
be deemed sufficient notice to the employee organization for any purpose;

9.3.5 A copy of the employee organization's current Constitution and
Bylaws, which shall contain a statement that the employee organization
has, as one of its primary purposes, the representation of employees in
their employment relations with the District;

9.3.6 A statement whether the employee organization is a subordinate
body of, or affiliated directly or indirectly in any manner with, any regional
or state or international organization and, if so, the name and address of
each such regional, state, national, or international organization;

9.3.7 A statement that the employee organization has no restriction on
membership based on race, religious creed, color, national origin,

Resolution No. XXX
Page 11



ancestry, age, mental or physical disability, medical condition, marital
status, sex or sexual orientation;

9.3.8 The job classifications or position titles of employees in the unit
claimed to be appropriate and the approximate number of member
employees therein;

9.3.9 A statement that the employee organization has in its possession
Proof of Employee Support to establish that a majority of the employees in
the unit claimed to be appropriate have designated the employee
organization to represent them in their employment relations with the
District. Such written proof shall be submitted for confirmation to the
UNION or to a representative of the California State Mediation and
Conciliation Service; and

9.3.10 A request that the UNION formally acknowledge the employee
organization as the Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization
representing the employees in the unit claimed to be appropriate for the
purpose of meeting and conferring in good faith.

Section 10. District Response to Recognition Petition for an Exclusively
Recognized Employee Organization

10.1 Upon receipt of the Recognition Petition, the UNION shall determine
whether:

(@) There has been compliance with the requirements of the
Recognition Petition, in accordance with Section 9, and

(b) The proposed representation unit is an appropriate unit, in
accordance with Section 8.

10.2 If an affirmative determination is made by the UNION on the foregoing
matters listed in Section 10.1, the UNION shall inform the petitioning employee
organization, give written notice of the Recognition Petition to all the employees
in the unit and any other employee organization(s) representing any employee in
the same unit, and take no action on said request for thirty (30) days thereafter.

10.3 If either of the foregoing matters listed in Section 10.1 are not affirmatively
determined, the UNION shall deny the Recognition Petition and inform the
petitioning employee organization of the reasons therefor in writing. The
petitioning employee organization shall have seven (7) days to cure any defects
in the Recognition Petition. All defaults must be cured, and a valid Recognition
Petition must be submitted by the end of the Filing Period, unless the submission
deadline is extended by the UNION, who shall not extend the cure period more
than fifteen (15) days beyond the end of the Filing Period. Neither the UNION
nor the District is obligated to assist the petitioning employee organization in
curing the alleged defects to the Recognition Petition.

Resolution No.
Page 12



10.4 The petitioning employee organization may appeal such determination in
accordance with Section 18.

Section 11. Open Period for Filing Challenging Petition to an Exclusively
Recognized Employee Organization

Within thirty (30) days of the date written notice was given to affected employees
that a valid Recognition Petition for an appropriate unit has been filed, any other
employee organization may file a competing request to be formally acknowledged as
the Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization of the employees in the same or in
an overlapping unit (one which corresponds with respect to some, but not all the
classifications or positions set forth in the Recognition Petition being challenged), by
fiing a petition evidencing Proof of Employee Support in the unit claimed to be
appropriate of at least thirty (30) percent and otherwise in the same form and manner as
set forth in Section 9.3. If such challenging petition seeks establishment of an
overlapping unit, the UNION shall call for a meeting on such overlapping Recognition
Petitions for the purpose of ascertaining the more appropriate unit, at which time the
petitioning employee organizations shall be heard. Thereafter, the UNION shall
determine the appropriate unit or units in accordance with the standards in Section 8.2.
The petitioning employee organizations shall have fifteen (15) days from the date notice
of such unit determination is communicated to them by the UNION to amend their
petitions to conform to such determination or to appeal such determination pursuant to
Section 18.

Section 12. Granting Recognition to an Exclusively Recognized Employee
Organization Without an Election

If the Proof of Employee Support shows that a majority of the employees in the
appropriate unit have designated the petitioning employee organization to represent
them, and if no other employee organization files a challenging petition, the petitioning
employee organization and the UNION shall request the California State Mediation and
Conciliation Service, or another agreed upon neutral third party, to review the count,
form, accuracy, and propriety of the Proof of Employee Support. If the neutral third
party makes an affirmative determination, the UNION shall certify the petitioning
employee organization as the Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization for the
appropriate unit.

Section 13. Granting Recognition to an Exclusively Recognized Employee
Organization Through an Election Process

13.1 Upon the submission of valid Recognition Petitions of more than one
employee organization for employees in the same or overlapping units, the
UNION shall arrange for a secret ballot election to be conducted by the District
Clerk or such other third party agreed to by the UNION and the concerned
employee organization(s), in accordance with such party's rules and procedures,
subject to the provisions of this Resolution. All employee organizations who
have duly submitted Recognition Petitions which have been determined to be in

Resolution No. XXX
Page 13



conformance with this Resolution shall be included on the ballot. The ballot shall
also reserve to employees the choice of representing themselves individually in
their employment relations with the District. Employees entitled to vote in such
election shall be those persons employed in regular, permanent positions within
the designated appropriate unit who were employed during the pay period
immediately prior to the date which ended at least fifteen (15) days before the
date the election commences, including those who did not work during such
period because of illness, vacation or other authorized leaves of absence, and
who are employed by the District in the same unit on the date of the election. An
employee organization shall be formally acknowledged as the Exclusively
Recognized Employee Organization for the designated appropriate unit following
an election or run-off election, if it received a numerical majority of all valid votes
cast in the election. In an election involving three or more choices, where none
of the choices receives a majority of the valid votes cast, a run-off election shall
be conducted between the two choices receiving the largest number of valid
votes cast. The rules governing an initial election are applicable to a run-off
election.

There shall be no more than one valid election under this Resolution
pursuant to any Recognition Petition in a twelve (12)-month period affecting the
same unit.

In the event that the parties are unable to agree on a third party to conduct
the election, the election shall be conducted by the California State Mediation
and Conciliation Service. If a third party conducts the election, costs of
conducting elections shall be borne in equal shares by the District and by each
employee organization appearing on the ballot.

13.2 A Recognized Employee Organization or Exclusively Recognized
Employee Organization of the unit for which a decertification election is being
conducted shall also appear on the ballot, unless within fourteen (14) days of
receipt of the notice of the Decertification or Recognition Petition, or notice of the
unit determined by the Board of Directors, whichever is later, said employee
organization provides written notice to the UNION that it does not intend to
participate in the election. Notice of the intention not to participate in the election
shall constitute withdrawal from representation of the unit effective the date the
notice of intention not to participate in the election is received by the UNION.

13.3 The UNION shall announce the date of the election and the voting location
or locations at least twenty-eight (28) days before the date of such election.
Employees shall vote in person.

Section 14. Procedure for Decertification of Exclusively Recognized Employee
Organization

Resolution No.
Page 14



14.1 A decertification petition alleging that the incumbent Exclusively
Recognized Employee Organization no longer represents a majority of the
employees in an established appropriate unit (“Decertification Petition”) may be
filed with the UNION only during the Filing Period or the thirty (30) day period
commencing one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the termination date of a
Memorandum of Understanding then having been for three (3) years or less;
provided, that a Decertification Petition may not be filed within twelve (12)
months of initial recognition of an Exclusively Recognized Employee
Organization. A Decertification Petition may be filed by two or more employees
or their representative, or an employee organization, and shall contain the
following information and documentation declared by the duly authorized
signatory under penalty of perjury to be true, correct, and complete:

(@) The name, address and telephone number of the petitioner and a
designated representative authorized to receive notices or requests
for further information.

(b)  The name of the established appropriate unit and the incumbent
Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization sought to be
decertified as a representative of that unit.

(c)  An allegation that the incumbent Exclusively Recognized Employee
Organization no longer represents a majority of the employees in
the appropriate unit, and any other relevant and material facts
relating thereto.

Proof of Employee Support that at least thirty (30) percent of the
employees in the established appropriate unit no longer desire to be represented
by the incumbent Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization. Such proof
shall be submitted for confirmation to the UNION or to a mutually agreed upon
disinterested third party within the time limits specified in the first paragraph of
this Section. An employee organization may, in satisfaction of the Decertification
Petition requirements hereunder, file a petition under this Section in the form of a
Recognition Petition that evidences Proof of Employee Support of at least thirty
(30) percent, that includes the allegation and information required under
paragraph (c) of this Section, and otherwise conforms to the requirements of
Section 9.

14.2 The UNION shall initially determine whether the Decertification Petition
has been filed in compliance with the applicable provisions of this Resolution.

14.2.1 If the foregoing matters listed in Section 14.1 are not affirmatively
determined, the UNION shall deny the Decertification Petition and inform
the petitioning employee organization of the reasons therefor in writing.
The petitioning employee organization shall have seven (7) days to cure
any defects in the Decertification Petition. Neither the UNION nor the

Resolution No. XXX
Page 15



District is obligated to assist the petitioning employee organization in
curing the alleged defects to the Decertification Petition.

14.2.2 If the foregoing matters listed in Section 14.1 are affirmatively
determined by the UNION, or if a negative determination is reversed on
appeal, the UNION shall give written notice of such Decertification or
Recognition Petition to the incumbent Exclusively Recognized Employee
Organization and to unit employees. The UNION shall thereupon arrange
for a secret ballot election to be held to determine the wishes of unit
employees as to the question of decertification and, if a Recognition
Petition was duly filed hereunder, the question of representation. Such
election shall be conducted within the same timeframe and under the
same procedures as set forth in Section 13.

14.2.3 The petitioning employee organization may appeal such
determination in accordance with Section 18.

14.3 During the Filing Period or the thirty (30) day period commencing one
hundred twenty (120) days prior to the termination date of a Memorandum of
Understanding then having been in existence for three (3) years or less, when
the UNION has reason to believe that a majority of unit employees no longer
wish to be represented by the incumbent Exclusively Recognized Employee
Organization, the UNION may notify that organization and all unit employees that
an election will be held to determine that issue. In such event, any other
employee organization may, within fifteen (15) days of such notice, file a
Recognition Petition in accordance with Section 9.3, which the UNION shall act
on in accordance with this Section.

14.4 If, pursuant to this Section, a different employee organization is formally
acknowledged as the Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization, such
organization shall be bound by all the terms and conditions of any Memorandum
of Understanding then in effect for its remaining term.

Resolution No.
Page 16



Section 15. Procedure for Modification of Established Appropriate Units

15.1 Requests by employee organizations for modifications of established
appropriate units (“Modification Petition”) may be considered by the Union. The
Modification Petition shall be submitted during the Filing Period or the thirty (30)
day period commencing one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the termination
date of a Memorandum of Understanding then having been in existence for three
(3) years or less, in the form of a Recognition Petition, and, in addition to the
requirements set forth in Section 9.3, contain a complete statement of all relevant
facts and citations in support of the proposed modified unit in terms of the
policies and standards set forth in Section 8. The UNION shall process the
Modification Petition as any other Recognition Petition under this Resolution.

15.2 Proof of Support: When an employee organization requests the addition
of classifications or positions to its established unit, and the addition of the
positions would increase the existing unit size by ten (10) percent or more, the
UNION will require proof of majority support of persons employed in the
classifications or positions to be added. The UNION will require proof of at least
thirty (30) percent support among the affected employees if a pending
representation petition by another employee organization overlaps the positions
at issue in the unit modification petition.

15.3 At any time, by giving written notice, the UNION may propose that an
established unit be modified. The UNION shall give written notice of the
proposed modification(s) to any affected employee organization(s), and each
employee within said affected unit or units, and shall hold a meeting concerning
the proposed modification(s), at which time all affected employee organizations
shall be heard. Thereafter the UNION shall determine the composition of the
appropriate unit or units in accordance with Section 8 and shall give written
notice of such determination to the affected employee organizations.

15.3.1 The Union’s determination may be appealed in accordance with
Section 18.

15.3.2 If a unit is modified pursuant to the motion of the UNION
hereunder, employee organizations may thereafter file Recognition
Petitions seeking to become the Exclusively Recognized Employee
Organization for such new appropriate unit or units pursuant to Section 9.

Section 16. Procedure for Processing Severance Requests

16.1 An employee organization may file a request to become the Recognized
Employee Organization of a unit alleged to be appropriate that consists of a
group of employees who are already a part of a larger established unit
represented by another Recognized Employee Organization (“Severance
Request”). The timing, form, and processing of the Severance Request shall be

Resolution No. XXX
Page 17



as specified in Section 15 for a Modification Petition. The Union’s determination
may be appealed in accordance with Section 18.

16.2 Proof of Support: When an employee organization requests the
severance of classifications or positions to its established unit, and the severance
of the positions would decrease the existing unit size by ten (10) percent or more,
the UNION will require proof of majority support of persons employed in the
classifications or positions to be severed. The UNION may require proof of at
least thirty (30) percent support among the affected employees. The Union’s
determination may be appealed in accordance with Section 18 of this Resolution.

Section 17. Amendment of Certification
17.1 Employee Organization Petition

17.1.1 A Recognized Employee Organization shall file with the UNION a
petition to amend its certification or recognition ("Amendment Petition”) in
the event of a merger, change in affiliation, or transfer of jurisdiction.

17.1.2 The Amendment Petition shall be in writing, signed by an
authorized agent of the employee organization, and contain the following
information:

(@) The name, address and telephone number of the employee
organization and the name, address and telephone number
of the agent to be contacted;

(b) A brief description and the title of the established unit;

(c) A clear and concise statement of the nature of the merger,
amalgamation, affiliation, or other change in jurisdiction, and
the new name of the employee organization. The statement
shall include the following information:

(1)  Whether the new organization has the same structure
as the former organization (e.g., eligibility for
membership, dues/fees structure, continuation of the
manner in which contract negotiations, administration
and grievance processing will be effectuated), and if
not, an explanation of the change(s) in structure;

(2)  Whether the officers and representatives of the new
organization are the same as the former organization,
and if not, a specification of the changes in officers
and/or representatives;

(83)  Whether the power of the members to control the
organization’s agents is the same as it was in the

Resolution No.
Page 18



17.2

17.3

former organization (e.g., input into contract
proposals, contract ratification, frequency of
membership meetings, preservation of the (former)
organization’s physical facilities, books, and assets,
choosing/oversight of executive board members), and
if not, a specification of what changes have been
made; and

(4)  Whether the organization’s members were given an
opportunity to vote on the change in status, and if so,
a description of the voting process and results.

Review Process

17.2.1 Upon receipt of a petition filed pursuant to Section 17.1 above,
the UNION shall conduct such inquiries and investigations, and hold such
meetings as deemed necessary and/or conduct a representation election
in order to decide the questions raised by the Amendment Petition.

17.2.2 The UNION may dismiss the Amendment Petition if the petitioner
has no standing to petition for the action requested or if the Amendment
Petition is improperly filed.

17.2.3 In determining whether to grant the Amendment Petition, the
UNION will examine the following issues:

(@)  Whether the new organization has the same or similar
structure as the former organization;

(b)  Whether the officers and representatives of the new
organization are substantially the same as the former
organization;

(c) Whether the power of the members to control the
organization’s agents are substantially the same; and

(d)  Whether the organization’s members were given an
opportunity to vote on the change in status.

Determination

17.3.1 Unless the UNION finds that there is no substantial continuity of
identity and representation between the former and new organizations, the
UNION will issue an amendment of certification reflecting the new identity
of the Exclusive Recognized Employee Organization. Such certification
shall not be considered to be a new certification for the purpose of
computing time limits pursuant to Section 14. The terms and conditions of

Resolution No. XXX
Page 19



a Memorandum Of Understanding then in effect shall remain in effect until
said Memorandum Of Understanding expires.

17.3.2 If the UNION determines that there is no substantial continuity of
identity and representation between the former and new organizations,
he/she shall order an election in conformance with Section 14.

17.3.3 The Union’s determination may be appealed in accordance with
Section 18.

Section 18. Appeals

18.1  Within fifteen (15) days of a final decision of the UNION, (i) an employee
organization aggrieved by a determination of an appropriate unit or that a
Recognition Petition (Sec. 9), Challenging Petition (Sec. 11), Decertification
Petition (Sec. 14), Modification Petition (Sec. 15), Severance Request (Sec. 16),
or Amendment Petition (Sec. 17) has not been filed in compliance with Article II;
or (ii) employees aggrieved by a determination that a Decertification Petition
(Sec. 14) or Severance Request (Sec. 16) has not been filed in compliance with
Article Il, may request to submit the matter to mediation by the State Mediation
and Conciliation Service. In lieu thereof, or fifteen (15) days after such mediation
proceedings, said employee organization or employees may appeal such
determination to the Board of Directors for final decision.

18.2 Appeals to the Board of Directors shall be filed in writing with the District
Clerk, and a copy thereof served on the UNION. The Board of Directors shall
commence to consider the matter within thirty (30) days of the filing of the
appeal. The Board of Directors may, in its discretion, refer the dispute to a third
party hearing process. Any decision of the Board of Directors on the use of such
procedure, and/or any decision of the Board of Directors determining the
substance of the dispute, shall be final and binding. Any costs for the appeal
shall be borne equally by the District and the Employee Organization.

ARTICLE lll. ADMINISTRATION

Section 19. Submission of Current Information by Recognized Employee
Organizations

19.1 All Recognized Employee Organizations and Exclusively Recognized
Employee Organizations shall advise the UNION in writing immediately of any
changes in the information enumerated in Sections 9.3.1 through 9.3.7 within
fourteen (14) days of such charge.

Resolution No.
Page 20



Section 20. Employee Organization Activities — Use of District Resources

Access to District work locations and the use of District paid time, facilities,
equipment and other resources by employee organizations and those representing
them, shall be authorized only to the extent provided for in Memoranda of
Understanding and/or administrative procedures, shall be limited to lawful activities
consistent with the provisions of this Resolution that pertain directly to the employer-
employee relationship and not to internal employee organization business such as
soliciting membership, campaigning for office, or organization meetings and elections,
and shall not interfere with the efficiency, safety, and security of District operations.

ARTICLE IV. IMPASSE PROCEDURES
Section 21. Initiation of Impasse Procedures

21.1 If the meet and confer process has reached an Impasse, either party may
initiate the Impasse procedures by filing with the other party a written request for
an Impasse meeting, together with a statement declaring an Impasse and its
position on all issues. An Impasse meeting shall then be scheduled promptly by
the UNION. The purpose of such meeting shall be:

(@) To review the position of the parties in a final effort to reach
agreement on a Memorandum of Understanding; and

(b) If the Impasse is not resolved, to discuss arrangements for the
utilization of the Impasse procedures provided herein.

21.2 Impasse Procedures
Impasse procedures are as follows:

(a) If the parties agree to submit the dispute to mediation, mediation
will be conducted by a mediator from the California State Mediation
and Conciliation Service, unless the parties agree to use another
mediator. All mediation proceedings shall be private. The mediator
shall make no public recommendation, nor take any public position
at any time concerning the issues. If there is a cost for the services
of a mediator, such costs shall be borne equally by the District and
the employee organization.

(b) If the parties, having so agreed to mediation, fail to resolve the
dispute within thirty (30) days after the appointment of the mediator,
the employee organization thereafter may request to submit the
Impasse to fact-finding, as provided in Section 23 below.

(c) If the parties do not agree to mediation, the employee organization
may request to submit the Impasse to fact-finding, as provided in
Section 23 below.

Resolution No. XXX
Page 21



(d) If the Impasse has not been resolved through fact-finding, or the
employee organization fails to request fact-finding, the Impasse will
be sent to the Board of Directors, which, after holding a public
hearing, may take such action regarding the Impasse as it, in its
discretion, deems appropriate as in the public interest but shall not
implement a Memorandum of Understanding. Any legislative action
by the Board of Directors on the Impasse shall be final and binding.

Section 22. Fact-Finding Procedures

22.1 Upon failure to agree to, or upon failure to reach an agreement through,
mediation, the employee organization may submit a written request to the UNION
and the Public Employment Relations Board for a fact-finding panel as follows:

22.1.1 If the dispute was submitted to mediation, not sooner than thirty
(30) days, but not more than forty-five (45) days, after the appointment of
the mediator.

22.1.2 If the dispute was not submitted to mediation, not later than thirty
(30) days following the date that either party provided the other with a
written notice of an Impasse and request for an Impasse meeting.

22.2 The request for fact-finding shall be filed with the Public Employment
Relations Board - Los Angeles Regional Office located at 700 N. Central Ave.,
Glendale, California 91203-3219, with a proof of service, containing a declaration
signed under penalty of perjury with the following information: (1) the name of the
declarant; (2) the county and state in which the declarant is employed or resides;
(3) a statement that the declarant is over the age of 18 years and not a party to
the case; (4) the address of the declarant; (5) a description of the documents
served; (6) the method of service and a statement that any postage or other
costs were prepaid; (7)the name(s), address(es) and, if applicable, fax
number(s) used for service on the party(ies); and (8) the date of service. The
Public Employment Relations Board shall approve or disapprove all requests for
fact-finding.

22.3 Within five (5) working days after notification from the Public Employment
Relations Board that the fact-finding request is approved, (i) each party shall
select a person to serve as its member of the fact-finding panel and notify the
Public Employment Relations Board of its selection; and (ii) the Public
Employment Relations Board shall provide the names of seven persons that may
serve as chairperson, and will designate one of the seven (7) as the chairperson
of the fact-finding panel. Within five (5) working days after the Board selects a
chairperson, the parties may mutually agree upon another person to serve as
chairperson in lieu of the person selected by the Board. The costs for the
services of the chairperson, including per diem fees, if any, and actual and
necessary travel and subsistence expenses, shall be divided equally between the
parties. Any other mutually incurred costs shall be divided equally between the

Resolution No.
Page 22



parties. Any separately incurred costs for the panel member selected by each
party shall be borne by that party.

22.4 Within ten (10) days of its appointment, the fact-finding panel shall meet
with the parties or their representatives, either jointly or separately, and may
make inquiries and investigations, hold hearings, and take any other steps it
deems appropriate, including issuance of subpoenas requiring attendance and
testimony and production of evidence.

22.5 Within thirty (30) days of its appointment, or upon agreement by the
parties for a longer period, and if the dispute is not settled by the parties within
said time period, the fact-finding panel shall make findings of fact and
recommend terms of settlement, which shall be advisory only. In making its
findings and recommendations, the fact-finding panel shall consider the following
criteria:

(@)  State and federal laws that are applicable to the District;
(b) Local rules, regulations, or ordinances;
(c) Stipulations of the parties;

(d)  The interests and welfare of the public and the financial ability of
the District;

(e)  Comparison of the wages, hours, and conditions of employment to
employees performing similar services in comparable public
agencies;

) The consumer price index for goods and services, commonly
known as the cost of living;

(g0 The overall compensation presently received by the employees,
including direct wage compensation, vacations, holidays, and other
excused time, insurance and pensions, medical and hospitalization
benefits, the continuity and stability of employment and all other
benefits received; and

(h)  Any other facts which are normally or traditionally taken into
consideration in making the findings and recommendations.

22.6 The fact-finding panel shall submit its findings and recommendations in
writing to the parties prior to making them available to the public for the purpose
of resolving the Impasse. The parties shall have fifteen (15) days upon receiving
the findings and recommendations to resolve the Impasse. The District shall
make the findings and recommendations available to the public within ten (10)
days after its receipt. If the Impasse has not been resolved within fifteen (15)
calendar days after the District’s receipt of the fact-finding panel findings and

Resolution No. XXX
Page 23



recommendations, then the Impasse shall be sent to the Board of Directors,
which shall then hold a public hearing on the Impasse and take such action
regarding the Impasse as it, in its discretion, deems appropriate as in the public
interest, including but not limited to unilaterally implementing its last, best and
final offer, but shall not implement a Memorandum of Understanding. Any
legislative action by the Board of Directors on the Impasse shall be final and
binding, including but not limited to unilaterally implementing its last, best , and
final offer.

ARTICLE V. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
Section 23. Construction

The District may adopt such rules, regulations and/or procedures necessary or
convenient to implement the provisions of this Resolution and of the MMBA after
consultation with affected Recognized Employee Organizations. Nothing in this
Resolution shall be construed to deny any person or employee any rights granted by
Federal or State laws. The rights, powers, and authority of the District in all matters,
including the right to maintain any legal actions, shall not be modified or restricted by
this Resolution.

Section 24. Severability

If any provision or portion thereof contained in this Resolution, or the application
thereof, to any person or circumstances is held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or
unenforceable, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of such provision, or
portion thereof, to other persons or circumstances, shall be deemed severable, shall not
be affected, and shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 25. Notice

Wherever written notice is required by this Resolution, it shall be given to the
District at 5050 North Irwindale Avenue, Irwindale, California 91706, and to any
employee organization at its last address furnished in writing to the District, by first class
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid and shall be deemed to have been received
on the third day immediately following the day it was mailed (excluding Saturdays,
Sundays and holidays on which the offices of the District are closed) or, at the sender's
option, may be given by hand delivery.

SECTION 26. Certification.

The Chief Deputy District Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this resolution.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of January, 2018.

Resolution No.
Page 24



Mark A. Breceda, Mayor

ATTEST:

Laura Nieto, Chief Deputy District Clerk

STATE OF CALIFORNIA }
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES } ss.
PLEASANT VALLEY RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT }

|, Laura Nieto, Chief Deputy District Clerk of the Pleasant Valley Recreation & Park
District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2018-03-2997 was duly and
regularly passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Pleasant Valley Recreation
& Park District at its regular meeting held on the 10th day of January 2018, by the
following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers:

NOES: Councilmembers:

ABSENT: Councilmembers:

ABSTAIN:  Councilmembers:

Laura Nieto, Chief Deputy District Clerk

Resolution No. XXX
Page 25



~ gl

Section

WO WwN P

oo BN BN IS B N N

Resolution #104

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE PLEASANT VALLEY RECREATION AND PARK
DISTRICT REGARDING EMPLOYER~-EMPLOYEE

RELATIONS.

Title of Resolution

Statement of Purpose

PART I - EMPLOY

Definitions

Employee Rights
District Rights
Meet & Confer i

ER-~EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

n Good Faith -~ Scope

Consultation in Good Faith ~-- Scope

Advance Notice
Petition for Re
Determination o
Recognition of
Majority Repre
Designation of

cognition

f Appropriate Unit

Employee Organizations as
sentative Formal Recognition
Employee Relations Officer

Resolution of Wages, Hours and Working Conditions

Resolution of I
Grievances

mpasses

Memorandum of Understanding

Prohibited Prac

tices

PART II - ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE

Representation
Dues Payroll De
Reasonable Time
Access to Work

Proceedings

duction

-0ff to Meet and Confer
Locations

Use of District Facilities

Use of Bulletin Boards

Availability of Data

Peaceful Performance of District Services

Construction

Page

oI W) NN T, IS, S-S ]

10
11
11
12
12

14
16
17
18
18
18
19
20

20




WHEREAS, Chapter 10, Division 4, Title 1 of the Government
Code of the State of California was amended effective January 1, 1969,
for the purpose of promoting improved employer-~employee relations
between public employers and their employees by establishing uniform
and orderly methods of communication between employees and the public
agencies by which they are employed; and

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 3507 empowers a political
subdivision of the State of California to adopt reasonable rules and
regulations for the administration of emplover-employee relations; and

WHEREAS, the Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District,
a political subdivision, desires to adopt such reasonable rules and
regulations as authorized by law;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors
of the Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District as follows:

TITLE OF RESOLUTION

This resolution shall be known as the Employer-Employee
Relations Resolution of the Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The purpose of the Resolution is to implement Chapter 10,
Division 4, Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California
(Sections 3500 et seq.), captioned "Local Public Employee Organizations"
by providing orderly procedures for the administration of employer-
employee relations between the public agency and its employee organi-
zations and for resolving disputes regarding wages, hours, and other
terms and conditions of employment.

PART I - EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS

As used in this Resolution, the following terms shall have
the meanings indicated:

(np) APPROPRIATE UNIT -- means a unit established pursuant to Part I,
Section 8 of this Resolution.

{B) CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEE -- means an employee who is privy to deci-
sions of District management affecting employer-employvee relations.

(C) CONSULT AND CONSULTATION . .IN GOOD FAITH -- means to communicate
verbally or in writing for the purpose of presenting or cebtaining

views or advising of intended actions.

(D) DAYS -- means "calendar days" unless otherwise stated.

Page 1°0of 20



(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

(L)

(J)

(X)

(L)

(M)
(N)

DISTRICT ~- means the Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District,
and, where appropriate herein, refers to the Board of Directors,
the governing body of said District, or any duly authorized
management employee as herein defined.

DUES -- means any single sum of money authorized by an employee

to be deducted by the District for payment to a recognized employee
organization, which deduction has been approved by the Board of
Directors.

EMPLOYEE -- means any person regularly employed by the District
except those persons elected by popular vote, and temporary
employees, part-time employees and contract employees.

EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION -- means any organization which includes
employees of the District and which has as one of its primary
purposes representing such employees in their employement rela-
tions with the District.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS OFFICER ~- means the General Manager and
District Counsel in all matters of employer-employvee relations
designated pursuant to Part I, Section 10, or his duly authorized
representative.

EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS -- means the relationship between the
District and its employees and/or their employee organizations,

or when used in a general sense, the relationship between District
management and employees or emplovee organizations.

FACT FINDER -- means one who is selected by the mutual consent of
the District and all interested, formally recognized employee
organizations to fact find.

FACT-FINDING -- means identification of the major issues in a
particular dispute, review of the positions of the parties,
resolution of factual differences by one or more impartial

fact finders, and the making of recommendations for settlement

of such issues by either party. The recommendations of the

fact finder shall be private, and a copy of the fact finder's
recommendations shall be supplied to each of the parties involved.
A fact finder shall take no public position at any time concerning
the issues.

GRIEVANCE -~ as this term is defined in Part I, Section 13(a).

IMPASSE -- means:

(L) A deadlock in discussions between a formally recognized
employee organization and the District over any matters
concerning which they are required to meet and confer in

good faith in an attempt to reach agreement, or over the
scope of such subject matter; or

Page 2°'of 20



s

(2) Any unresolved complaint by an affected employee organization,
advanced in good faith, concerning a decision of the Employee
Relations Officer made pursuant to Part I, Section 7, 8, or 9
of this Resolution.

(0) MAJORITY REPRESENTATIVE -- means an employee organization, or
its duly authorized representative, that has been granted formal
recognition by the Board of Directors as representing the majority
of employees in an appropriate unit.

(P) MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEE -- means:

(1) Any employee having significant responsibilities for formula-
ting and administering District policies and programs, inclu-
ding, but not limited to, the General Manager and division
heads; and

(2) Any employee having authority to exercise independent
judgment in accomplishing any one or more of the following
personnel actions: to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, recall,
promote, discharge, assign, regard, or discipline other
employees, or having the responsibility to direct them, or to
adjust their grievances.

(Q) MEDIATION OR CONCILIATION -- means the efforts of an impartial
third person, or persons, functioning as intermediaries, to assist
the parties in reaching a voluntary resolution to an impasse through
interpretation, suggestion, and advice. Mediation and conciliation
are interchangeable terms.

(R) MEET AND CONFER IN GOOD FAITH (sometimes referred to herein as
"meet and confer" or "meeting and conferring") -- means performance
by duly authorized District representatives and duly authorized
representatives of an employee organization recognized as the major-
ity representative of their mutual obligation in good faith regarding
matters within the scope of representation, including wages, hours,
and other terms and conditions of employment, in an effort to:

(1) Reach agreement on those matters within the authority of such
representatives, and

(2) Reach agreement on what will be recommended to the Board of
Directors on those matters within the decision making authority
of the Board of Directors. This does not require either party
to agree to a proposal or to make a concession.

(s) PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEE -- means employees engaged in work requiring

’ specialized knowledge and skills attained through completion of a
prolonged recognized course of specialized intellectual instructions
and study, including, but not limited to, engineers, architects,
and landscape architects.

Page 3 of 20




(T) RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATIONS =~ means an employee organization
which has been acknowledged by the Board of Directors as an employee
organization that represents emplovees of the District, The rights
accompanying recognition are either:

(1) Formal Recognition =-- which is the right to meet and confer
in good faith as the majority representative in an appropriate
unit; or

(2) Informal Recognition ~-- which is the right to consultation
in good faith by all recognized employee organizations.

(u) RESOLUTION ~-- means, unless the context indicates otherwise, the
Employer-Employee Relations Resolution of the Pleasant Valley
Recreation and Park District.

(V) SCOPE OF REPRESENTATION -- means all matters relating to employer-
employee relations, including wages, hours, and other terms and
conditions of employment. District rights (Section 3) are ex-
cluded from the scope of representation.

(W) SUPERVISORY EMPLOYEE -~ means any employee having authority to
: exercise independent judgment in assigning work and evaluating

performance and to effectively recommend on actions to hire,
promote, transfer, lay off, recall, discipline, suspend, dis-
charge, or adjust grievances of other employees, if, in connection
with the foregoing, the exercise of such authority is not of a
merely routine or clerical nature but requires the use of inde-
pendent judgment.

SECTION 2. EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

Employees of the District shall have the right to form,
join, and participate in the activities of employee organizations of
their own choosing for the purpose of representation on all matters
of employer-employee relations including, but not limited to, wages
hours, and other terms and conditions of employment. Employees of
+the District also shall have the right to refuse to join or participate
in the activities of employee organizations and shall have the right
to represent themselves individually in their employment relations
with the District. No employee shall be interfered with, intimidated,
restrained, coerced, or discriminated against by the District or by
any employee organization because of his exercise of these rights,

SECTION 3. DISTRICT RIGHTS

The rights of the District include, but are not limited to,
the exclusive right to determine the mission of its constituent depart-
ments and Board of Directors; determine merits, necessity, and level
of any activity or service; determine the procedures and standards
of selection for employment promotion, direct its employees, take
disciplinary action; relieve its employees from duty because of lack
of work or for other legitimate reasons; maintain the efficiency of

Page 4r0f 20



]

R |

SECTION 3. DISTRICT RIGHTS (CONT.)

governmental operations; determine the methods, means, and personnel
by which government operations are to be conducted; determine the con-
tent of job classifications; take all necessary actions to carry out
its mission in emergencies; and exercise complete control and discre-
tion over its organization and the technology of performing its work.
Provided, however, that the exercise and retention of such rights does
not preclude employees or their representatives from consulting or
raising grievances over the practical consequences that decisions

on these matters may have on wages, hours, and other terms and condi-
tions of employment.

SECTION 4. MEET AND CONFER IN GOOD FAITH -- SCOPE

(a) The District, throughits representatives, shall meet and confer
in good faith with representatives of formally recognized
employee organizations with majority representation rights
regarding matters within the scope of representation including
wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment in
an attempt to reach agreement.

(B) The District shall not be required to meet and confer in good
faith on any subject preempted by Federal or State laws.

SECTION 5. CONSULTATION IN GOOD FAITH -- SCOPE

All matters affecting employer-employee relations, including
those that are not subject to meeting and conferring, are subject to
consultation. The District, through its representatives, shall con-
sult in good faith with representatives of recognized employee organi-
zations on employer-employee relations matters which affect them.
Advance notice on matters subject to consultation, but outside the
scope of representation, is desirable but not mandatory.

SECTION 6. ADVANCE NOTICE

Reasonable written notice shall be given to a recognized
employee organization affected by any proposed ordinance, rule,
resolution, or regulation directly relating to matters within the scope
of representation prior to the time such matters are presented to the
Board of Directors for consideration.

In cases of emergency when the Board of Directors determines
that an ordinance, rule, resolution, or regulation must be adopted
immediately, the District may take such action without prior notice or
meeting with a recognized employee organization. The District shall
provide such notice and opportunity to meet at the earliest practicable
time following the adoption of such ordinance, rule, resolution, or
regulation.

Page 5 of 20



SECTION 7. PETITION FOR RECOGNITION

There are two levels of employee organization recognition--

formal and informal. The recognition requirements of each are set
forth below:

(n)

FORMAL RECOGNITION -- THE RIGHT TO MEET AND CONFER IN GOOD FAITH
AS MAJORITY REPRESENTATIVE: An employee organization that seeks
formal recognition for purposes of meeting and conferring in good
faith as the majority representative of District employees in an
appropriate unit shall file a petition with the Employee Relations
Officer containing the following information and documentation:

(1) Name and address of the employee organization.

(2) Name and titles of its officers.
(3) Names of employee organization representatives who
are authorized to speak on behalf of its members.

(4) A statement that the employee organization has as
one of its primary purposes, representing employees
in their employment relations with the District.

(5) A statement whether the employee organization is a
chapter or local of, or affiliated directly or
indirectly in any manner with, a regional or state
or national or international organization and, if
so, the name and address of each such regional,
state, or international organization.

(6) Certified copies of the employvees organization's
constitution, by-laws, and policies.

(7) A designation of those persons, not exceeding
three in number, and their addresses, to whom
notice sent by regular United States mail will
be deemed sufficient notice on the employee
organization for any purpose.

(8) A statement that the employee organization recog-
nizes that the provisions of Section 923 of the
California Labor Code are not applicable to Dis-
trict employees.

(9) A statement that the employee organization has no
restriction on membership based on political
affiliation, race, color, creed, sex, or national
origin.

{({10) The number of member employees and the classifications
represented in the unit claimed to be appropriate.

Page 6 of 20




SECTION 7. PETITION FOR RECOGNITION (CONT.)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(11) A statement that the emplovee organization has in its
possession written proof, dated within six months of
the date upon which the petition is filed, to establish
that employees in the unit claimed to be appropriate
have designated the employee organization to represent
them in their employment relations with the District.
Such written proof shall be submitted for confirmation
to the Employee Relations Officer.

(12) A request that the Board of Directors recognize the
employee organization as the majority representative of
the employees in the unit claimed to be appropriate for
the purpose of meeting and conferring in good faith on
all matters within the scope of representation.

INFORMAL RECOGNITION -- THE RIGHT TO CONSULT IN GOOD FAITH:

An employee organization that seeks recognition for the purpose
of consultation in good faith shall file a petition with the
Employee Relations Officer containing the following information
and documentation:

(1) All of the information enumerated in (A) (1) through (9)
of this Section, inclusive.

(2) A statement that the employee organization has in its
possession written proof, dated within six months of the
date upon which the petition is filed, to establish that
emplovees have designated the employee organization to
represent them in their employment relations with the
District. Such written proof shall be submitted for
confirmation to the Employee Relations 0Officer,

(3) A request that the Board of Directors recognize the employee
organization for the purpose of consultation in good faith.

The petition, including all accompanying documents, shall be
verified, under oath, by the Executive Officer and Secretary of
the organization that the statements are true. All changes in
such information shall be filed forthwith in like manner.

The Board of Directors shall grant recognition, in writing, to
all employee organizations who have complied with either Part

I, Sections 7(A) or (B), and in addition, Part I, Section 7(C)
for purposes of consultation in good faith for its members.
Employee organizations seeking formal recognition as majority
representative must, in addition, establish to the satisfaction
of the Board of Directors that it represents a majority of the
employees in the manner prescribed in Part I, Section 9(A) below.
No employee may be represented by more than one recognized
employee organization for the purposes of this Resolution.

Page 7:0f 20



[ P

gl

SECTION 8.

DETERMINATION OF APPROPRIATE UNIT

(3) The Board of Directors, after reviewing the petition £filed by
an emplovee organization seeking formal recognition as majority
representative, shall determine whether the proposed unit is
an appropriate unit. The principal criterion in making this
determination is whether there is a community of interest among

such

employees. The following factors, among others, are to be

considered in making such determination:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(B) In th

(1)

(2)

SECTION 9.

Which unit will assure employees the fullest freedom in
the exercise of rights set forth under this Resolution.

The history of employee relations: (i) in the unit; (ii)
among other employees of the District; and (iii) in
similar public employment.

The effect of the unit on the efficient operation of
the District and sound employer-employee relations.

The extent to which employees have common skills,
working conditions, job duties, or similar educational
requirements.

The effect on the existing classification structure of
dividing a single classification among two or more units.

Consistent with the above factors, the unit shall be the
largest feasible.

e establishment of appropriate units:

Professional employees shall not be denied the right to
be represented separately from non-professional employees;
and

Management and confidential employees who are included in
the same unit with non-management or non-confidential
employees may not represent such employees on matters
within the scope of representation.

RECOGNITION OF EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATIONS AS MAJORITY

(A) The B

(1)

REPRESENTATIVE -- FORMAL RECOGNITION

oard of Directors shall:

Determine the majority representative of District employees
in an appropriate unit by arranging for a secret ballot
election or by any other reasonable method which is based
upon written proof,and is designated to ascertain the free
choice of a majority of such employvyees. The employee organ-
ization found to represent a majority of the employees in an

Page 8 of 20



appropriate unit shall be granted formal recognition and is
the only employee organization entitled to meet and confer
in good faith in an attempt to reach agreement on matters
within the scope of representation for emplovees in such
unit. This shall not preclude other recognized employee
organizations or individual employees from consulting

with management representatives on employer-employee relations

matters of concern to them.

(2) Revoke the recognition rights of a majority representative,
which has been found by secret ballot election no longer to
be the majority representative.

(B) The recognition rights of the majority representative designated
in accordance with this Section shall not be subject to challenge
for a period of less than twelve (12) months following the date
0of such recognition.

SECTION 10. DESIGNATION OF EMPLOYEE RELATIONS OFFICER

The General Manager and District Counsel or his duly appointed

representative, shall act as the Employee Relations Officer, who shall
be the District's principal representative in all matters of employer-
employee relations, with authority to meet and confer in good faith in
an attempt to reach agreement on matters within the scope of represen-
tation including wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of
employment.

The General Manager and District Counsel are authorized to
delegate these duties, responsibilities, and authority provided that
such duties, responsibilities, and authority may not be redelegated
without prior approval of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 11. RESOLUTION OF WAGES, HOURS, AND WORKING CONDITIONS

The Board of Directors of the District recognizes the
necessity and importance of maintaining mutually beneficial employer-
employee relations with its employees through the formally recognized
employee organization. To accomplish this state of relations, the
following acknowledgments and procedures shall be considered:

(a) To promote good and efficient government with a minimum of turn-
over of personnel, it shall be the practice of the District to
review salaries and fringe benefits to permit adoption of
adjustments effective at the start of a new fiscal year. Interim
adjustments may be considered at any time inequities, recruitment,
or other conditions indicate change. The District believes in

equal pay for equal work and it shall be the policy of the District

to compensate its employees in its various classifications and
positions at the prevailing rates according to the following
criteria:

Page 9 of 20




(1) Rates of compensation for similar classifications in both
public and private agencies in the competing recruitment area.

{2) Rates of compensation paid for similar classifications by
other public agencies of similar size and mission. Several
such agencies may be used for this purpose to determine an
average or prevailing practice.

(3) Recognition may be given to peculiar recruitment and/or
retention problems.

(4) Recognition of turnover as an influencing factor may be
considered in view of the costly training process of new
employees.

(5) Maintenance of egquitable internal relationship of salaries
shall be observed.

(6) A reasonable allowance may be made for trends in salaries
to. compensate for anticipated salary adjustments by other
agencies during the fiscal period.,

(B) The Employee Relations Officer shall meet and confer in good faith
in an attempt to reach an agreement with representatives of the
formally recognized employee organization on salaries and fringe
benefits for the ensuing fiscal period.

(1) Such negotiations shall be conducted according to a
predetermined and agreed-upon schedule.

(2) If agreements are not reached, either party may invoke the
impasse procedure as defined under Part I, Section 12.

(3) When agreement is reached during normal negotiations or
mediation, the Employee Relations 0Officer and representatives
of the formally recognized employee organization shall
prepare and sign a Memorandum of Understanding.

(c) The Employee Relations Officer and representatives of the formally
recognized employvee organization may meet and confer in good faith
and attempt to reach an agreement on matters other than salaries
and fringe benefits at any time during the year at the request of
either party.

SECTION 12. RESOLUTION OF IMPASSES

Impasses procedures may be invoked only after the possibility
of settlement by direct discussion has been exhausted. Any party may
initiate the impasse procedure by filing with the other party (or
parties) affected a written request for an impasse meeting together
with a statement of its position on all disputed issues, An impasse
meeting shall then be scheduled by the Employee Relations Officer

Page 10 of 20



within ten (10) days after the date of filing of the written request
for such meeting, with written notice to all parties affected. The
purpose of such meeting shall be to permit a review of the position
of all parties in a final effort to reach agreement on the disputed
issues. If agreement can still not be concluded, the following
impasse procedures shall be followed:

(a) The first step of the impasse procedure ivolves a presentation
to the Board of Directors by all parties to the dispute. If
agreement is still not reached, the second step of the impasse
procedure shall be invoked. '

(B) The second step of the impasse procedure involves any other
procedures to which the parties mutually agree, including, but
not limited to, mediation or fact-finding. The fees and expenses,
if any, of any impasse procedures shall be shared equally by the
District and all employee organizations involved in the impasse
procedure.

SECTION 13. GRIEVANCES

(a) A grievance 1is any dispute concerning the interpretation or
application of this Resolution, or of rules or regulations govern-
ing personnel practices or working conditions, or of the practical
consequences of the District's rights, decision on wages, hours,
and other terms and conditions of employment or of a written
understanding or memorandum of understanding between the District
and a recognized employee organization.

(B) Grievances shall be processed in the following manner:

(1) Any grievance or dispute that cannot be settled informally
between the parties concerned shall be reduced to writing
by the employee or employees concerned, and shall be pre-
sented to and discussed with the division head and the
supervisors of the complainants. No grievance or dispute
of more than six calendar months old will be considered.
The division head shall make every effort to resolve the
grievance and shall respond to the grievant within five
working days after receipt of the written grievance.
Employees shall assist the division head or his representa-
tive in making a grievance investigation. No employee shall
be placed in jeopardy for such cooperation, but he may be
disciplined for failure to cooperate in an investigation.

(2) If, after thorough consideration by the division head, the
grievance has not been satisfactorily resolved, the aggrieved
employee may file a statement with the General Manager
requesting that he attempt to resolve the dispute or grievance.
Such statement must be filed within three (3) working days
after the division head response is due. The General Manager
shall make such investigation as he requires and within three

Page 11 of 20




(3)

working days after receipt of the employee request he
shall recommend a solution to the division head and the
emplovee.

If the General Manager is unable to resolve the dispute
after thorough discussion with the parties involved, an
appeal may be made in writing to the Board. The Board
decision shall be final.

SECTION 14. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

When the meeting and conferring process is concluded

between the District and a formally recognized employee organization
representing a majority of the employees in an appropriate unit, all
agreed-upon matters shall be incorporated in a written memorandum of
understanding signed by the duly authorized District and majority
representatives. If a point of disagreement is reached, a joint
position memorandum of nonagreement shall be presented to the Board
of Directors.

Directors,

As to those matters within the authority of the Board of
the memorandum of understanding shall be submitted to the

Board of Directors for determination.

SECTION 15. PROHIBITED PRACTICES

Section,

Commission of a prohibited practice, as defined in this

shall constitute evidence of bad faith.

(a) It shall be a prohibited practice for the District wilfully to:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Interfere, restrain, or coerce District employees in the
exercise of the rights granted under this Resolution,

Dominate, interfere, or assist in the formation, existence,
or administration of any employee organization.

Encourage or discourage membership in any employee organi-
zation by discrimination in hiring, tenure, or the terms
and conditions of employment.

Discharge or discriminate against any employee because he
has formed, joined, or chosen to be represented by an

employee organization.

Refuse to meet and confer with representatives of recognized
employee organizations as required by this Resolution.

Deny the rights accompanying certification or formal
recognition granted pursuant to this Resolution.

Page 12 of 2¢



(7)

(8)

Discriminate against any employee organization or its
members for the purpose of denying them émployment because
of their organizational activities.

Fail to exhaust in good faith the direct meeting and
conferring process with the duly designated representatives
of the recognized employee organizations to endeavor to
reach agreement concerning matters within the scope of
representation.

(B) It shall be a prohibited practice for an employee or an
employee organization wilfully to:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Interfere with, restrain, or coerce the District in the
exercise of the rights granted under this Resolution,.

Refuse to meet and confer with the District as required
in this Resolution.

Fail to exhaust in good faith the direct meeting and
conferring process with the District to endeavor to reach
agreement concerning matters within the scope of representation.

(c) In applying this Section, fundamental distinctions between private
and public employment shall be recognized, and no body of
federal or state law applicable to private employment shall be
regarded as binding or controlling precedent.

SECTION 1.

PART II - ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES

REPRESENTATION PROCEEDINGS

(a) FORMAL RECOGNITION AS THE MAJORITY REPRESENTATIVE OF AN
APPROPRIATE UNIT

(1)

An employee organization that seeks formal recognition as

the majority representative of an appropriate unit shall

file a Petition for Recognition with the Employee Relations
Officer containing all of the information set forth in Part
I, Section 7(A) of this Resolution, accompanied by proof

that at least 40 percent of the employees in the unit

claimed to be appropriate have designated the employee
organization to represent them in their employment relations
with the District provided, however, the employee organization
may request that such written proof be submitted to a
mutually agreed upon disinterested third party. Upon receipt
of the Petition for Recognition, the Employee Relations
Officer shall determine whether there has been compliance
with the requirements of the Petition for Recognition and
whether the proposed unit is an appropriate unit. If an
affirmative determination is made by the Employee Relations
Officer on the foregoing matter, he shall give notice of

Page 13 of 20



e e

(2)

(3)

(4)

such request for formal recognition to the emplovees and
shall take no action on said request for ten (10) days
thereafter. If either of the foregoing matters are not
affirmatively determined, the Employee Relations Officer
shall inform the employee organization of the reasons
therefore in writing.

Within ten (10) days of the date notice to emplovees is

given, any other employee organization (hereinafter referred
to as the "challenging organization"), may seek formal
recognition by filing a Petition for Recognition, provided,
however, such challenging organization must submit written
proof that it represents at least 40 percent of the employees.
Thereafter, the Board of Directors shall determine the
majority representative in accordance with Part I, Section

9 of this Resolution.

When an employee organization in the unit found to be
appropriate submits written proof that it represents at
least 40 percent of the employees in such unit, the Board
of Directors shall arrange for a secret ballot election.
Any challenging organization which as submitted written
proof that it represents at least 40 percent of the
employees and has submitted a Petition for Recognition as
required by Part I, Section 7 of this Resolution, shall

be included on the ballot. Employees entitled to vote in
such election shall be those persons regularly employed

in permanent positions who were employed during the pay
period immediately prior to the date which is fifteen (15)
days before the election, including those who did not work
during such period because of illness, wvacation, or
authorized leaves of absence and who are employed by the
District in the same unit on the date of the election. An
employee organization shall be granted formal recognition
following an election if that employee organization has
received the vote of a numerical majority of all the
employees eligible to vote in the unit in which the election
is held (i.e., 50 percent plus 1 of all eligible employees).

There shall be no more than one valid election in a l1l2-month
period within the same unit.

(B) DECERTIFICATION OF ESTABLISHED UNIT

(1)

A Petition for Decertification alleging that an employee
organization granted formal recognition is no longex the

maiority representative of thie employvees in an appropriate
unit- may be filed with the Employee Relations Officer
during any month following the first full year of formal
recognition. The Petition for Decertification may be filed
by a group of employees or their representative or by any
employee organization. The Petition for Decertification

""Page 14 of 20



(<)

(D)

(E)

shall contain the following information:

(i) The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of
petitioner and a designated representative authorized
to receive notices or requests for further information.

(ii) The name of the formally recognized employee
organization,

(iii) An allegation that the formally recognized employee
organization no longer represents a majority of the
employees in an appropriate unit and any other relevant
and material facts.

(iv) Written proof that at least 40 percent of the employees
do not desire to be represented by the formally recognized
emplovee organization. Such written proof shall be dated
within six months of the date upon which the petition
is filed and shall be submitted for confirmation to the
Employee Relations Officer.

(2) The Board of Directors shall arrange for a secret ballot
election to determine i1f the formally recognized employee
organization shall retain its recognition rights. The
formally recognized employee organization shall be decerti-
fied if a majority of those casting valid ballots vote for
decertification.

(3) There shall be no more than one valid decertification
election in the same unit in any l2-month period.

DURATION OF FORMAL RECOGNITION

When an employee organization has been formally recognized, such
recognition shall remain in effect for one year from the date
thereof and thereafter until such time as the Board of Directors
shall determine, on the basis of a secret ballot election con-
ducted in accordance with the foregoing rules, that the formally
recognized employee organization no longer represents a majority
of the employees in the appropriate unit.

COST OF ELECTION PROCEEDING

The cost of any election proceeding and all organization
expenses shall be borne by the employee organization or organi-
zations who petition for the election.

IMPASSES IN REPRESENTATION PROCEEDINGS

Any unresolved complaint by an affected employee organization,

advanced in good faith, concerning a decision of the Board of
Directors made pursuant to Subsections (A), (B), or (C) above

Page 15 of 20



shall be processed in accordance with the procedures set forth
in Part I, Section 12 of this Resolution., Provided, however,
the written request for an impasse meeting, as described in Part
I, Section 12 of this Resolution, must be filed by registered or
certified United States mail with the Employee Relations Officer
within ten (10) days after the affected employee organization
first receives notice of the decision upon which its complaint
is based, or its complaint will be considered closed and not
subject to the impasse procedures or to any other appeal.

SECTION 2. DUES PAYROLL DEDUCTION

Only a formally recognized employee organization (i.e., the
majority representative of employees in an appropriate unit) may be
granted permission by the Board of Directors to have dues of its
members deducted from their paychecks.

Dues deduction shall be made only upon the voluntary
written authorization of the member and shall be continued until such
time as cancelled by the member upon voluntary written notice to the
Employee Relations Officer. Dues deduction authorization or can-
cellation shall be made upon cards provided by the Employee Relations
Officer.

The employee's earnings must be regularly sufficient after
other legal and required deductions are made to cover the amount of
the dues deduction authorized. When a member in good standing of the
formally recognized employee organization is in a nonpay status for an
entire pay period, no dues withholding will be made to cover that pay
period from future earnings nor will the member deposit the amount with
the District which would have been withheld if the member had been in
a pay status during that period. 1In the case of an employee who is
in a nonpay status during only a part of the pay period and the salary
is not sufficient to cover the full withholding, no deduction shall be
made. In this connection, all other legal and required deductions
have priority over employee organization dues.

Dues withheld by the District shall be transmitted to the
officer designated in writing by the employee organization as the
person authorized to receive such funds, at the address specified,

All employee organizations who receive payroll deduction for
dues shall indemnify, defend and hold the District harmless against
any claims made and against any suit instituted against the District
on account of the deduction of employee organization dues. In addition,
all such employee organizations shall refund to the District any
amounts paid to it in error upon presentation of supporting evidence,

SECTION 3. REASONABLE TIME OFF TO MEET AND CONFER

The formally recognized employee organization may select not
more than three employee members of such organization to attend

Page 16 of 20



pRum——

scheduled meetings with the Employee Relations Officer or other
management officials on subjects within the scope of representation
during regular work hours without loss of compensation. Where
circumstances warrant, the Employee Relations Officer may approve

the attendance at such meetings of additional employee representatives
with or without loss of compensation. The employee organization
shall, except in emergencies, submit the names of all such employee
representatives to the Employee Relations Officer at least two working
days in advance of such meetings. Provided, further;

(1) That no employee representative shall leave his or her duty
or work station or assignments without specific approval of
the department head or other authorized District management
official, and

(2) that any such meeting is subject to scheduling by District
management in a manner consistent with operating needs and
work schedules.

Nothing provided herein, however, shall limit or restrict
District management from scheduling such meetings before or after
regular duty or work hours under appropriate circumstances, and
attendance by all emplovees at such scheduled meetings shall be
without compensation.

SECTION 4. ACCESS TO WORK LOCATIONS

(a) Reasonable access to employvee work locations shall be granted
officers of recognized employee organizations and their officially
designated representatives by the Employee Relations Officer upon
request. Access shall be restricted so as not to interfere with
the normal operations of the department or with established
safety or security requirements.

(B) Solicitation of memberhsip and activities concerned with the
internal management and/or creation of an employee organization,
such as collecting dues, holding membership meetings, campaigning
for office, conducting elections, and distributing literature,
shall not be conducted during working hours unless specifically
authorized in writing by the Employee Relations Officer., Employee
organizations seeking recognition shall submit a statement to the
Employee Relations Officer certifying that such organizational
activities required to establish such employee organization have
not been conducted during the working hours of employees paid
by the District except as approved in writing by the Employee
Relations Officer.

SECTION 5. USE OF DISTRICT FACILITIES

Employee organizations may, with the prior approval of the
Employee Relations Officer, be granted the use of District facilities
for meetings of District employees provided space is available and

Page 17 of 20



Provided,

furthqr,fsuch meetings are not used for membérship drives

of District employees. All such requests shall be in writing and-
shall state the purpose or purposes of the meeting. The District
reserves the right to assess reasonable charges for the use of such
facilities.

The use of District equipment other than items normally used

in the conduct of business meetings, such as desks, chairs, ashtrays
and blackboards, is strictly prohibited, the presence of such other

equipment

SECTION 6.

in approved District facilities notwithstanding.

USE OF BULLETIN BOARDS

Recognized employee organizations may use portions of

District bulletin boards under the following conditions:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

All materials must be dated and must identify the organi-
zation that published them.

The actual posting of materials will be done by the District
as soon as possible after they have been approved. Unless
special arrangements are made, materials posted will be
removed thirty-one (31) days after the publication date.
Materials which the Employee Relations Officer considers
objectionable or in bad taste will not be posted.

The District reserves the right to determine where bulletin

boards shall be placed and what portion of them are to be
allocated to employee organizations' materials.

An employee organization that does not abide by these rules
will forfeit its right to have materials posted on District

bulleting boards.

SECTION 7. AVAILABILITY OF DATA

The District will make available to recognized emplovee
organizations such information pertaining to employment relations
as is contained in the public records of the District, subject to
the limitations and conditions set forth in this rule and Government
Code Sections 6250-6260.

Such information shall be made available during regular
office hours in accordance with the District's rules and procedures
for making public records available and after payment of reasonable
costs, where applicable.

Information which shall be made available to employee
organizations includes regularly published data covering subjects
under discussion. Data collected on a promise to keep its source
confidential may be made available in statistical summaries, but
shall not be made available in such form as to disclose the source.

Page 18 of 20



Nothing in this rule shall be construed to regquire
disclosure of records that are:

(1) Personnel, medical, and similar files, the disclosure of
which would constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal
privacy or be contrary to merit system principles except
with the prior written authority of the aggrieved emplovee.

(2) Working papers or memoranda which are not retained in. the
ordinary course of business or any records wheéere the public
interest served by not making the record available clearly
outweighs the public interest served by disclosure of the
record.

(3) Records pertaining to pending litigations to which the
District is a party or to claims or appeals which have not
been settléd.

(4) Nothing in this rule shall be construed as requiring the
District to do research for an inguirer or to do programming
or assemble data in a manner other than usually done by
the District. This does not preclude, however, the
employvee organizations contracting with the District for
such programming or assembled data on a cost basis.

SECTION 8. PEACEFUL PERFORMANCE OF DISTRICT SERVICES

Participation by any employee in a strike or work stoppage
may, at the discretion of the District, subject the employee to
disciplinary action, including discharge. No employee organization,
its representatives, or members shall engage in, cause, instigate,
encourage or condone a strike or work stoppage of any kind.

If a recognized employvee organization, its representatives,
or members engage in, cause, instigate, encourage, or condone a strike
or work stoppage of any kind, the Board of Directors may suspend or
revoke the recognition granted to such employee organization, may
prohibit the use of bulletin boards, may prohibit the use of District
facilities, and may prohibit access to work or duty stations by such
organization.

As used in this Section, "strike or work stoppage" means
the concerted failure to report for duty, the willful absence from
one's position, the stoppage of work, or the abstinence in whole or in
part from the full, faithful performance of the duties of employment
for the purpose of inducing, influencing, or coercing a change in the
conditions of compensation or the rights, privileges, or obligations
of employment.

Any decision of the Employee Relations Officer made under

the provision of thissection may be appealed to the Board of Directors
of the District by filing by registered or certified United States

Page 19 of 20



P

Mail a written Notice of Appeal with the Employee Relations Officer
accompanied by a complete statement setting forth all of the grounds
upon which' the appeal is based. Such notice must be filed within

ten (10) days after the affected employee organization first receives
notice of the decision upon which its complaint is based or its
complaint will be considered closed and not subject to any other
appeal.

CONSTRUCTION

(a) Nothing in this Resolution shall be construed to deny any person
or employee the rights granted by Federal and State laws.

(B) The rights, powers, and authority of the Board of Directors in
all matters, including the right to maintain any legal action,
shall not be modified or restricted by this Resolution,

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of August, 1973.

a7t

airman, Board of Directors
Pleasant Valley Recreation

and Park District

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Page 20 of 20



	03PVRPD Committee Mtg PERSONNEL Agenda Mar 23 2022.pdf
	03 PVRPD Personnel Employee Manual.pdf
	Agenda Report EMPLOYEE MANUAL PPP.pdf
	TO:   PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
	FROM:  MARY OTTEN, GENERAL MANAGER
	DATE:  March 23, 2022
	SUBJECT: EMPLOYEE MANUAL PERSONNEL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
	BACKGROUND
	ANALYSIS
	FISCAL IMPACT
	RECOMMENDATION
	STRATEGIC PLAN COMPLIANCE

	2022 Employee Manual-PPP.pdf
	Article 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION
	A. Purpose and Intent
	B. Scope
	C. Right to Revise
	D. At-Will Employment

	ARTICLE 2 – EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION
	A. Exempt Employees
	B. Non- Exempt Employees
	C. Introductory Period – New Hires & Promotional Appointments
	D. Re-Hires

	ARTICLE 3 – LEAVE OF ABSENCE
	A. Vacation
	B. Management Leave
	C. Sick Leave
	1. Full Time Employees Sick Leave Accrual
	2. Part-Time Year-Round Employees
	3. Temporary or Seasonal and/or Part Time Restricted Employees
	4. Charge for Sick Leave
	5. Proof of Illness
	6. Notice of Sickness
	7. Cash Value upon Termination
	8. Value upon Retirement

	D. Compensatory Time Off
	E. Bereavement Leave
	F. Personal Leave
	G. Emergency Leave Donations

	ARTICLE 4 - BENEFITS
	A. California Public Employee Retirement System (CalPERS)
	B. Other Employee Paid Benefits
	C. Holidays
	D. Recording Expenses Incurred
	E. Educational Assistance Program

	ARTICLE 5 - MANAGEMENT
	A. Performance Evaluations
	B. Employee Property
	C. Cell Phone Allowance / Stipend Policy
	D. Auto Allowance

	ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT
	E. Disciplinary Action
	F. Open-Door Policy / Grievance Process
	1. Appeal to Supervisor
	2. Appeal to Manager (as applicable)
	3. Appeal to Administrative Services Manager or Designee
	4. Appeal to General Manager

	G. Conflict of Interest; Gifts; Gratuities; Political Activity Policy

	ARTICLE 7 – seiu represented employee DISCIPLINE
	ARTICLE 8 - WAGES
	H. Payment of Wages
	I. Unclaimed/Lost Paychecks
	J. Overtime for Non-Exempt Employees
	K. Call in to Work
	L. Shift Differential Pay
	M. Out of Class Assignments

	ARTICLE 9 - SEPARATION FROM SERVICE /TERMINATION
	A. Separation of Employment
	B. Reductions in Workforce

	ARTICLE 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION
	A. Scope
	B. Right to Revise
	C. Equal Employment Opportunity

	ARTICLE 2 – EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION
	A. Employment Categories
	B. Full Time Employees
	C. Part-Time Year-Round Employees (1,000+ hours/year)
	D. Part-Time Employees
	E. Exempt Employees
	F. Non- Exempt Employees
	G. Nepotism (Employment of Relatives)
	1. Definitions
	2. Prohibition Against Nepotism and Fraternization
	3. Enforcement of Policy
	4. Procedure: Applicants
	5. Current Employees
	6. Violation of Policy


	ARTICLE 3 – LEAVE OF ABSENCE
	A. Jury Duty and Witness Leave
	B. Time Off for Voting
	C. Volunteer Civil Service Personnel
	D. Workers’ Compensation
	E. School Activities
	F. Employee Literacy Assistance
	G. Family Care and Medical Leave
	1. Definitions
	2. Reasons for Leave
	3. Employees Eligible for Leave
	4. Amount of Leave
	5. Minimum Duration of Leave
	6. Benefits While on Leave
	7. Substitution of Paid Accrued Leaves
	8. Employer’s Right to Require Employee to Use Paid Accrued Leaves Concurrently with Family Leave
	9. Employee Notice of Leave
	10. Medical Certification
	11. Intermittent Leave or Reduced Schedule Leave
	12. Reinstatement on Return from Leave

	H. Military Leave
	I. Military Family Leave
	J. Military Caregiver Leave
	K. Qualifying Exigency Leave
	L. Leave to Care for Covered Servicemember
	M. Pregnancy Disability Leave
	1. Certification from Health Care Provider:
	2. Use of Sick Leave
	3. Use of Additional Accrued Paid Leave
	4. State Disability
	5. Health Benefits During PDL Leave
	6. PDL Concurrent with FMLA Leave
	7. Return to Work
	8. Seniority

	N. Coordination of PDL with Family/Medical Leave
	O. Victims of Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault or Crime Leave
	P. Organ and Bone Marrow Donation Leave
	Q. Sick Leave
	R. Leave of Absence Without Pay
	S. Reservation of Right by the District

	ARTICLE 4 - BENEFITS
	A. Federal Social Security Act
	B. California Public Employee Retirement System (CalPERS)
	C. Deferred Compensation 457 Plan
	D. Insurance Programs
	E. Unemployment Insurance
	F. Other Employee Paid Benefits
	G. Employee and Family Discounts
	H. Training Programs, Seminars, Conferences, Lectures, Meetings or Other Outside Activities
	I. Compensation During Travel Away From the District
	J. Educational Assistance Program
	K. Americans With Disabilities Act

	ARTICLE 5 - MANAGEMENT
	A. Names and Addresses; Emergency Contacts
	B. Solicitation and Distribution of Literature
	C. Smoking / Tobacco Products
	D. Parking
	E. Use of Resources and Property
	F. Employer Property
	G. Employee References
	H. Personnel Files

	ARTICLE 6 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT
	A. Punctuality and Attendance
	B. Prohibited Conduct
	C. Dress Code and Other Personal Standards
	D. Off-Duty Conduct
	E. Professional Logo / Casual Attire
	F. Customer Relations
	G. Confidentiality
	H. Outside Business or Employment
	1. Definition:
	2. Procedures for Requesting Authorization for Outside Business or Employment:

	I. Conflicts of Interest
	1. Form 700 – Statement of Economic Interests
	3. Personal Use of District Contractors

	J. Acceptance of Gifts
	K. Public Records Act, Government Code §6253
	L. Business Conduct and Ethics
	1. Conduct
	2. Dishonest Acts
	3. Abiding by the Law
	4. Conducting Non-District Business

	M. News Media Contacts
	N. Drug and Alcohol Abuse
	1. Policy
	2. Application
	3. Employee Responsibilities
	4. Management Responsibilities and Guidelines
	5. Physical Examination and Procedure
	6. Results of Drug and/or Alcohol Analysis
	7. Confidentiality

	O. Anti-Harassment, Discrimination, and Abusive Conduct Policy
	1. Harassment; Discrimination
	2. Sexual Harassment
	3. Mandatory Training
	4. Reporting and Investigating Complaints of Discrimination or Harassment
	5. Additional Resources
	6. Retaliation
	7. Workplace Violence
	8. Sexual Assault, Domestic Violence & Stalking
	9. Abusive Conduct and Bullying


	ARTICLE 7 – WAGES; PAYROLL
	A. Work Schedules
	B. Alternative Work Schedule – 9/80
	C. Timekeeping Requirements
	D. Administrative Pay Corrections
	E. Payment of Wages
	F. Payroll Records
	G. Unclaimed/Lost Paychecks
	H. Direct Deposit
	I. Pay for Mandatory Meetings / Training
	J. Overtime for Non-Exempt Employees
	K. Meal and Rest Periods
	L. Business Expense Reimbursement
	M. Advances

	ARTICLE 8 - HEALTH AND SAFETY
	A. Safety Policy
	B. Safety Training
	B. Heat Illness
	C. Security/Workplace Violence
	D. Recreational Activities and Programs
	E. Inclement Weather/Natural Disasters
	1. Inclement Weather
	2. Natural Disasters

	F. Ergonomics
	G. Employees Who Are Required to Drive
	3. District Vehicles
	4. Private Vehicle Use

	H. Use of Cell Phone While Driving

	INDEX
	EMPLOYEE COPY
	ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF THE PLEASANT VALLEY RECREATION and PARK DISTRICT EMPLOYEE MANUAL AND TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT



	03 PVRPD Personnel EERR.pdf
	Agenda Report EERR.pdf
	TO:   PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
	FROM:  MARY OTTEN, GENERAL MANAGER
	DATE:  March 23, 2022
	SUBJECT: EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS RESOLUTION
	SUMMARY
	BACKGROUND
	ANALYSIS
	FISCAL IMPACT
	RECOMMENDATION
	STRATEGIC PLAN COMPLIANCE

	DRAFT PVRPD EERR.pdf
	Article I. GENERAL PROVISIONS
	Section 1. Title of the Resolution
	Section 2. Statement of Purpose; Rescission of Prior Resolution
	Section 3. Definitions
	Section 4. Employee Rights
	Section 5. District Responsibilities and Rights
	Section 6. Meeting and Conferring
	Section 7. Consult or Consultation in Good Faith

	Article II. - REPRESENTATION PROCEEDINGS
	Section 8. Employee Unit of Representation
	Section 9. Requirements For and Process of Becoming an Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization.
	Section 10. District Response to Recognition Petition for an Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization
	Section 11. Open Period for Filing Challenging Petition to an Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization
	Section 12. Granting Recognition to an Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization Without an Election
	Section 13. Granting Recognition to an Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization Through an Election Process
	Section 14. Procedure for Decertification of Exclusively Recognized Employee Organization
	Section 15. Procedure for Modification of Established Appropriate Units
	Section 16. Procedure for Processing Severance Requests
	Section 17. Amendment of Certification
	Section 18. Appeals

	Article III. ADMINISTRATION
	Section 19. Submission of Current Information by Recognized Employee Organizations
	Section 20. Employee Organization Activities – Use of District Resources

	Article IV. IMPASSE PROCEDURES
	Section 21. Initiation of Impasse Procedures
	Section 22. Fact-Finding Procedures

	Article V. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	Section 23. Construction
	Section 24. Severability
	Section 25. Notice


	PVRPD EERR (1973).pdf

	Blank Page

